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Regional Growth on

Solid Foundation
SEIRE EREMR

Good foundation is the key for everything you build. Our solid financial
fundamentals, talented workforce, over 37 years of IT services
experience, regional presence and support from our ultimate controlling
shareholder, Teamsun, lay the groundwork for our further regional
expansion in the future.

The design of this year’s annual report reflects our determination to
pursuit regional expansion opportunities so as to become the leader
in the IT service industry in the Greater China region and then to move
forward to become the No.1 IT service provider in the Asia Pacific
region.
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ASL at a Glance

® Information Technology (IT) service provider since
1973

® Teamsun (SHSE Stock Code: 600410) becomes
the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder in
September 2009, supporting the Company’s further
business expansion in the Asia Pacific region

® Dedicated to delivering one-stop IT services to
customers across the region with business operations
in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan, Thailand and mainland
China
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Net profit increased to
HK$115.8 million, including
HK$69.1 million from the
post-tax gain on disposal
from the Global Managed

Basic earnings per share
surged to HK37.65 cents
(FY09: HK14.36 cents)

BREXRBMMAZ37.65
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Profit before income tax
from continuing operations
reached HK$53.6 million
(FY09: HK$43.3 million)
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Service business (FY09:

HK$42.7 million) 14.36781)
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® Awarded with sizable contracts in the IT infrastructure, REMBRERE BRI RERBELGE
solution and services business continually BEERSERAYN
® Intensified regional expansion with focus in Greater DR R E R 2[RI
China:
e Expanded operations in China by opening office o R IR - BE - N KBS
2009/10 Operational and customer service centers in Shenzhen, RN B I B AR A5 PR 0 DA SRR R
Highlights Beijing, Shanghai, Hangzhou and Shenyang e

2009/10 %(EiH= ¢ Expanded sales team to capture IT demand of
the financial services and insurance sector in

Greater China
® Accelerated business expansion by creating more
synergies with Teamsun

® Aim at creating more synergies with Teamsun to fuel
our growth in Greater China

® Continue the stated strategy to promote cross-
territories business with an aim to make Greater
China our focal point of development

® Maintain a keen focus on business prospects in
the Pearl River Delta region and surrounding region
which is expected to be boosted by the Framework
Agreement on Hong Kong/Guangdong Co-operation

® Plan to expand our operations in Taipei to seek
new opportunities expected arising from the signed
Cross-Strait Financial Supervisory Cooperation MOU
and proposed Economic Cooperation Framework
Agreement (ECFA)

® Maintained effective cost structure
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Continuous Commitment to
Customer Service Excellence

RAOUFERET SEEBERK

While striving for our quality services commitments, ASL also plays an important
role in safeguarding our customers’ properties during service delivery. The
quality services to our clients are with references to ISO/IEC 20000:2005
standard on IT Service Management and ISO/IEC 27001:2005 on IT Security
Management. ASL is dedicated to perfecting products, services and processes
for customer service excellence as stated in our quality policy continuously.
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In 2009, Automated Systems (HK) Limited was one of the

TOP 5 IT SERVICES PLAYERS in Hong Kong for the
2nd consecutive year

(Source: IDC Asia/Pacific Semiannual IT Services Tracker, 2H 2009)
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Quality Policy of ASL
BERGHNEE

We are dedicated to delivering effective and efficient IT solution
ON TIME through CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT on our
processes, products and services in order to achieve:
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e  Maximum efficiency in operation

e  Satisfaction of our customers, shareholders, business
partners and staff
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Automated Systems (HK) Limited B &8 A% (& E)EGR Q7

Capability Maturity Model® Integration (CMMI)
Version 1.2 — Maturity Level 3 Rating

Capability Maturity Model® Integration (CMMI)
1.2 i - BE=RFTR

1SO 9001 : 2000

1SO 9001 : 2000

Certificate No.: CC 1675

Certificate No.: CC 1505

Enterprise Business
Solutions Division

BEXBHRD

Infrastructure and
Managed Services Division
HRBBRERR
HREER

CMMI® is registered in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office
by Carnegie Mellon University

CMMI® Ty RRESRR A SR XE S FI IR R mR

ELM Computer Technologies Limited it E SR AR A T

Provision of information
technology system
integration, software
development, installation
and maintenance support
services
RECEAFHRREA -
B RRRAHES

1SO 9001 : 2008
Certificate No.: CC 3268 &R

Computer Information System Integration (S)
Qualification Certification
— Level 3 Qualification

GHEBESRGEREERE)
-E=RAEE

This certificate was granted by the Ministry of Information
Industry of the PRC Government
HREHTRBAE2ELBRE
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Corporate Information

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LAl Yam Ting, Ready (Chief Executive Officer)
LAU Ming Chi, Edward

LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HU Liankui (Chairman)
WANG Weihang
CHEN Zhaohui
Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH
(resigned as Chairman and director on 20th October 2009)
KUO Chi Yung, Peter
(resigned as Deputy Chairman and director on 20th October 2009)
MOO Kwee Chong, John
(resigned as director on 20th October 2009)
Michael SHOVE
(resigned as director on 20th October 2009)
Darren John COLLINS
(resigned as director on 20th October 2009)
WANG Yung Chang, Kenneth
(resigned as director on 20th October 2009)
Andrew John ANKER
(resigned as director on 20th October 2009)
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Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH
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(RZBZNFTA-THBEREIEERES)
MOO Kwee Chong, John
(RZZENFTA-THEHERESR)

Michael SHOVE

(RZZBZNFTA-THEHERESR)
Darren John COLLINS
(RZZENFTA-THEHERESR)
WANG Yung Chang, Kenneth
(RZZBRNFTA-THEHERESR)
Andrew John ANKER
(RZZENFTA-_THEHERESR)
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Corporate Information

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

YOUNG Meng Ying
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XU Peng

CHEUNG Man, Stephen

(retired as director effective from the conclusion of the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 26th August 2009)

HON Sheung Tin, Peter

(resigned as director on 20th October 2009)
LI King Hang, Richard

(resigned as director on 20th October 2009)

SECRETARY
LAU Ming Chi, Edward
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Appleby Management (Bermuda) Ltd

Argyle House, 41a Cedar Avenue,

Hamilton HM12, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 771

REGISTERED OFFICE
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
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Corporate Information
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Appleby Management (Bermuda) Ltd
Argyle House, 41a Cedar Avenue,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda
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Financial Calendar

RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT
FanE

First quarter 26th August 2009
E—FFE —ETAFENAZTH

DIVIDEND
kB

09 Special dividend payment (92.0 HK cents per share) 10th September 2009
R RIS (= A%92.0781L) —ZENFNA+H

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
LEmERARE:

P

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
BEREEXE
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Financial Summary

RESULTS
E

Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-ZF —ETNEF ZEEN\FE ZEELF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T FExT FAT FAT FAT
Continuing operations FEEEER
Revenue WA 1,329,982 1,360,988 1,315,060 1,205,524 1,052,105
Profit before income tax B FT1S BT A1) 53,617 43,262 81,639 56,282 46,472
Income tax expense ST FI sz (10,449) (9,423) (11,786) (7,305) (8,823)
Profit from continuing REFELEER
operations S A 43,168 33,839 69,853 48,977 37,649
Discontinued operations T #& [H & #7&
Profit from discontinued REBRIEEEEK
operations S A 72,598 8,812 6,300 4,583 6,830
Profit for the year FREF 115,766 42,651 76,153 53,560 44,479

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EEREIE
=
As at 31st March
R=A=+—H

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

—E-ZF —ZTTNF ZZTT)N\F ZETHF ZEERF

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FHT FAT FHT FHET

Total assets BEE 830,861 883,562 994,995 892,453 786,349

Total liabilities BeE (425,388) (352,066) (426,874) (368,498) (299,535)

405,473 531,496 568,121 523,955 486,814

Equity attributable to equity A EIRRAIEA A
holders of the Company FRAE AR A RE = 405,473 531,496 568,121 523,955 486,814
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Chairman’s Statement

HU Liankui
Chairman

HBE
E

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present
the annual report of Automated Systems Holdings Limited (“ASL” or the
“Group”) for the financial year ended 31st March 2010 for the first time as
the Chairman of the Board since my appointment.

The Group recorded revenue of HK$1,330.0 million from the continuing
operations after the Group had disposed the GMS business to our former
controlling shareholder, Computer Sciences Corporation (“CSC”), during
the year. Although there was a slight drop of revenue of 2.3% compared
with the previous year, the Group managed to maintain stable growth as
a result of the effective costs control. Profit before income tax from the
continuing operations was HK$53.6 million, an increase of HK$10.3 million
or 23.9% compared to HK$43.3 million last year. The Group recorded a
net profit of HK$115.8 million in the year under review.

The Group continues to enjoy a healthy financial position and the cash
balance at the end of year was HK$280.0 million.

The financial year of 2010 was a milestone for the Group as it marked the
beginning of a new era of ASL and Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd
(“Teamsun”) (SHSE stock code: 600410), our ultimate holding company.

During the year, Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited (“‘Hong Kong
Teamsun”), a wholly-owned Hong Kong subsidiary of Teamsun acquired
203,532,996 shares of ASL resulting from a conditional Share Purchase
Agreement (“SPA”) with the group of CSC which was completed in
September 2009. The Group also entered into the Global Account
Transfer Agreement forming part of GAC Special Deal Agreements with
the group of CSC which was completed in August 2009.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB/ R EEABRAT

AARKREZEMAZREDRAGEEAERAR( B
PEG IS AEE NDBEE -2 —ZFF=A=+—HIF
MREEZ2FR > TREAAEBEHAETELTHR
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AEBRERALERRKEEREELS TAEEZ A1
12 1% % 3 Computer Sciences Corporation ([ CSC |)
& SR 15 15 1B 45 & 2 H5 A 1,330,000,000/8 7T © BESA
R 2 4F HE BRI A BS AR 40 2.3% ¢ B R B B HI K
K AEEBUEEHERHBTESR - RERBELE
15 2 R ET1S 5 A& A1) /53,600,000 7T + B A 4F
43,300,000 7T Eb B 42 010,300,00078 7L 24 23.9% ©
REEEFEA - N5 EES4EH]115,800,000% 7T ©

AEBBBEERRR MR - NERZBSHR
/280,000,000 T °

—E-TURFERAEEN —ERIZE ARTRE
E BB RS AR B RAREBR R R R EBRK
MO ARAR(TEBRK]) (LEESFR MK
A5 - 600410)BRFTALTT ©

RER » ERBERAEH(BE)BRAR([EBEBX
R BEAEBAKERSZ2ANBAR))HA—HHA
CSCEBR_ZTNFNATHZ B IEHER =
([ B Pt | ) B A 203,532,9960% B 8 Z I © A&
EEINECSCE@MAIIRIREEZ W - EAR
HEEBEFPRR S WD WERZZTZTNEF
J\ATER °
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With Teamsun’s support, the Group will actively seek for expansion in

the Asia market through organic and inorganic growth. The extensive
business coverage of Teamsun in PRC also expedites the Group to further
advance into the PRC market and to offer more comprehensive service

to our growing customers. Together with the resources of Teamsun, we
consider it a springboard for ourselves and Teamsun to go beyond the
Greater China region and become one of the top IT service providers in Asia
Pacific Region.

The Group continues to enjoy numerous internationally recognised
standards including International Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO”),
Capability Maturity Model Integration (“CMMI”), Six Sigma and ISO/
International Electrotechnical Commission (“IEC”) 20000 Standard (ITIL).
These recognitions represent our faithful commitment to quality service
and customer care.

As well as being one of the top service providers, we continue to excel
with our partners and were honoured with a number of awards from our
partners during the year including “The Highest Revenue Growth CSA
2009 Award” by Citrix, “Cisco Top Select Partner” by Cisco and “Best
Gold Partner 2009” by Check Point. The Group’s subsidiary, Automated
Systems (HK) Limited, continued to be recognised by researchers and
analysts in the region. In 2009, Automated Systems (HK) Limited was one
of the top 5 IT services players in Hong Kong for the 2nd consecutive
year, according to IDC Asia/Pacific Semiannual IT Services Tracker, 2H
20009.

The Group continues to retain strong ties and form new partnership with
renowned IT vendors such as Check Point and Avaya. Whilst Check Point
is a leading service provider in network security worldwide, being the only
vendor to deliver total security for networks, data and endpoints, unified
under one management framework, Avaya is a global leader in enterprise
communication system which provides unified communications, contact
centers, and related services directly and through its channel partners to
leading businesses and organizations around the world. We will continue
to enjoy a fruitful partnership with Check Point and Avaya in the near
future.

With the support of the leading IT vendors, we are able to enhance our
service offerings with extended coverage across Hong Kong, Macau,
Taiwan, PRC and Thailand. Furthermore, the Group will take advantage of
Teamsun’s vast and well founded vendor network to draw the attention of
potential customers who intend to further their business in PRC.

On behalf of the Board, | thank the management and staff for their
dedication and significant contribution during the transition period of
merger and their continuation to achieve satisfactory results. | also
take this opportunity to thank our loyal clients, business partners and
shareholders for their continued support.

In conclusion, | thank my fellow directors for their whole-hearted co-
operation, support and valuable contribution.

HU Liankui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25th May 2010
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

14
The Group is now free to

expand in the Asia region and

we will proactively seek out any
opportunities for regional growth
supported by our solid foundations.

\

KR &R T RTEE
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B - BB LEMREATRE R
MR oy

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Results

The Group recorded revenue of HK$1,330.0 million for the year

ended 31st March 2010 from the continuing operations, excluding the
discontinued operations which arose from the disposal of GMS business
in August 2009, lower by HK$31.0 million or 2.3% compared to FYQ9.
The revenue contributed from the continuing operations of the Group for
the last quarter in FY10 amounted to HK$398.0 million, which is higher by
8.1% compared to the corresponding period in FY09.

The product sales and service revenue from continuing operations of the
Group for FY10 was HK$814.0 million and HK$516.0 million, decreased
by 4.8% and increased by 2.0% respectively compared with FY09. The
decrease in products sales was the main attributor to the decease in
revenue in FY10. Product sales and service revenue contributed 61.2%
and 38.8% to total revenue from the continuing operations respectively.
Commercial and public sector sales in FY10 contributed 46.4% and
53.6% to revenue from continuing operations respectively as compared to
48.4% and 51.6% last year.

LAI Yam Ting, Ready
Chief Executive Officer
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Ut A %1,330,000,0008 7T + _TTNHREFE
% 4>31,000,0008 7 82.3% ° R =T — T B B F
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398,000,000/ 7T + 8 = T T J1 0 B 4F [Z [/ B8 n
8.1% o

—E-TUBFEREAEERELEEBZED
& K IR 75 U8 A £814,000,0007% 7T K 516,000,000
BT RZZEZTNHBEED RIR D 4.8% KIE
20% ° ARARZE—THERFEZHEHZRD 2 E
ZRBIEEMHEE NE - EmIHE RBKAD
B ETEBIIAB1.2% K%38.8% - AERAE
BEHES NG =T —THRFE 2 AL S EB
AN46.4%5:53.6% * MEFERID BIME48.4%K%51.6% °
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For FY10, the Group recorded a profit of HK$115.8 million. That includes
the post-tax gain on disposal from the GMS business of HK$69.1 million
and the operational gain from the GMS business of HK$3.5 million,
which is HK$63.8 million higher than the previous year. Profit before
income tax from continuing operations for the fourth quarter in FY10 was
HK$28.8 million, higher by 84.8% compared to the corresponding period
last year. Profit before income tax from continuing operations for FY10
was HK$53.6 million, increased by 23.9% compared to FY09. With the
effective costs control of the Group, the decrease in revenue was off-set
by the reduction of direct costs and general expenses and increase in
profit during the year under review.

The profit before and after income tax of the discontinued operations for
FY10 was HK$4.2 million and HK$3.5 million respectively, compared to
HK$10.6 million and HK$8.8 million of last year.

As of 31st March 2010, the order book balance was approximately
HK$575.3 million. The cash of the Group is approximately HK$280.0
million and the Group’s working capital ratio stood at 1.63:1. The Group
continues to maintain a healthy balance sheet and no debt was recorded
during the year under review.

Business Review
The table below outlines a number of significant contracts and tenders

that were awarded to the Group during the year ended 31st March 2010.

Annual Report 2009/10 3§
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
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575,300,000 7t ° AR B 2 3] € 4 /280,000,000
BIT - MEEE R R RN .63:1 - AEERCIE
FREBHFRENEEBMGBR  WEKSAE -
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AEERBE-T-BFZA=+—ALFEEET
Z B EBAMFURR TR

Hong Kong &i&

Infrastructure Business

EExH%

A leading international bank
—ZBBIRIRTT

A leading Hong Kong-based airline

—UEEREN Z ERMERT]

Solution Business

R RER

Hong Kong Examinations and
Assessment Authority

FRERLNER

A government department

— BRI

An approximately HK$10 million dollar contract for

the provision of enterprise servers with maintenance
services

B{E£710,000,000/8 T2 & #) - 1R ERFARSS K4
ERTS

A multi-million dollar IT infrastructure project for the
provision of new IBM POWERY servers, various
hardware and database upgrade services
BEHASETZAMBBREZER  RESKHNIBM
POWERT7AIfRES « SIEME M R BURE IR ARTS

An over HK$50 million contract for the provision of
certain professional services, hardware and software
for the development of the Hong Kong Diploma of
Secondary Education (“HKDSE”) Examination System
—IE%150,000,0007C 2 &4 » IREFE—LFZRE - i
T REHNEREBHERERAZRS

Enhancement on a Human Resources Management
Information System

RITANEREREAZRS
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Services Business
BR % 7%

Hong Kong Housing Authority
gl%%ﬁ SZ = El

Hospital Authority
BREER

A government department

— I ERFI

Provision of 3-year Information Technology (IT)
Development Services amounted over HK$40 million

et =FEMPHRERE R - E{5%40,000,000/8 7T

A 36-month tender for the provision of Hardware
Maintenance Services of NT Servers, Personal
Computers, Printers and Related Peripherals (Category
A), effective from 1st October 2009 and has an value of
approximately HK$20 million

REAB6IE A 2 1% - IRENTRIARES - EAEM -« #TE]
AR R E 2 R () - iRiEE =
TTNF+ A —BRER - E{E4720,000,0007% 7T

A multi-million dollar contract for the provision of
maintenance and support services of a e-leave system
BEFAEETZAR  A— B LREEERFRMt##E
R IR IR

‘

Overseas ;F5p

PRC
HE

Macau
P

Thailand
EE]

Taiwan

=)

MTR Corporation (Shenzhen) Limited
BEERERBECRINERAE

Guangzhou Administration for Industry and

Commerce Bureau Panyu Substation

BT IETHEERERDH

A premier destination resort
—ZZEREM

University of Macau
BPIRE

Bank for Agriculture And Agricultural
Cooperatives

REREMEES EHIRTT

Ocean Glass Public Company Limited

BFREBR AR

An information & communications
services company

—EUBARB A F

Fu Jen Catholic University
REHEHCKRE

Provision of 6-month onsite helpdesk support for 300
users

#3008 AR ERHINE A B kB & SERRS

Implementation of desktop virtualisation solution with
3-year maintenance services

B mER AR T R XA =F 2 EIRTE

Supply of all desktop equipments for the gaming tables
of a casino in a new premier resort with maintenance
services

REERE R IREISHBIRER N ATE R H S
A8 I M AR TS

Provision of storage, switches and related software to
boost operational efficiency

R - SRR RARRIEU A AR 2B R

A multi-million dollar contract for the provision of 1,400
units of desktop computers and 650 units of printers
BEHKEETZAK - 2H1,4008 RE B 6506
FTENH

Provision of desktop computers and notebooks

RESEERMELAEN

Supply of enterprise server, storage hardware and
backup software with 3-year maintenance services

for the provision of secure e-service of a government
department

RECERARS - FEEMS - BHEG - RRH=F
ZHEERTS - AR —BUFEBFIR 2 2 B R

Provision of network infrastructure device to enhance
network stability and servers for server virtualisation
UK ERRBARARRIBTEN - WiREFARSEE
fRARESESE
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With the worldwide economy set on a slow yet progressive path to
recovery, the Group continued to perform steadily during the year under
review. The Group was continually awarded with sizable contracts in the
[T infrastructure, solution and services business in FY10.

The Group continued its expansion in the Greater China region during
FY10. Followed by the opening of Shenzhen office in December 2009,

we expanded our sales team in January 2010 to capture IT demand of
the financial services and insurance (“FSI”) sector in the Greater China
region. The expansion was further fueled by the Group’s stated strategy
to promote cross-territories business, which the Group was able to secure
sizable contracts and widen customer portfolios in the PRC market in the
year under review. The expanded portfolios included new PRC customers
from various sectors and Hong Kong-based and overseas corporations
with investment in the mainland, such as MTR Corporation (Shenzhen)
Limited, Sainsbury’s Asia Shanghai Limited, 2242 &4 CGRYI) AR A &
etc.

More synergies created between our ultimate holding company, Beijing
Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd (“Teamsun”) and the Group during the
year under review. In December 2009, Teamsun and the Group together
provided IT infrastructure including servers, software, storage and
networking devices to a leading Hong-Kong based corporation for a

core business application. In March 2010, Teamsun and the Group were
awarded with a networking project from one of the largest independent
banks in Hong Kong, which also awarded a million-plus dollars deal to the
two companies together earlier in October 2009.

Completion of Share Purchase Agreement, GAC
Special Deal Agreements, General Offer and Option
Offer

Reference is made to the Joint Announcements and the Circular, joint
announcements dated 29th September 2009 and 20th October 2009 and
circular dated 29th September 2009 made by the Company and Teamsun
Technology (HK) Limited (“Hong Kong Teamsun”) and the Company’s
announcement dated 17th July 2009. Hong Kong Teamsun is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Teamsun. Capitalised terms used in the section shall
have the same meanings as those in the above announcements and
circulars unless otherwise defined.

Teamsun, our existing ultimate holding company, acquired 203,532,996
shares of the Company pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement with
the group of Computer Sciences Corporation (“CSC”), our then ultimate
holding company and the General Offer. The Share Purchase Agreement
was completed in September 2009, and the General Offer and Option
Offer were closed in October 2009.

The Group also entered into the GAC Special Deal Agreements with the
group of CSC. The Global Account Transfer Agreement forming part of
GAC Special Deal Agreements was completed in August 2009.
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Outlook and Prospects

The Group will continue its stated strategy to promote cross-
territories business with an aim to make Greater China our focal point
of development. Under the Territorial Termination Agreement and

the Business Referral Termination Agreement, the Group is now free
to expand in the Asia region and we will proactively seek out any
opportunities for regional growth supported by our solid foundation.

In response to the rising IT demands resulted from the accelerated
economic and financial cooperation between Hong Kong and Mainland,
the Group has opened customer service centers in Shanghai, Beijing,
Hangzhou, and Shenyang in early 2010. Together with our offices in
Shenzhen and Guangzhou, the Group will be able to provide quality
services with expanded coverage in PRC.

As well as our interests elsewhere in the nation, we also maintain a keen
focus on business prospects in the Pearl River Delta and surrounding
region which is expected to be boosted by favourable policies under the
newly signed Framework Agreement on Hong Kong/ Guangdong Co-
operation, which is described as a key to the mainland door. According
to agreement, it will enhance Hong Kong’s position as an international
financial centre and expedite Guangdong’s financial services development
to build an international financial hub with Hong Kong taking the lead,
supported by resources and services in the Pearl River Delta cities. These
policies also encourage financial institutions to expand their presence

in both areas through the renminbi cross-border trade settlement pilot
scheme. A number of banks and eligible financial institutions supporting
renminbi cross-border trade will expand and cover more geographies and
industries in the two places. In view of this, the Group’s expanded FSI
sales team will actively explore the mounting opportunities in the Pearl
River Delta region.

The Group will also closely monitor the broader ties between Taiwan

and Mainland. We plan to expand our operations in Taipei to seek new
opportunities expected arising from the signed cross-strait financial
supervisory cooperation MOU (memorandum of understanding) (FR

e R ES IR & ERE R = 8%) and proposed Economic Cooperation
Framework Agreement in order to meet the rising IT demand from Taiwan
corporations entering into China and vice versa.

Looking ahead, we aim at creating more synergies with Teamsun and
riding on its vast support network, business coverage, technical expertise
and well-developed vendor network to fuel our growth in the Greater
China region. Meanwhile, we will maintain effective cost structure and
tighten our IT vendor relationship for services level enhancement. We are
confident that we will be one of the leading IT service providers in the
Greater China region.
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Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31st March 2010, the Group’s total assets of HK$830.9 million were
financed by current liabilities of HK$414.3 million, non-current liabilities of
HK$11.1 million and shareholders’ equity of HK$405.5 million. The Group

had a working capital ratio of approximately 1.63:1.

As at 31st March 2010, the Group had an aggregate composite banking
facilities from banks of approximately HK$29.5 million (31st March

2009: HK$130.1 million which was guaranteed by the group of CSC).
The performance bond issued by the Group to customers as security of
contract was approximately HK$29.5 million as at 31st March 2010 (31st
March 2009: HK$25.5 million). The Group's gearing ratio was zero (31st
March 2009: zero) as at 31st March 2010.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally financed its operations with internally generated
resources and credit facilities provided by banks. Bank facilities available
for the Group include trust receipt loans, overdrafts and term loans. The
interest rates of most of these will be fixed by reference to the respective
countries’ Interbank Offer Rate. The bank deposits are mainly in Hong
Kong dollars and United States dollars (“US dollars”).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in US dollars and Hong
Kong dollars. Foreign exchange exposure of the Group will continue to

be minimal as long as the policy of the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region to link the Hong Kong dollars to the US
dollars remains in effect. There was no material exposure to fluctuations in
exchange rates, and therefore no related hedging financial instrument was
applied during the year ended 31st March 2010.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st March 2010, bank deposits held as security for banking
facilities amounted to approximately HK$29.5 million. As at 31st March
2009, corporate guarantee by CSC group as security for banking
facilities amounted to approximately HK$130.1 million. The performance
bond issued by the Group to customers as security of contract was
approximately HK$29.5 million as at 31st March 2010 (31st March 2009:
HK$25.5 million). Corporate guarantee to vendors as security for goods
supplied to the Group amounted to approximately HK$51.5 million as at
31st March 2010 (31st March 2009: HK$51.8 million). The amount utilised
against goods supplied as at 31st March 2010 which was secured by
the corporate guarantee amounted to approximately HK$0.7 million (31st
March 2009: HK$2.3 million).
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Capital Commitment
As at 31st March 2010, the contracted capital commitments of the Group
were HK$1.4 million (31st March 2009: HK$0.3 million).

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year, the five largest customers and single largest customer of
the Group accounted for approximately 20.1% and 4.5%, respectively, of

the Group’s revenue. The five largest suppliers and single largest supplier

of the Group accounted for approximately 37.6% and 11.4%, respectively,

of the Group’s purchases.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) have an
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

Employee and Remuneration Policies
As at 31st March 2010, the Group, excluding its associates, employed
1,553 permanent and contract staff in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan,

mainland China and Thailand. The Group remunerates its employees

based on their performance, working experience and the prevailing market
conditions. Bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee

benefits include mandatory provident fund, insurance, medical coverage

and share options scheme.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 13th July
2010 to 16th July 2010, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the entitiement
to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited at
26/F Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 12th July 2010.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st March 2010, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters including the review of the
unaudited annual results.

By Order of the Board
LAl Yam Ting, Ready
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25th May 2010
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Episodes of the Year

EHEM EETHE
"_11'.\

-

A1

. New era of ASL — Teamsun becomes the . ASL introduces business intelligence solutions

controlling shareholder to delegates from government departments
BERGHFRR — EBREKAIERIRR BERMABABPINR RN AEED LR
FE

. ASL receives the “CAPITAL CEO Supreme . ASL promotes virtualization solutions to
Brands Award 2009” customers in Macau
B &) 24t 4R & CAPITAL CEO Supreme BB RRFIRPIEFHERER AR R

Brands Award 2009
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Episodes of the Year

. ASL Macau demonstrates to media our

. ASL Taiwan introduces advanced data

market-proven Baccarat Score Board System warehousing solution to SMEs
BB RARHRPIR FREERTETISE TN BEBRMHNAERRRT/NEIEEHER A
BRERBES fEREART R

' ASL celebrates the opening of new office in . ASL presents the latest knowledge
Shenzhen management solutions and services to

EEES -7l bk ks enterprises
HBERRALEM AR BEIRARR R
N B
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

HONG KONG CUSTOMER
FEER

Government BIFF
A government department

— AR

A government department

— U BT

A government department

—BURFHP

Hospital Authority

BiEEm

Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority

EFRERALNER

Hong Kong Housing Authority
ERBEEREY

Education # &

Stewards Pooi Kei College

BRI EER

The Chinese University of Hong Kong
EBF AL

SCOPE OF WORK
SHEE

A multi-million dollar contract for the provision of maintenance and support
services of an e-leave system

EBEBABITZAH A LEMEE R SR E N SRR

A multi-million dollar contract for the supply, delivery, installation,
commissioning and maintenance of computer equipments, covering over
2,000 personal computers

BEBBEITZEL - RH8iB2,000 HPEAEMMERE - Eix - 28 - 5l
BB M

A multi-million dollar tender for the provision of IT infrastructure to enhance
a web-based procurement system

EEZBETZRE  RHEAMBEZNETRERERS

A 36-month tender for the provision of Hardware Maintenance Services

of NT Servers, Personal Computers, Printers and Related Peripherals
(Category A), effective from 1 October 2009 and has an value of
approximately HK$20 million

RHIBBME A Z1%1F - IR INTRIARES ~ EAEM - TEIR RIBREEEER
ZREMEERT (PR BERBE —TTAFTA—BREN  BED
20,000,000/ 7T

An over HK$50 million contract for the provision of certain professional
services, hardware and software for the development of the Hong Kong
Diploma of Secondary Education (“HKDSE”) Examination System
—IH#150,000,0008 T2 A 4) « It — L HE R - B RRGUERE
BEREXCREH RS

Provision of 3-year Information Technology Development Services
amounted over HK$40 million

R =F 2 BRI ERR - E{EH1540,000,0007 7T
Provision of voice recognition system

REESTHERRS

Provision of 10GE network infrastructure upgrade with 3-year maintenance
services

REIOGERBER IR R RHI =5 2 ME RS

Implementation of server consolidation project
EiefRRBESIER
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HONG KONG CUSTOMER
FEER
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

SCOPE OF WORK
SHEE

Financial Services and Insurance £5tiRFE R IRIE

A leading international bank

—ERERIRTT

One of the largest independent banks in Hong Kong

BRHP —WRAZEIRT

The Prudential Assurance Company Limited

RERBRRER AT

Telecommunications E:f|

A leading mobile network operator
—TERPEIREED

A telecommunication services provider

—ERBHER

Transportation &

Chu Kong Shipping Enterprises (Holdings) Company
Limited

IMBEE(EE)ERAF

Orient Overseas Container Line Ltd.

RITBINEEMERR AT

General Commerce B2

A boutique hotel
— B
An operating company of a leading Hong-Kong based

multinational conglomerate
—RUEBAEM T EERMEERNZEBENT

An approximately HK$10 million contract for the provision of enterprise
servers with maintenance services

{B{E4710,000,000/8TT 2 & 47 - 21 AR A AR=S N 4 AR 7

Provision of on-site help desk support

REEMRE G IERYE

Provision of maintenance service of database software and middleware for
their core applications

REROERRR 2 BREE M R R R E RS

A multi-million dollar contract for the supply of software, storage,
networking products and 10 units of Sun enterprise servers
BEHZABTZAL  HESRMT  &FF  @BERLTASUnER
AR =S

A multi-million dollar deal for the supply of servers and storage products to
upgrade its 3G mobile services

BEZBELLRS  HERARERFEFER AT EIGRERS

Provision of on-site maintenance services for a ticketing system

R ERBRRERHE A E R

A multi-million dollar project to improve cost efficiency by upgrading
networked storage system to implement virtualized information
infrastructure

BEHEETZAR  BRRTEBCRTRRAERERENERE
AZE R AN aw

Provision of Front Office Solution
AT A RRT 5
Provision of ASL Human Resources Management System

REBBHEBANERERFRL
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

OVERSEAS CUSTOMER
BINEF

Mainland China =h [k pE

A new serviced apartment of a leading global
corporation

—HKERBERAZ —@HRBET

A judiciary department

—alEEDFT

Guangzhou Administration for Industry and Commerce
Bureau Panyu Substation
BT IETRERRESS B

Guangzhou Panyu Association for Self-employed
Laborers

ENTEREERSSHEHS

MTR Corporation (Shenzhen) Limited
BEEE ORI BRAF]

Sainsbury’s Asia Shanghai Limited
BAFEM(E)BRAT]
Macau j&P§

A government department

— T EBPY

Marina Bay Sands Pte Ltd.
EEEEDRUABRAT

The University of Macau

RPTRE

Automated Systems Holdings Limited HEIR A EBBR AT

SCOPE OF WORK
SHEE

Provision of an integrated hospitality solution

REVEE MOBEERRT R

Implementation of a customized enterprise content management system
BT HEEANDTERRR

Implementation of desktop virtualization solution with 3-year maintenance
services

it REEB LR R R BI=F 2 ## R

Implementation of thin client solution with 3-year maintenance services

EERPHEBRARR B =F 2 HERY

Implementation of thin client solution with 3-year maintenance services

BHEEPHIRRT R R R =F 2 &R

Provision of 6-month onsite help desk support for 300 users

#3004 A FREINE B B skB & SRR

Provision of IT infrastructure with onsite support services
REEARREEZRE M IERSE

Provision of IT infrastructure for server consolidation and backup upgrade
AR EZARA RRS RIEAHEHD

Provision of Baccarat Score Board System
REARERERR

Provision of storage, switches and related software to boost operational
efficiency

TR - SRR RABRIE I AR 2B R
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OVERSEAS CUSTOMER
BIVER

Taiwan & /&

A leading IT products manufacturer

—EIREMPRERRER

A Taiwan-listed multinational IT company

—RBELTZEREERBHRA R

A Taiwan-listed transportation company

—R A LT EHAT

Fu Jen Catholic University

REHHCKRE

Thailand ZFRE

Bangkok Commercial Asset Management Co., Ltd.

Bank for Agriculture And Agricultural Cooperatives

TR R ENREAFLRTT

Ocean Glass Public Company Limited
BFBEERAT

T. C. Pharmaceutical Industries Co., Ltd.
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RENFFEZEBZEHR

Major Contracts Secured in the Year

SCOPE OF WORK
SHEE

Provision of servers and storage products with 3-year 7x24 maintenance
services

REFRSE BREQRAR=F10 Z T2 #ERE

Provision of servers, storage and software products for server virtualization
and storage consolidation

RFARSEER L FIFRAREMRS  BEAEMES

Provision of IT infrastructure with 3-year maintenance services for the set
up of a new container system

RFEAMBRERZ MR =FZEERT - IR —EFNERMEFRL
Provision of network infrastructure devices to enhance network stability

and servers for server virtualization

REBEEEZREARTERIZEN - WIRERARSERRRERE

Provision of storage products

RHEFE®

A multi-million dollar contract for the provision of 1,400 units of desktop
computers and 650 units of printers

BEHAEILZEH 21,4008 KEEM L6505 1T EN

Provision of desktop computers and notebooks
REHIEBEEECAER

A network upgrade and security enhancement project to support a

business management application

BETTERE PR L 2RTIER - UXEREBEREMREN
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Profile of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Automated Systems Holdings Limited HEIR K EBBR AT

PITES

Mr. LAl Yam Ting, Ready

Chief Executive Officer (formerly known as

Managing Director) of the Company

e Aged 57

e Graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor of Science degree (Honours) in 1976

e General Manager of Hong Kong Operations of the Group
from 1991 to 2002

e Joined the Group in 1976 and appointed as director of the

BEERE
FATZTHER (HEAESAER)

o RFATLR

o R—NAERFEERNBEERXARE 55
BE(RE)BT BN

o R—NN—FE-ZT_FRAKEH
BRI IE

o R—AEARFMBAREERER-NALF

Company in 1997 BEZEARRRIZES
Mr. LAU Ming Chi, Edward 282558

Chief Financial Officer (formerly known as Finance

and Administration Controller) and Company

Secretary of the Company

o Aged 47

e Graduated from Lingnan College (now known as Lingnan
University) with a Honours Diploma in Accountancy
in 1984

e Associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants

FAT UM BEE(RMEAMBRITH
BE)RATHE

o MEM+ 5%

o M—NN\HFEXNERER(REERT
REB)  FEGHBRER

s BAEGIAGZER

s BEFHARGIMAG2ERER

o R—NNRFMBEBAEBRR—ANLEF

e Fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified EZTEAEARGIZES
Accountants in the United Kingdom

e Joined the Group in 1996 and appointed as director of the
Company in 1997

Mr. LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon PENEHE

e Aged 49 o REM+NBR

e Graduated from the California State University, Long
Beach, the United States of America with a Bachelor of
Science Degree in Business Computer Method and a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration

o Chief executive officer and the co-founder of AsiaSoft
Company Limited

e Appointed as director of the Company in 2009

o FEMEFIMMMIABEENR B8
ITHSMEAEETEMRTIHEEETS
fiz

e AsiaSoft Company Limited 7 B 42 £k 3%
BE-IEIN

e RETZTNFREZTAEARZES
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Profile of Directors

Mr. HU Liankui
Chairman of the Company

Aged 59

Graduated from Tsinghua University, PRC with a Master’s
Degree in Management Engineering

Chairman and director of Beijing Teamsun Technology

Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”), the ultimate holding company of the

HBtESRE

EATZER

« BEAHAF

o BERREEEA
2y

o REEY BEERA T REBRARL
R BRAR ([ EBRAK ) EE RIS

BAEEEIEET

Group o IREBBRMEEREARTESR
e Chairman of Beijing Huasun Mingtian Technology Co. Ltd. s RZZETNFREZERTRFRIZES
e Appointed as director of the Company in 2009
Mr. WANG Weihang F4EmSTE
e Aged 43 o BFEM+=755

Graduated from Tsinghua University, PRC and from the
Information and Electronic Engineering Department of
Zhejiang University, PRC with an Executive Master’s
Degree in Business Administration and a Master’s
Degree in Semi-Conductor Materials and Microelectronic
Technology respectively

Vice chairman and president and director of Teamsun
Sole director of Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited, the
immediate holding company of the Group

Awarded as 7 B #1{4 E Z A4 B E R (China Software
Industry Outstanding Entrepreneur Laureate®) and A [t
TFEZETHE) AYD (China Software Industry Prestige Award
Laureate®) by China Software Industry Association in 2009
Appointed as director of the Company in 2009

o BERPEBERBRFENIAZES
REFIRER  DRHARRERAR
TrERET 8 R gr =t alE
RATR T2

o EFANZBEIERRREANES

o AEEEERERAREBRARMZ(EL)
BRAFM—EE

s RCBTNFRPELRMTEHSRES
B EXGHEER NP BEEERED
@A%

. SRNFRERERARFIZES

Mr. CHEN Zhaohui

Aged 33

Graduated from Peking University, PRC with a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration

Chief financial officer of Teamsun

Certified public accountant (intermediate level) of the PRC
Appointed as director of the Company in 2009

PREAESEAE

. BE=t+=R

o RERRRILTAS -
By

. ERERZHBBE

o PERFHERIHED

« REETNERETAAATZEE

FEIEEERL
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Profile of Directors

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
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FEHPITES

Mr. Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH

(Resigned on 20th October 2009)

Former Chairman of the Company

e Aged72

e Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and the Marketing Institute of
Singapore

e Appointed as director of the Company in 1997

Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH

&

(RZZZNF T A=+ HER)

BERATIZER

o MFLT+5%

o HSENEFBHTE ISR AS RTINS
MHER2EFRGE

o R—hNtERZTARRRZES

Mr. KUO Chi Yung, Peter

(Resigned on 20th October 2009)

Former Deputy Chairman of the Company

e Aged 65

e Graduated from Ohio University, USA with a Bachelor of
Science degree and a Bachelor of Arts degree in 1968

e Joined the Group in 1974 and appointed as director of the
Company in 1997

BHBFXE

(RZZETNF+AZTHEH)

EERATIZEIER

o BMENTHR

o R—AANNFRERERBZRAZL - 5
BB+ KRBT

o R—NEHFEMBEAEBMER—NNELF
EETARRRCES

Mr. MOO Kwee Chong, John

(Resigned on 20th October 2009)

e Aged 70

e Graduated from Melbourne University, Australia with a
Bachelor of Electronic Engineering (Honours) degree in
1961

e Founding member of the Group in 1973 and appointed as
director of the Company in 1997

MOO Kwee Chong, John

v 3

(RZZZNF+AZ+HER)

o WFLTIR

o R—NRN—FRENBMNERAKE 5
BEFIRB(REB)B2L2

s R—NE=FEIPRAEERR—NIEF
BEZERRRARIZES

Mr. Michael SHOVE

(Resigned on 20th October 2009)

e Aged 53

e Graduated from Kingston University, London, United
Kingdom with a Higher National Diploma in Business

e President of Asia Group of Computer Sciences
Corporation (“CSC”), the former ultimate holding company
of the Group*

e Director of CSA Holdings Ltd (“CSA”), the former
immediate holding company of the Group*

e Appointed as director of the Company in 2007

Michael SHOVESt &

(RZZTNF+AZTHER)

e BERA+=

o EXNABBRASIEAZE  HERES
FERHUE R

o K& B 2 Al & & £ & 2 & Computer
Sciences Corporation([CSC ) 2 25/ &
B

o NE[E 7 B E ¥ 1Z & A F)CSA Holdings
Ltdz

o RIZETHFREERADRIZESE
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FHITES
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Profile of Directors

Mr. Darren John COLLINS
(Resigned on 20th October 2009)

Aged 41

Graduated from the University of New South Wales,
Australia with a Bachelor of Commerce

Member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia (ICAA)

Vice-president, Finance, Asia of CSC*

Director of CSA*

Appointed as alternate director of the Company in 2004
Ceased as alternate director and appointed as director of
the Company in 2006

Darren John COLLINSS 4

(RZEZNFTAZ+HER)

o BFEMN+—5%

o EEXRMFTREERRGTAE
T

o SENEFETEEEIA

o CSCEmMEE 1548

o CSAZEE"

s N_ETNNFRZEAARRZEEES

e RIZET A FTHETERIESRERZR
BRARIZES

FERBFRE

8

Z&8

ﬁ*

B

Mr. WANG Yung Chang, Kenneth
(Resigned on 20th October 2009)

Aged 63

Graduated from Southern lllinois University and Fu-Jen
University with a Master of Computer Sciences degree
and a Bachelor of History degree respectively

Former vice-president and general manager, China Group
of CSC*

Appointed as director of the Company in 2006

WANG Yung Chang, Kenneth

K&

(R=ZZZNF+A=THER)

o BENTZR

o EENHEPANBEAZRBICAE - DRI
BIRIZR T B REE S T2

o B{ECSC H Bl Bl £, K g~

s REZBBRFREZERRARZES

Mr. Andrew John ANKER
(Resigned on 20th October 2009)

Aged 42
Vice-president, Managed Services, Asia of CSC*

Appointed as director of the Company in 2006

Andrew John ANKERFt 4
(RZZEZNFTAZ+HER)

o WFM+ 5%

o CSCriiM@EBsERRISRIEE"
e RIZETRFRZERTRRIZES
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Profile of Directors

INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. YOUNG Meng Ying

e Aged 52

e Graduated from University of South Australia, Australia
and Monash University, Australia with a Bachelor’s Degree
in Business Administration Management and a Master’s
Degree in Practising Accounting respectively

e Director of Sun & Young Business Advisory Limited

e Certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants

e Certified practicing accountant of CPA Australia

e Associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators

e  Committee member of the Public Practice Committee with
CPA Australia — Hong Kong China Division

e Appointed as director of the Company in 2009

BaETt
o MERT R
o F 3 PVE M B R KX 2 KR M Monash
University * DRI HE THERE T2
R EEtELT 2y
o MIEHEARNARATES
o BRGHMAGZHESGTHD
o SN AERESTED
. %I?Taﬁ%i&ﬁﬂl/\ﬁ“é?
MEERAEHTEEED 5

=
=

EOVASIS IS

Mr. LU Jiaqi

e Aged 60

e Graduated from Huazhong Institute of Technology
(currently known as Huazhong University of Science and
Technology), PRC and Tsinghua University, PRC with a
Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering and a Master’s Degree
in Management Engineering respectively

e Chairman and managing director of Pearl River Distribution
Limited

e Appointed as director of the Company in 2009

PEEERTAE

o MERTH

. %%F\\qﬂliﬁﬂlﬂ‘ﬁ(fﬁﬁi%iﬁqﬂﬂ&
REB)RHBEBEXRE  DRIBEIRR
%t%ﬁﬁaﬁlﬁﬁéi%ﬁ

s MIMBEREERRAREERFLKRE

s RCTTENFRZER/ARRZESE
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INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

BEEHN
Profile of Directors

Ms. XU Peng

e Aged 53

e PRC lawyer

e Received education at the Civil, Commercial and
Economic Law School of the China University of Political
Science and Law and completed £ 752 22 2 S 95 4 38
12 (the postgraduate program of economic law#) in 2009

o Officer and partner of Beijing Hengde Law Firm

e  Committee member of the 11th National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Chaoyang District of Beijing

e Supervisor of Beijing Municipal Law Association

e Appointed as director of the Company in 2009

RETT

BER+T=5%

Hh B2 A
R-FENFETRBEAAZREEEE
BEREREEERERMELERE

EREEEMEBAEIERERA
FRIARBUAHE R RMALES
T-EZEEZRER

ERmREGEEE
RIBBNFRZERARRZES

ALY

Mr. CHEUNG Man, Stephen

(Retired at the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the

Company held on 26th August 2009)

e Aged 65

e Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales

o Fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants

e Former partner of the assurance and business advisory
services division of an international accounting firm

e Appointed as director of the Company in 2004

353'[5'6$
(RZZEZNFNAZFTAREEITZEAR
AR B F NG S RABIRE)

WERTHBE
ERERBERITNTEAMAS L ERE
EEEHAGrEREE
FE—EREGATE T 2Bt S5
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Profile of Directors

INDEPENDENT BILEMITES

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HON Sheung Tin, Peter §EHESAE

(Resigned on 20th October 2009) (R=ZZZNF+AZTHER)

e Aged 69 o WENTNBR

e Practising solicitor in Hong Kong since 1970 o BE—N+tTFRATBHNERN

e Consultant of Hon & Co. Solicitors and Notaries o ERELL{RANIE 2 AR

o Notary public o NEA

e Non-executive director of Starlight International Holdings o AFAMBERERARIZIFNITESE LA
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong AIRBBHARZIIAERAR LT
Kong Limited s R—NMNEFRZERTRFRIZES

e Appointed as director of the Company in 1997

Mr. LI King Hang, Richard FRERE

(Resigned on 20th October 2009) (R=ZZTNF+A -+ HEHR)

e Aged 66 o BERTNBR

e Graduated from Indiana University, USA with a Master of o M—NANFEFENERENMZTABAELE -
Science degree in 1968 BEESEITEN

e Former fellow member of the Institute of Data Processing o HIBERIEES (KR ZEFEE
Management (UK) o BEBEER LT

e Distinguished Fellow of the Hong Kong Computer Society o SHWNEEGKAETE

e Life member of the Australian Computer Society o WIEAEBTABEAARBEER

e Former Director of the Office of Information Technology e R—NMNtFEZEALRRRZES

Services of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
e Appointed as director of the Company in 1997

*  CSA Holdings Ltd (CSA), the former immediate holding company * R ZEERUBREE AEEZAIEEZEERAR

was privatised and became a wholly owned subsidiary of CSA Holdings Ltd (CSA)V# A1t + B AR S%
Computer Sciences Corporation (CSC), the former ultimate holding 2 Bl % 442 B% A B) Computer Sciences Corporation
company of the Group listed on the New York Stock Exchange (CSC)z =& MIB/AR] * CSCRARHIESR ZFT LT
during FY06

#  For identification purpose only D ]|
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to
identifying and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate to
the needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles (“Principles”) and code provisions (“Code Provisions”) as set out
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”).

The Company has complied with most of the Code Provisions save for
deviation from the Code Provisions in respect of Code Provision A.4.1,
details of which are explained below. The Company regularly reviews its
corporate governance practices to ensure that these continue to meet the
requirements of the CG Code.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board of Directors
(“Board”) in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company and
transparency and accountability of all operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarized as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Company has formalized and adopted the written terms on the
division of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and plans
with a view to enhancing shareholder interests while the day-to-day
operations of the Company are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval of long term objectives and strategies, changes

to capital and overall corporate structure, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed.

Annual Report 2009/10 3§
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Responsibilities (Continued)

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making
request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer (formerly known as
Managing Director) and the senior management. The delegated functions
and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the
senior management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready
(Chief Executive Officer (formerly known as Managing Director) and
Member of Management Committee)

Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward
(Chief Financial Officer (formerly known as Finance & Administration
Controller), Company Secretary and Member of Management
Committee)

Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon
(Member of Management Committee)*

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hu Liankui
(Chairman of the Board and Remuneration Committee)*
Mr. Wang Weihang
(Chairman of Management Committee)*
Mr. Chen Zhaohui

(Member of Audit Committee and Management Committee)*

BEEgy
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Young Meng Ying
(Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of Remuneration
Committee)*
Mr. Lu Jiagi
(Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)*
Ms. Xu Peng
(Member of Audit Committee)*
* Directors were appointed as directors effective from 29th September 2009

and appointed as chairman and/or member of respective committees on 20th
October 2009.

Mr. Allen Joseph Pathmarajah, Mr. Kuo Chi Yung, Peter, Mr. Moo Kwee
Chong, John, Mr. Michael Shove, Mr. Darren John Collins, Mr. Wang Yung
Chang, Kenneth and Mr. Andrew John Anker resigned as non-executive
directors on 20th October 2009, and Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter and Mr.
Li King Hang, Richard resigned as independent non-executive directors
on the same date. Mr. Cheung Man, Stephen retired as independent non-
executive director effective from the conclusion of the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 26th August 2009.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31st March 2010, following the retirement of Mr.
Cheung Man, Stephen with effect from the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 26th August 2009, the number
of independent non-executive directors fell below the minimum number
required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, and there was no
independent non-executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise in
the Board and the Audit Committee as required under Rules 3.10(2) and
3.21 of the Listing Rules. Following the appointment of Ms. Young Meng
Ying as independent non-executive director and chairman and member of
the Audit Committee of the Company on 29th September 2009 and 20th
October 2009 respectively, the Company has been in compliance with
Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

Saved as disclosed above, throughout the year ended 31st March 2010,
the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors with
at least one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management

expertise.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Composition (Continued)

The Company has received written annual confirmation from Ms. Young
Meng Ying, Mr. Lu Jiaqi, and Ms. Xu Peng of their independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers them

to be independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in the Listing Rules. All of them will offer themselves for re-election in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and by a separate resolution at
the first general meeting after the appointment (i.e. the forthcoming annual
general meeting). The Board recommended the proposal for their re-

election as independent non-executive directors.

The non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
bring a wide range of business and financial expertise, experiences and
independent judgement to the Board. Through active participation in
Board meetings and affairs of the Company, taking the lead in managing
issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on Board
committees, all the non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors make various contributions to the effective direction of
the Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors
The Company has established formal, considered and transparent

procedures for the appointment and succession planning of directors.

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

None of the existing non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company is appointed for a specific

term. However, all directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the

Company’s bye-laws.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the directors for the time being, or, if their number

is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and any new director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as
additional director shall be subject to re-election by shareholders at the
first general meeting after appointment.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors
(Continued)

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of directors and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors.

The Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition regularly to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate

to the requirements of the business of the Company.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection
process by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may

be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when

necessary.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Leung Tat Kwong,
Simon, Mr. Hu Liankui, Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Chen Zhaohui, Ms. Young
Meng Ying, Mr. Lu Jiagi and Ms. Xu Peng, having been appointed as
directors of the Company during the year, shall retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the first general meeting after the
appointment (i.e. the forthcoming annual general meeting). In addition,

Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of these directors standing

for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company’s circular regarding the notice of the forthcoming annual
general meeting contains detailed information of the directors standing for
re-election.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant

regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and
professional development to directors whenever necessary.

Board and Committee Meetings
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
The Board has four regular meetings a year and holds additional meetings

as and when required.
Ten Board meetings in total were held during the year.
The individual attendance record of each director at the meetings of the

Board, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee during the year
ended 31st March 2010 is set out below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of directorship

RESEHRLE BETEIERE

Remuneration Audit

Board Committee Committee

Name of Directors EEMSR 2Eg FMEEE EREER
Executive Directors HITES

Lai Yam Ting, Ready HEEE 10/10 N/A N/A

TER NE A

Lau Ming Chi, Edward 288 E 10/10 N/A N/A

TER T EA

Leung Tat Kwong, Simon Nete 1 235 S M 4/4 N/A N/A
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Board and Committee Meetings (Continued)
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance (Continued)
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Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of directorship

RESEHRHE BETEHERH

Remuneration Audit
Board Committee Committee
Name of Directors EENE EEg FHEEE EREEE
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Hu Liankui Note 1 GAEZS wi 4/4 2/2 N/A
TiEA
Wang Weihang Nete 1 T Hfi 4/4 N/A N/A
TERA TiEMA
Chen Zhaohui Nete 1 (R EA e Fiie 4/4 N/A 4/4
TiEA
Allen Joseph Pathmarajah Note2 Allen Joseph Pathmarajah *#= 6/7 N/A 2/2
TERA
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter Nete2 SPEL§E M= 6/7 N/A N/A
TiEA TiEA
Moo Kwee Chong, John Nete2 Moo Kwee Chong, John &= 6/7 N/A N/A
TERA TiEMA
Michagel Shove Note2 Michael Shove &= 4/7 0/0 N/A
TiEA
Darren John Colling Note2 Darren John Collins &= 5/7 N/A N/A
TERA TiEMA
Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth Nete2 Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth = o/7 N/A N/A
TiEA TiEA
Andrew John Anker Note2 Andrew John Anker = 77 N/A N/A
TERA TiEMA
Independent Non-executive Directors BV kHTES
Young Meng Ying Note t T ER W 4/4 2/2 4/4
Lu Jiagji Nete 1 s By M- 3/4 1/2 3/4
Xu Peng Notet TREE Wi 4/4 N/A 4/4
TiEA
Cheng Man, Stephen Note3 gR3C M= 2/3 0/0 0/1
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter Note2 BEFEME W= 77 0/0 2/2
Li King Hang, Richard Nete2 S s 7/7 0/0 2/2
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Board and Committee Meetings (Continued)
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance (Continued)

Notes:

1. Directors were appointed as directors effective from 29th September 2009.

2. Directors resigned on 20th October 2009.

3. Director retired as director effective from the conclusion of the annual general

meeting of the Company held on 26th August 2009.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum
attendance of directors. Notices of regular Board meetings are served to
all directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and

committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all directors at least 3 days (or such other
period as agreed) before each Board meeting or committee meeting

to keep the directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.
The Board and each director also have separate and independent access
to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all
Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time after each
meeting and the final version is open for directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring
directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving transactions in which such directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a balance

of power and authority.

During the year, Mr. Allen Joseph Pathmarajah, the former Chairman of the
Board, resigned as non-executive director and ceased to be the Chairman
of the Board on 20th October 2009. The positions of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer are currently held by Mr. Hu Liankui and Mr. Lai
Yam Ting, Ready respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly

defined and set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practice. With the support of the senior management, the Chairman is also
responsible for ensuring that the directors receive adequate, complete and
reliable information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues

arising at Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge
of the Company’s day-to-day management and operations. The Chief
Executive Officer is also responsible for developing strategic plans and
formulating the organizational structure, control systems and internal
procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Management Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s
website and are available to all shareholders.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s

expenses.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from
time to time to facilitate the Company’s operations.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continueq)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprised Mr. Michael Shove and all the
former three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Cheung
Man, Stephen, Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter and Mr. Li King Hang, Richard,
and Mr. Michael Shove was the chairman of the Committee. Mr. Cheung
Man, Stephen retired as independent non-executive director and ceased
as member of Remuneration Committee with effect from the conclusion of
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 26th August 2009.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises Mr. Hu Liankui, and
two independent non-executive directors, namely Ms. Young Meng Ying
and Mr. Lu Jiaqgi, and Mr. Hu Liankui is the chairman of the Committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages of all directors and the senior management
and share options matters. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director or any of his/
her associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year for reviewing
the remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual
remuneration packages of all directors and the senior management and
other related matters. The Remuneration Committee shall consult the
Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer of the Company about these
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and remuneration
packages.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31st March 2010. The works performed included the following:

(@)  To review executive directors’ remuneration package.

(b)  To review and recommend non-executive directors’ and

independent non-executive directors’ remuneration package.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continueq)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprised Mr. Allen Joseph Pathmarajah and all the
former three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Cheung
Man, Stephen, Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter and Mr. Li King Hang, Richard,
and Mr. Cheung Man, Stephen was the chairman of the Committee. Mr.
Cheung Man, Stephen retired as independent non-executive director

and ceased as chairman of the Audit Committee with effect from the
conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 26th
August 2009.

The Audit Committee currently comprises Mr. Chen Zhaohui and three
independent non-executive directors, namely Ms. Young Meng Ying,

Mr. Lu Jiagi and Ms. Xu Peng, among them one independent non-
executive director possesses the appropriate professional qualifications

or accounting or related financial management expertise. Ms. Young
Meng Ying is the chairman of the Committee. None of the members of the
Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@  To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant,
internal auditor or external auditors before submission to the Board.

(o)  To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continueq)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held six meetings during the year ended 31st March
2010. The works performed included the following:

(@  To review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and

compliance procedures.

(b)  To review the reports from the external auditors, management letters

and management response.
(c)  To review corporate governance matters.
(d)  To consider the internal audit function and reports.
(e)  To consider the change of the external auditors.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external

auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st March 2010 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Management Committee

The Management Committee comprised two former non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Michael Shove and Mr. Darren John Collins, and two
executive directors, namely Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready and Mr. Lau Ming
Chi, Edward, and Mr. Michael Shove was the chairman of the Committee.
Mr. Michael Shove and Mr. Darren John Collins resigned as non-executive
directors and ceased as chairman and/or member of the Committee with
effect from 20th October 2009.

The Management Committee currently comprises Mr. Wang Weihang and
Mr. Chen Zhaohui, and the three executive directors, namely Mr. Lai Yam
Ting, Ready, Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward and Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon
and Mr. Wang Weihang is the chairman of the Management Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continueq)

Management Committee (Continued)

The Management Committee is primarily responsible for managing and
reviewing the Company’s day-to-day operations and financial reporting,
and making recommendations in respect of the objectives and strategies
of the Group. The Management Committee meets monthly, and as and
when required to discuss the related issues.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10

to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the directors and the directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31st March 2010.

The Company also has established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the

employees was noted by the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, quarterly
results, price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2010.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on page 57.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION (continued)

The non-audit work performed by the external auditors, Messrs
PricewaterhouseCoopers included tax advisory services. The remuneration
paid or payable to the external auditors of the Company in respect of
audit services, audit-related services and non-audit services for the year
ended 31st March 2010 amounted to approximately HK$1,200,000,
HK$606,000 and HK$106,000 respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The management is primarily responsible for designing, implementing and
maintaining internal controls, while the Board and Audit Committee review
the effectiveness of the controls. The internal control system includes a
defined management structure with limits of authority designed to achieve
business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication,
and ensure compliance with relevant rules and regulations. The system

is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks
of failure in operational systems and achievement of the Company’s
objectives.

During the year, the Company has engaged an independent accounting
firm to conduct review of the Group’s internal control on one of the
business operations units and established an internal audit function. The
Board has also reviewed the effectiveness of internal control system of
the Group. The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions. The
Board in particular considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in the Company’s
Bye-laws. Details of such rights to demand a poll and the poll procedures
are included in all circulars to shareholders and will be explained during
the proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be published in accordance with the Listing Rules and

posted on the website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS (Continued)

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman
of the Board as well as chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee, or in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, and where applicable, the independent Board committee,

are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of
the Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in
an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a
website at http://www.asl.com.hk, where extensive information and

updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other

information are posted.

On behalf of the Board

LAI Yam Ting, Ready
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25th May 2010

hEEO®RS
Corporate Governance Report

BRREANRIREEBZR e

ARRZBRARGRBEREERGRIBBIRHE -
EEeIFERFHRR e RERREE TR (ER
RER)SREGZEMKER(MER)BYESEER
EEGERRAE LRERER -

ARABGNERRAE LR IBEAME(REHEEE
FER)REBDRESR ©

ARBHEBEIREREE ZBBIEER - BEZER
EEABSHRBEREERSNEBERTHEE - A
SHRETRARRZER - REENEHGERHTE
FHIE K BREE o

BREAXRER ZARARANKERE(HUA
http://www.asl.com.hk) + A EHAHBEA LD R %
BREREE  WBAN  CEERERREMER
ZERAR R o

RESZgm

i
TTIAEEL

&8 —ET-—ZTFRA=-+HH



Annual Report 2009/10 i} 44

ESTHRE

Directors’ Report

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services. The principal activities of its associates
and subsidiaries are set out in notes 21 and 46, respectively, to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group was also engaged in the business of Global Managed Services
(“GMS”). During the year, the Group had disposed of its GMS business
(the “Disposal”) at a total consideration of HK$125 million. Details of the
Disposal were set out in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
below.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2010 are set out

in the consolidated income statement on page 59.

A special dividend of 92.0 HK cents per share amounting to
HK$286,491,000 which is detailed in note 15 was paid to the shareholders
during the year. The directors did not recommend the payment of final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31st March 2010.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 64 to 65 of the
consolidated financial statements.

At 31st March 2010, the Group’s special reserve and accumulated profits
totalled HK$230,953,000 (FY09: HK$394,678,000).

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders at
31st March 2010 include contributed surplus net of accumulated losses
totaling HK$85,273,000 (FY09: HK$89,312,000).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$16,666,000 (FY09:
HK26,763,000) on property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements during the year in property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 18 to the consolidated

financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of the Group’s purchases and sales attributable to major

suppliers and customers are as follows:

During the year, the five largest customers and single largest customer of
the Group accounted for approximately 20.1% and 4.5%, respectively, of
the Group’s revenue. The five largest suppliers and single largest supplier
of the Group accounted for approximately 37.6% and 11.4%, respectively,

of the Group’s purchases.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) have an

interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements during the year in share capital of the Company are set out in

note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors

Lai Yam Ting, Ready

Lau Ming Chi, Edward

Leung Tat Kwong, Simon (appointed on 29th September 2009)

Non-executive directors

Hu Liankui (appointed on 29th September 2009)

Wang Weihang (appointed on 29th September 2009)

Chen Zhaohui (appointed on 29th September 2009)

Allen Joseph Pathmarajah (resigned on 20th October 2009)

Kuo Chi Yung, Peter (resigned on 20th October 2009)
Moo Kwee Chong, John (resigned on 20th October 2009)

Michael Shove (resigned on 20th October 2009)
Darren John Collins (resigned on 20th October 2009)
Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth (resigned on 20th October 2009)

Andrew John Anker (resigned on 20th October 2009)

Independent non-executive directors

Young Meng Ying (appointed on 29th September 2009)

Lu Jiagi (appointed on 29th September 2009)

Xu Peng (appointed on 29th September 2009)

Cheung Man, Stephen (retired from the conclusion of the annual
general meeting of the company held on 26th August 2009)

Hon Sheung Tin, Peter (resigned on 20th October 2009)

Li King Hang, Richard (resigned on 20th October 2009)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 99, Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready
would be retiring by rotation. In addition, Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon,
Mr. Hu Liankui, Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Chen Zhaohui, Ms. Young Meng
Ying, Mr. Lu Jiagi and Ms. Xu Peng, being directors appointed by the
Board during the year would hold office only until the first general meeting
after the appointment (i.e. the forthcoming annual general meeting)
pursuant to the Company’s Bye-law 102(B). All retiring directors, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or

its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the period up
to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s

Bye-laws.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information

of directors of the Company are set out below:

Name of Director Detail of changes

BEFE

EEnE
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Lai Yam Ting, Ready

Officer effective from 1st January 2010.

Mr. Lai’s position as Managing Director of the Company was renamed as Chief Executive

BEE FBAENARRREESQEEVBECENw R ATHES B - —2F A —REEX -

Lau Ming Chi, Edward

Mr. Lau’s position as Finance and Administration Controller of the Company was renamed as

Chief Financial Officer effective from 1st January 2010.
ElE=0r BIEENAR AR EEVBERITHEE B ENw B RAVBHAE B2 —ZF - A—BREXN -

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
below, no contracts of significance to which the Company, or any of its
holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st March 2010, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which
(a) were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange (“Directors’

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”), were as follows:

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB/ R EEABRAT
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Shares 8y
Personal Family Corporate Approximate %
Name of company Director interests  interests  interests Total of shareholding
IR = BAERE ZkEs AEER #3t REBANESL
Automated Systems Holdings Lai Yam Ting, Ready 3,949,621 - - - 3,949,621 1.27%
Limited T
BBEREEFRAF
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter' 6,170,241 - - - 6,170,241 1.98%
SEE
Automated Systems (H.K.) Lai Yam Ting, Ready 1,070,000° - - - 1,070,000 N/A®
Limited R ek
BERS(EE)BRAR
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter' 2,140,0007 - - - 2,140,000 N/A®
SEIE ToiaFe°
Beijing Teamsun Technology Hu Liankui 29,318,889 - - - 29,318,889 6.36%
Co., Limited (“Teamsun”) i
L REBRKEHRID
BIRAB(TZERBRK]) Wang Weihang 55,705,890 - - - 55,705,890 12.08%

THEM
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)
Shares (Continued)

Notes:

1. Interests held by Mr. Kuo Chi Yung, Peter as at the date of his resignation
effective from 20th October 2009.

2. These shares were non-voting deferred shares.

3. The issued share of Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited comprises 55,350,000
non-voting deferred shares and 2 ordinary shares. The 2 ordinary shares are

beneficially owned by the Company.

Save as mentioned above, as at 31st March 2010, none of the directors
and the chief executives of the Company had any Directors’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES fB IR T &

Details of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in note 36 to RRRIBIRIE 8 BIEFHBEH R E M HRE T
the consolidated financial statements. 36 °

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options RAF) 2 FERERFERN 2 ZEEHIAT -

during the year:

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

RITERBRERTRITZRE

At Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled
1st April during during during during the Date of Exercise

2009 theyear theyear the year year grant price per

Participants R=-ZERE RAREE RAEE REEE RAEE i Exercise period share
28% mA-A R [ ft:d AER Wt BRERS TEER SROTEE
HK$

BT

Directors
B
Lai Yam Ting, 245,000 - (245,000) - - - 19101999  20.10.2001 to£19.10.2009 2.30
Ready 196,000 - (196,000) - - - 27.7.2001 27.7.2003 toZ 26.7.2011 2.40
FBEE 412,000 - (412,000) - - - 20.11.2002  20.11.2003 to% 19.11.2012 1.34
232,000 - (232,000) - - - 6.8.2004 6.8.2005 toZ£ 5.8.2014 1.28
248,000 - (248,000) - - - 9.6.2005 9.6.2006 toZ 8.6.2015 1.98
124,000 - (124,000) - - - 30.6.2006 30.6.2006 toZ 29.6.2016 1.95
188,000 - (62,0000 (126,000) - - 4.10.2007 4.10.2008 toZ 3.10.2017 2.32
1,645,000 - (1,519,000)  (126,000) - -

Lau Ming Chi, 120,000 - (120,000) - - - 19101999  20.10.2001 to£ 19.10.2009 2.30
Edward 148,000 - (148,000) - - - 27.7.2001 27.7.2003 to£ 26.7.2011 2.40
288E 330,000 - (330,000) - - - 20.11.2002  20.11.2003 toZ£ 19.11.2012 1.34
140,000 - (140,000) - - - 6.8.2004 6.8.2005 toZ 5.8.2014 1.28
210,000 - (210,000) - - - 9.6.2005 9.6.2006 toZ 8.6.2015 1.98
428,000 - (428,000) - - - 19.6.2006 19.6.2007 toZ£ 18.6.2016 1.95
60,000 - (60,000) - - - 30.6.2006 30.6.2006 toZ 29.6.2016 1.95
150,000 - (50,000)  (100,000) - - 4.10.2007 4.10.2008 toZ 3.10.2017 2.32

1,586,000

(1,486,000  (100,000) - -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) BTl e

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

RITEBRERARITZRE

At Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled
1st April during during during during the Date of Exercise
2009 theyear theyear the year year grant price per
Participants R-ZENE RAEE RAEE REEE REAEE Rt Exercise period share
28E mA-H R nfTE AXR A BRERS TRAR SRTEE
HK$

BIT

Kuo Chi Yung, 245,000 - (245,000) - - - 19101999  20.10.2001 toZ 19.10.2009 2.30
Peter' 218,000 - (218,000) - - - 27.7.2001 27.7.2003 to% 26.7.2011 2.40
SPEF 124,000 - (124,000) - - - 30.6.2006 30.6.2006 toZ 29.6.2016 1.95
587,000 - (587,000) - - -
Employees 1,225,000 - (1,170,000) (65,000) - - 1910.1999  20.10.2001 toZ 19.10.2009 2.30
Hitnfgg 55,000 - - (55,000 - - 11.2.2000 12.2.2002 to= 11.2.2010 3.35
40,000 - - (40,000) - - 30.6.2000 1.7.2002 to%£ 30.6.2010 3.40
1,446,000 - (1,350,000) (96,000) - - 27.7.2001 27.7.2003 toZ 26.7.2011 2.40
688,000 - (688,000) - - - 20112002 20.11.2003 toz 19.11.2012 1.34
924,000 - (908,000) (16,000 - - 6.8.2004 6.8.2005 toZ 5.8.2014 1.28
1,906,000 - (1,906,000) - - - 9.6.2005 9.6.2006 toZ 8.6.2015 1.98
2,340,000 - (2,340,000 - - - 19.6.2006 19.6.2007 toZ 18.6.2016 1.95
742,000 - (726,000) (16,000) - - 30.6.2006 30.6.2006 toZ£ 29.6.2016 1.95
536,000 - (536,000) - - - 30.6.2006 30.6.2007 to% 29.6.2016 1.95
2,280,000 - (760,000)  (1,520,000) - - 410.2007 4.10.2008 toZ£ 3.10.2017 2.32
12,182,000 - (10,384,000) (1,798,000) - -
Total & 4% 16,000,000 - (13,976,000) (2,024,000) - -
Note: Pt sE -
1. Options held by Mr. Kuo Chi Yung, Peter as at the date of his resignation 1. SEHELERBMTEERBIZETAET+A=-1TRH)FF
effective from 20th October 2009. HE 7 ERRE -
The closing price of the shares immediately before the date of last grant SRR BERIRGD 2 WHBAE2.278TT °

was HK$2.27.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Schemes” above, at no
time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding companies

or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with its
former fellow subsidiaries which constituted connected transactions under
The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”):

Name of company

RNEEE

CSC Computer Sciences

Pte Limited EHHNAIE B RS R E M

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB/ R EEABRAT

ESRERONES 2EF

B EXEEZ Bty RARRIA 0 < st | e[ P Rci =t
B PTIEEE SN - ARE] - AR AR - FRH
J&8 X ) KBTS 8 ) A PO (AR B R AR AR R A ) %2
B REARR 2 EETHEBEAR R R ERMEME
AEgE 2 B skimzmmER) -

BRERXS
- AEERENARNBLAETZHERS
CREEH R FTES ETTRA ETRAI DT -

ASL Services
and Products
ASLFRFE R Em CSCHRBREm
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FHT FHT

CSC Services
and Products

Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products - 1,746

Non-Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products 231 -

FEE SN IR B BRAS S dn

CSC Computer Sciences
(HK) Limited EHboMNATE B RIS M E @
CSA Automated Pte Limited
EIHNAITE B RS R E

Non-Outsourcing Project Services and Products

FESNAITA B AR5 e

CSC Malaysia Limited
B SNAITE B BRFS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the board of directors
engaged the auditors of the Company to perform certain agreed upon
procedures in respect of the continuing connected transactions of
the Group. The auditors have reported their factual findings on these
procedures to the board of directors.

Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products 321 582

Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products 155 2,306

284 -

Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products - 782

RIEETRAF14ASBIERTE - EZGEBARQT
B AAEE 2 FERHEXSETETEMEZR
Fro BB MEESREZFEF2ERESR -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

All of the independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions
have been entered into:

() inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, where there are no sufficient
comparables, on terms no less favorable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

On 24th April 2009, Computer Sciences Corporation (“CSC”), the former
ultimate holding company of the Company, has entered into a conditional
agreement with an independent third party to transfer its controlling
interest in the Company to a third party (the “Share Purchase Agreement”).
The conditions precedent to the Share Purchase Agreement include, inter
alia, the approval of the transactions contemplated under the GAC Special
Deal Agreements comprising the Global Account Transfer Agreement,

the Data Centre Agreement, the First Master Subcontract Agreement,

the Second Master Subcontract Agreement, the Business Referral
Termination Agreement and the Territorial Termination Agreement entered
into between the Group and the group of CSC on 24th April 2009. The
GAC Special Deal Agreements have been approved in the special general
meeting of the Company held on 17th July 2009.

The closing of the Global Account Transfer Agreement (forming part of the
GAC Special Deal Agreements) took place on 28th August 2009. Pursuant
to the terms of the Global Account Transfer Agreement, the Group has
transferred its GMS business to CSC group (the “Disposal”, which is
effected through transfer of service contracts, customer orders, hardware,
software and licensed intellectual property) for a cash consideration of
HK$125 million. The completion of the Share Purchase Agreement took
place on 23rd September 2009.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Under the Listing Rules, the Disposal constituted a connected and
disclosable transaction of the Company. The Business Referral
Termination Agreement and the Territorial Termination Agreement
constituted connected transactions of the Company. The Data Centre
Agreement, the First Master Subcontract Agreement and the Second
Master Subcontract Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company and remain so until the completion of the
Share Purchase Agreement.

Details of the above are set out in the Company’s joint announcements
dated 6th May 2009, 28th August 2009, 22nd September 2009 and
23rd September 2009 made by Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited
(“Hong Kong Teamsun”) and the Company (“Joint Announcements”)
and the Company’s circular dated 30th June 2009 (the “Circular”) and
announcement dated 17th July 2009.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st March 2010, so far as is known to the directors and chief
executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of every
person, other than directors or chief executive of the Company in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

BER S a)
RELETRA - HERRAAT BERATREX
5 o HISENEIL T RO R R AR T
BERS - Mg LS B R@AeHERE
SR GEER AN BERNEX HLREES
BEAR 1538 2 52K ©

FMEBEZFEHRERRAKER(ES)BRAA
(IBBEBRKDEARFAMETIHABRAE-STH
FRARE  ZEZAENAZTN\E  ZZTNhEF
NAZ+ZBRZZZNFNAAZT=B2ZAD A
ERE(ZEMELE])  REARRIBHAZZTEAN
FRAZTBEzBH(ZBHDARBBHAZTEAN
FELATEBEZAERN -

FERR

R-T—TH=A=+—8  REFRALFEEST
BABFA  THAL(RAAEERTBITHAR
BRI RAR 2 RIATATBIR D P A IR RS
H e XV R B2 B3 VAR A A R 7 Mk
AR

Number of ordinary shares

Percentage of

Name of shareholder of the Company held issued share capital
RE A AEFAZEBERROEE BT IR A
Direct interest Deemed interest ZBEZL
k3 R BES %
Hong Kong Teamsun 203,532,996 - 65.4
EREBRK
Teamsun - 203,532,9961 65.4
EBRK
Note: Fff5E
1. Teamsun was interested in the entire issued share capital of Hong Kong 1. EBXRARNBBEBRAKNZPEBIRAFE

Bz BMEGRERESEB AR BEEEZY
203,532,996 /% A% 15 o 1 A 4 2 o

Teamsun and was therefore deemed to be interested in the 203,532,996

shares in which Hong Kong Teamsun was interested.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Save as mentioned above, as at 31st March 2010, there was no other
person (other than the directors or chief executives of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 31st March 2010
with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules except with respect to Code A.4.1, all non-
executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term
but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance

with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, all directors
confirmed they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31st March 2010.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive directors are independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, the directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31st March 2010.
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EFEgWmE
Directors’ Report

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee met six times in the year. During the meetings, the
Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the connected
transactions, accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group

including the review of the annual results, interim and quarterly results, and
discussed various auditing, financial reporting and internal control matters.

DONATION

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to
HK$62,080.

AUDITORS

In November 2009, the Company’s former auditors Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu resigned as auditors of the Company, and Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as auditors of the Company.
Apart from this, there has been no change of auditors of the Company in
any of the three preceding years. A resolution will be tabled in the annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

LAl Yam Ting, Ready
Chief Executive Offer

Hong Kong, 25th May 2010

Automated Systems Holdings Limited HEIR K EBBR AT
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BALZBENERE
Independent Auditor’s Report

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

Annual Report 2009/10 3§

B R A g R AT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
BBASEEERLR

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Automated
Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to 150, which comprise

the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31st March 2010,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control

relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981

of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building  F#HH IR
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8888 % :f (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile (852) 28109888 {HH (852) 2810 9888
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on

Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true

and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
March 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25th May 2010

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BE1RAEEHRAT
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE-_T-TF=-A=+—RHILEE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

2010
—B-FF ThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT
Continuing operations FEREEK
Revenue WA 7 1,329,982 1,360,988
Cost of goods sold SHERA (738,832) (761,890)
Cost of services rendered AR 2 A 10 (433,096) (431,554)
Other income EH g A 8 7,386 8,612
Fair value gain on revaluation of EHREME L NTF
investment properties BEEEM 19 3,590 -
Selling expenses HEEMA 10 (66,410) (82,672)
Administrative expenses THEA 10 (50,717) (50,868)
Finance costs BLE AR 9 - (234)
Share of results of associates i3 N 21 1,714 880
Profit before income tax BT EBL A R 53,617 43,262
Income tax expense s 14 (10,449) (9,423)
Profit from continuing operations 3 B 35 48 & & 278 2 5% 5 43,168 33,839
Discontinued operations BARIEREER
Profit from discontinued operations 2R 8 B 48 |F & & S 2 % 7| 44 72,598 8,812
Profit for the year attributable to <A B R A i5H A FE(E
equity holders of the Company FREF 115,766 42,651
HK cents HK cents
4l P
Earnings per share from continuing ~ ANA BRI B A BIRRE
and discontinued operations FE N DR ERE T
attributable to the equity holders 2 G EF 17
of the Company
Basic earnings per share BREARER
From continuing operations REAFBEISEETS 14.04 11.39
From discontinued operations REBKRIEEEETS 23.61 2.97
37.65 14.36
Diluted earnings per share SREEFER
From continuing operations REFHECELET 14.01 11.35
From discontinued operations REBR B ETR 23.57 2.96
37.58 14.31
The notes on pages 67 to 150 are an integral part of these consolidated BN ETEE150E 2 B AR S M5k 2 T A]
financial statements. ERER o
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHIT FHIT
Dividends BE 15
Special dividend ERIIE B 286,491 32,696
Interim dividend FHIRR B - 11,889

Final dividend REARR B - 17,834
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FEEEBER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-_T-ZTF=-A=+—RHILEE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZTThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT F&T
Profit for the year FREF 115,766 42,651
Other comprehensive Hip2mukE(58) :
income/(loss):
Revaluation surplus/(deficit) of HELHREFEM
leasehold land and buildings B (B4 18 19,418 (18,279)
Deferred taxation arising from HELHREFER
revaluation (surplus)/deficit of (B8, BHEEZ
leasehold land and buildings RAERIR 35 (3,204) 3,016
Exchange differences on translation BREBINEG  ERER
of overseas operations 727 (3,223)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREM2HEIE, (EE) -
for the year, net of tax MBRBLIE 16,941 (18,486)
Total comprehensive income for RDNTRAETE AEN
the year attributable to equity FREEKFHAE
holders of the Company 132,707 24,165
The notes on pages 67 to 150 are an integral part of these consolidated BN ETRFE 1508 2 B AR ISz 2T A]

financial statements. SERER S ©



HEBEREBR

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BEIRAEEHRAE 61

Consolidated Balance Sheet

W-_ZE—ZTF=A=+—H
At 31st March 2010

Annual Report 2009/10 3§

2010 2009
—E2-2F —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment mME - BEN&EE 18(a) 130,827 174,899
Investment properties BEMZE 19 18,900 -
Intangible assets mEEE 20(a) 700 2,503
Interests in associates Bt N mliERR 21 3,095 1,381
Trade receivables FEUNE 55008 26 627 -
154,149 178,783
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 25 101,820 104,467
Trade receivables FEUE 5 318 26 147,924 126,314
Other receivables, deposits and Hih el iiE « 128 &
prepayments A F0E 27 27,019 24,861
Amounts due from customers for AHNTREKREFFIEA
contract work 28 90,423 63,184
Restricted bank deposits ZRFIRITFER 29 29,538 -
Cash and cash equivalents R NIRSZEY 29 279,988 385,953
676,712 704,779
Total assets BEE 830,861 883,562
Equity attributable to equity EATRAKEFE AEMN
holders of the Company R AR
Share capital R AR 30 31,140 29,743
Share premium A& 19 5 (B Bk 104,947 78,944
Reserves B 31(a) 269,386 422,809
Total equity MR 405,473 531,496
The notes on pages 67 to 150 are an integral part of these consolidated BN E7TE 1508 2 M BREEA MIFmE 2 A

financial statements.

SERARD ©
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mEEERER
Consolidated Balance Sheet

R-T—ZTF=A=+—H
At 31st March 2010

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BE1RAEEHRAT

2010 2009
—B-2F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FAT

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSHEE 35 11,056 14,571
Deferred income EIEYA 24 _
11,080 14,571

Current liabilities REAE

Trade payables JENE SR8 32 189,850 151,499
Other payables and accruals HAh R RIE R IEET B R 33 52,287 58,849
Receipts in advance FEME = 34 166,855 121,371
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTISEi B & 5,316 5,776
414,308 337,495
Total liabilities F =R 425,388 352,066
Total equity and liabilities HEEREE 830,861 883,562
Net current assets REEEFRE 262,404 367,284
Total assets less current liabilities ZAEERRBHARG 416,553 546,067

LAl Yam Ting, Ready LAU Ming Chi, Edward

=33 B8RS
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
TTBAEE HITEE

The notes on pages 67 to 150 are an integral part of these consolidated

(RF67E L1508 Z B AR A B 5k 2 A
B

£
financial statements. SR
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Balance Sheet

W-_ZE—ZTF=A=+—H
At 31st March 2010

Automated Systems Holdings Limited HEI R A EEBHRAE
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2010
—E-EF —ZE=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
F=E TExT FAT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE &R 18(b) 6,803 8,578
Intangible assets EEE 20(b) 300 500
Investments in subsidiaries B AT ZIKE 23 134,623 134,623
141,726 143,701
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and HbfEW IR « e K
prepayments TERIE 27 609 591
Amounts due from subsidiaries EIENGIVE 24 82,887 54,220
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBESZEE 29 5,793 3,430
89,289 58,241
Total assets BEE 231,015 201,942
Equity attributable to equity ARATRBRAEEZFEAEMN
holders of the Company R AR
Share capital R& AR 30 31,140 29,743
Share premium A& 1 5 (B Bk 104,947 78,944
Reserves B4 31(b) 85,273 89,312
Total equity RS 221,360 197,999
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals HAb R IE R IEETE R 33 9,314 3,672
Amount due to a subsidiary R —EM B A RZIE 24 341 271
9,655 3,943
Total liabilities Fg=F i 9,655 3,943
Total equity and liabilities HiERREE 231,015 201,942
Net current assets RENEE R 79,634 54,298
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERGHARS 221,360 197,999

LAI Yam Ting, Ready LAU Ming Chi, Edward

BEE ElE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
TTIEAREL HITEF

BN E67TEFE 1508 2 M FH AR MRk 2 T
SHERED D ©

The notes on pages 67 to 150 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-_T-ZTF=-A=+—RHILEE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

Automated Systems Holdings Limited HEIR K EBBR AT

Special Property
reserve  revaluation Share
Share Share (Note (i) reserve  Translation options Retained
capital  premium Rl WEEL reserve reserve  earnings Total
kA ROEER (PEE) 1 Ed@RE BRERR REEN g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL BT T THL AT THL T
At 1st April 2008 RZZENEMA-A 29,666 78,246 34,350 35,850 4,128 5,785 380,096 568,121
Comprehensive income 2E%E
Profit for the year FRRA - - - - - - 42,651 42,651
Other comprehensive Hth2E(ER)/ i
(loss)/income:
Revaluation deficit of RELHRETF
leasehold land sfhEL
and buildings - - - (18279) - - - (18219
Deferred taxation arising RETHREF
from revaluation SEAEEL
deficit of leasehold EEHE
land and buildings - - - 3,016 - - - 3,016
Exchange differences on BEBNER
translation of overseas EREE
operations - - - - (8,229 - - (8,229
Total comprehensive ER2E(FR) /Wi
(loss)/income for the year ekl - - - (15,263) (3,223 - 42,651 24,165
Transactions with owners ~ EEAZRS
Exercise of share options TiEERE 77 698 - - - - _ 775
Recognition of equity-settled AL E IR
share-based payments EAPARES - - - - - 854 - 854
Special dividend for RE-TT)\BBER
FY08 paid (Note 15) FERIBR S (FiF15) - - - - - - (32,696) (32,69)
Final dividend for RE-TT)\BHER
FY08 paid (Note 15) RERR S (MFH15) - - - - - - (17,834) (17.834)
Interim dividend for RE_TTNIBER
FY09 paid (Note 15) R S (FiEH15) - - - - - - (11,889) (11,889)
Total transactions HEEAZRZBE
with owners 77 698 - - - g4 (2419 (60790)
At 31st March 2009 R-EEAE=A=1-H 29,743 78,944 34,350 20,587 905 6,639 360,328 531,496
The notes on pages 67 to 150 are an integral part of these consolidated HNE7TE 1508 2 M BREAMIERER 2T

financial statements.
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RAEEREEBR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-_T-—THF=A=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

Special Property
reserve  revaluation Share
Share Share (Note (i) reserve  Translation options Retained
capital  premium 1RIfE MEEf reserve reserve  earnings Total
kA ROEER () 1 ESfE BRERE REEN b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
' T T THL L TAL j
At 1st April 2009 RZZEAFMA-A 29,743 78,944 34,350 20,587 905 6,639 360,328 531,496
Comprehensive income 2E%E
Profit for the year FRRA - - - - - - 115,766 115,766
Other comprehensive Hh2ERE/ (F8)
income/(loss):
Revaluation surplus of RELTHREF
leasehold land and buildings ~ EfE 2 - - - 19,418 - - - 19,418
Deferred taxation arising fom &+ REF
revaluation surplus of EffRRELY
leasehold land and bulldings ~ EEFA - - - (3,204) - - - (3,204)
Exchange differences on AEBINEE
translation of overseas EREE
operations - - - - 727 - - 727
Total comprehensive income  ER2HERFEE
for the year - - - 16,214 727 - 115,766 132,707
Transactions with owners ~ SEEEAZR S
Exercise of share options bR 1,397 26,003 - - - - - 27,400
Recognition of equity-settled EARNEE RN
share-based payments PAVE - - - - - 361 - 361
Special dividend for REZSTNHUER
FY09 paid (Note 15) IR E (Fit15) - - - - - - (286,491) (286,491)
Transfer to retaned eamings ~~ EEZREBA (HFE31)
(Note 3(t) - - - - - (7,000) 7,000 -
Total transactions BEEAZRAEE
with owners 1,307 26,003 - - - 6639 (219491 (258730)
At 31st March 2010 R-E-ZF=A=+-H 31,140 104,947 34,350 36,801 1,632 - 196,603 405,473
Note () The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the MREl) AEBRZERBEER-ANEER - REASE

nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal

value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1997.

The notes on pages 67 to 150 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited BE1RAEEHRAT

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-_T-—THE=ZA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

2010
—E-2F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FHET

Operating activities R
Cash generated from operations RE LR Ziﬁ% 38 75,815 85,417
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERBEERE (17,537) (16,459)
Overseas taxation paid Eﬁiﬁl\ﬁlﬁi (784) (846)
Net cash generated from REKEELZHESWA

operating activities FE 57,494 68,112
Investing activities RETE
Purchases of property, plant BEWE  BERERE

and equipment 18 (16,666) (26,763)
Proceeds from disposal of HEYE  BENERERESIE

property, plant and equipment 38(a) 243 6,796
Proceeds from disposal of HEIRIKE B RS XIS 58

the GMS business 44 125,007 -
Interest received BEUF B 8 942 3,869
Decrease in interests o WNCIE s

in associates - 204
Decrease in short term EEIRITIF RO

bank deposits - 100
Expenses directly attributable to HERKEERE B2

the disposal of the GMS business BERELER (14,415) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) REFHZHEWA (XH)

investing activities pei-c] 95,111 (15,794)
Financing activities AEEE
Dividends paid BREE 15 (286,491) (62,419)
Interest paid BRFLE 9 - (234)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BRI T AT B TR EE

upon exercise of share options Fri8skIa 27,400 775
Net cash used in financing MEIH 2RSS HIEE

activities (259,001) (61,878)
Net decrease in cash and BeMREEEM R FHE

cash equivalents (106,486) (9,560)
Cash and cash equivalents FUzRERBLEED

at the beginning of the year 385,953 398,581
Effect of foreign exchange rate SN R B

changes 521 (3,068)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZBERIBLEEY

at the end of the year 279,988 385,953
The notes on pages 67 to 150 are an integral part of these consolidated HNEO7TEF 1508 2 M B AR E UK 2 T A]

financial statements.

SERARD ©
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FEMBIRRMEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_T-TF=-A=+—RHILEE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

At 31st March 2010, its immediate holding company is Teamsun
Technology (HK) Limited (“Hong Kong Teamsun”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its ultimate holding company is
Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Limited (“Teamsun”), a company
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and listed
on The Shanghai Stock Exchange in the PRC. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company are
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda, and
15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories,
Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company is principally an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services to its subsidiaries. The
principal activities of its associates and subsidiaries are set out in
notes 21 and 46, respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated,
which is also the functional currency of the Company. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 25th May 2010.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of leasehold land and buildings and investment

properties.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_Z-TF=-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(@) The following amendments to standards are mandatory for the
first time for the financial year beginning 1st April 2009 and are

relevant to the Group.

o HKAS 1 (revised), “

2. WEEEw)
(@) R=BBAEMA—BRHBHHEEE
IR IR R SRR AR 2 R 2 (55

o

Presentation of financial statements”.

The revised standard prohibits the presentation of

items of income and expenses (that is ‘non-owner

changes in equity’) in the statement of changes in equity,
requiring ‘non-owner changes in equity’ to be presented
separately from owner’s changes in equity. All ‘non-
owner changes in equity’ are required to be shown in a
performance statement.

Entities can choose whether to present one performance
statement (the statement of comprehensive income)

or two statements (the income statement and the
statement of comprehensive income). The Group has
elected to present two statements: an income statement
and a statement of comprehensive income. Comparative
information has been re-presented so that it also is in
conformity with the revised standard. Since the change
in accounting policy only impacts presentation aspects,
there is no impact on earnings per share.

HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments — Disclosures”
(amendment). The amendment requires enhanced
disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity
risk. In particular, the amendment requires disclosure
of fair value measurements by level of a fair value
measurement hierarchy. As the change in accounting
policy only results in additional disclosures, there is no
impact on earnings per share.

SEEREAERUER]) - M55
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

(c)

The following amendments to standards and interpretations
to existing standards are mandatory for the financial year
beginning 1st April 2009, but are not currently relevant to the
Group or does not have any material financial impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements:

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
(Amendments)

Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising
on Liquidation

Cost of an Investment in
a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate

Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 and

HKAS 39
(Amendments)

Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the Construction

of Real Estate
HK(IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation

Amendment early adopted by the Group

The Group early adopted the Improvement to HKFRS 2009 —
Amendment to HKAS 17 Leases (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January 2010) (“the Amendment”).
The Amendment, which is applied retrospectively, removes
the specific guidance on the classification of long-term leases
of land as operating leases. When classifying land leases, the
general principles applicable to the classification of leases
should be applied. The classification of land leases has to

be reassessed on adoption of the Amendment on the basis
of information existing at the inception of the leases. The
leasehold interests in land has been re-assessed as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment
on adoption of the Amendment. The early adoption of the
Amendment does not have any impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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RV mERM
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z-ZF=ZA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(d) The following new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations to existing standards are not yet effective for
the year ended 31st March 2010 and have not been early
adopted by the Group:

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related party disclosures

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements
HKAS 32 (Amendment)  Classification of rights issue

HKAS 39 (Amendment)  Eligible Hedged Items

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of HKFRS
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)  Group cash-settled share-based
payment transaction
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations
HKFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 Prepayments of a minimum
funding requirement
HK(FRIC) = Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash
Assets to Owners
HK(FRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

2. WEELE )
(d) Rgz—=—Z=F-A=-+-HLEFEH
A A A E B IR PR 55 S
EETER BB ALz BN :

BAGER BEALHE
F245%(187])

BEEHER A RERSBRE
E275(B7T)

Eos il ks HE
E325(FIBET)

BEEHER BB
E30%: (F1BET)

BRI BRE LR BREME B BRE
EALACCED 2R

BRI REER SEBESEEURA TN
E05% (18T 225

BRI BRE LR E5ant
E37 (B3]

BRI REER FELE 2 FRBEE
253 RESIHEE %S

B BRE LR SRIA
£93

Be(ERMBRE  REEEBECEAE
RAlREZES)
-RBE14R
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Improvements to HKFRS published by HKICPA in October

2008:

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

HKAS 2 (Amendment)

HKAS 16 (Amendment)

HKAS 19 (Amendment)

HKAS 20 (Amendment)

HKAS 23 (Amendment)

HKAS 27 (Amendment)

HKAS 28 (Amendment)

HKAS 29 (Amendment)

HKAS 31 (Amendment)

HKAS 36 (Amendment)

HKAS 38 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKAS 40 (Amendment)

HKAS 41 (Amendment)

HKFRS 5 (Amendment)

Presentation of Financial
Statements

Inventories
Property, Plant and Equipment
Employee Benefits
Accounting for Government
Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance
Borrowing Costs
Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements
Investments in Associates
Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies
Interests in Joint Ventures
Impairment of Assets

Intangible Assets

Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement

Investment Property

Agriculture

Non-current Assets Held for Sale

and Discontinued Operations
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z-ZF=ZA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2. REE%E )
Other minor amendments to HKFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: EEYEIRELENFETHE -2MmTHE - ¥
Disclosures, HKAS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in % BESEAESH - SRTECR - &
Accounting Estimates and Errors, HKAS 10 — Events After the FHEE 2 B RKER - ARG EASE
Reporting Period, HKAS 18 — Revenue and HKAS 34 — Interim 109 —EERESEIE - HBEERZE
Financial Reporting. 1855 — Wzs R B AT ERIE 3455 —
BB TSRS B E M EUEET ©
Improvements to HKFRS published by HKICPA in May 2009: EEetii e —_ZETNFERABEMZ
HEBWBREEANEL 2R -
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial EHeENE1% B RE Y 23
Statements 5
HKAS 7 (Amendment) Statement of Cash Flows EReENETSE BeHESR
(4E3)
HKAS 18 (Amendment) Revenue EBSHENE18% W25
(f8fE:T)
HKAS 36 (Amendment) Impairment of Assets e D [t o BERE
(&fE:T)
HKAS 38 (Amendment) Intangible Assets Fh e En|E3es B BE
(f830)
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: EH e E308 SRTE  BARHE
Recognition and (4®IE2T)
Measurement
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-based Payment ERITRRE LR PR A S 2 28
EvsHE D)
HKFRS 5 (Amendment) Non-current Assets Held for EBOTR RS BERE Y ERFEE
Sale and Discontinued E5%(mT) REAIHESEH
Operations
HKFRS 8 (Amendment) Operating Segments ERETSIRE %R g et
ELEHE D)
HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 (Amendment)  Reassessment of Embedded E# (R EHRE BEBASTAETA
Derivatives EERELZES)
—RES (K155T)
HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 (Amendment) Hedges of a Net Investment &5 (R Rs SEINETS IS TR
in a Foreign Operation EERELZES)
—RBE165 (8B
Improvements to HKFRS published by HKICPA in May 2010: EgetAenN —E—TERAEHRY
HEBYBREEANEH 2B RAT ¢
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) First-time Adoption of HKFRS ERESMERES1E  HREREEHME
(&EsT) HEER
HKFRS 3 (Amendment) Business Combinations ERESMAEER| B3 EHAH
(&iE:T)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: EEMBRRSENETSE SR TE: BE
Disclosures (5E:T)
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial EHOH ARS8 BBHRE 25
Statements C<CH))
Transition requirements for amendments arising as a result of BRI ERF 7RG S RIERIE
HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements WEFFEAIBITZIBEEETE
HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting EESENS345 b=ty g Resy
HK(FRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty EE(ERMBREEN  FPAHE
Programmes REZEE)-RE
Bk
The Group has already commenced an assessment of the AEEE ARG SR BB MRS
impact of these new HKFRS but is not yet in a position to state ERZ &2 BEABEEZSHI A
whether these new HKFRS would have a significant impact on SRR D | Y H A B R

its results of operations and financial position. IBRERFE -
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31st March each year.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to

the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of
the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.

R mER MG
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-_T-—THF=A=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31st March 2010
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BE_ T ZTF=A=1+—HLFE

For the year ended 31st March 2010

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies

of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Interests in associates

Associated companies are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in associated companies
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting
and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment
in associated companies includes goodwill identified on

acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss.

The Group’s share of its associated companies’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associated company equals or exceeds
its interest in the associated company, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments

on behalf of the associated company.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Board of

Directors that makes strategic decisions.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation

()

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of

the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different

from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

()  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as

a separate component of equity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(i) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations,
and of borrowings, are taken to shareholders’ equity.
When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold,
exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

(e) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold land and
buildings, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Leasehold land and buildings are stated in the balance sheet
at their revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the balance sheet date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and
buildings is credited to the revaluation reserve, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same
assets previously recognised as an expense, in which case
the increase is credited to the consolidated income statement
to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease
in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an asset is
dealt with as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the
balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(A

Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost or revalued amounts to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land and Over the remaining term of the

buildings lease or 50 years, whichever
is shorter
Furniture and fixtures 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Data centre equipment 10%

Computer and office 20% — 331/:%

equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in
the consolidated income statement. When revalued assets are
sold, the amounts included in other reserves are transferred to

retained earnings.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields and is not
occupied by the Group, is classified as investment properties.
Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined annually by
external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location
or condition of the specific asset. If this information is not
available, the Company uses alternative valuation methods
such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed annually
by external valuers, changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated income statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f) Investment properties (Continued)
If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair
value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised in equity
as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment. However, if
a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

(9) Intangible assets
(i) Intangible assets acquired separately

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
separately are recognised at cost. After initial recognition,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and non-financial

assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement when the asset is derecognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised
on a straight line basis over the commercial lives of the
underlying products, commencing in the year when
the products are put into commercial production.
Development expenditure capitalised is carried at cost
less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment loss.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets

the recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the

same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

QOutsourcing contract costs

Costs on outsourcing contracts are generally expensed
as incurred. Certain incremental external costs or
specific internal costs that are directly related to contract
acquisition or transition activities which were incurred
upon initiation of an outsourcing contract are capitalised
as intangible assets and amortised over the life of the
contract. These costs include the cost of due diligence
activities after competitive selection, costs associated
with installation of systems and processes.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(iv)  Club memberships
Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are stated
at cost less any identified impairment loss and are tested
for impairment annually by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired.

Other than club memberships, the above intangible assets
have finite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the following periods:
Deferred development costs 3 years
Outsourcing contract costs Over the remaining contract
life

Patents and licences 2 years

All of the Group’s patents and licences were acquired from
third parties.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets (Continued)
Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries or
associates is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiaries or associates in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment
in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of the

investee’s net assets including goodwill.

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets

with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in

an active market. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade receivables”, “other
receivables”, “restricted bank deposits” and “cash and cash

equivalents” in the consolidated balance sheet.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Loans and receivables
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event
(or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

o Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

° A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

° The group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

o It becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have

not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k)

U

(m)

(n)

(o)

Inventories

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and goods pending
customers’ acceptance and are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out (“FIFO”) method. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable

variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three months

or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p) Current and deferred income tax
The consolidated tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis

of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company

and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p)

(q)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle

the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood

that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to

any one item included in the same class of obligations may be

small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation

using a pre-tax that reflects current market assessments of the

time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and service provided in the normal course of
business, less returns and allowances.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred
to buyers (generally on delivery, satisfactory installation and
customer acceptance) and the amount of revenue and the

costs incurred for the transaction can be measured reliably.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

r)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from rendering of services, other than maintenance
services, is recognised as revenue by reference to the stage of
completion, provided that the revenue, the costs incurred and
the estimated costs to completion can be measured reliably,
unless such services are incidental to the sale of a product, in
which case they are recognised upon satisfactory installation
and customer acceptance. Stage of completion is established
by reference to the costs incurred to date as compared to the
total costs to be incurred under the transaction. Provision is
made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by the management.

Where recognised profits less recognised losses exceed
progress billings, the surplus is shown as amounts due from
customers for contract work. Amounts received before the
related work is performed are included in the consolidated
balance sheet, as a liability, as receipt in advance. The
balances will be recognised as revenue when earned.

Maintenance service income is recognised on a straight line
basis over the term of the maintenance service contract.

Sales of goods and services sometimes involve the provision
of multiple elements. In these cases, the Group determines
whether the contract or arrangement contains more than
one unit of accounting. An arrangement is separated if the
delivered elements have value to the customer on a stand-
alone basis, there is reliable evidence of the fair value of

the undelivered elements and delivery or performance of

the undelivered elements are considered probable and
substantially in the control of the Group. If all the criteria are
fulfilled, the appropriate revenue recognition convention is then
applied to each separate unit of accounting. Generally, the
total arrangement consideration is allocated to the separate
units of accounting based on their relative fair values.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance from
computer equipment let under operating leases, is recognised
in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the terms of the relevant leases.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(s) Retirement benefit costs

(t)

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) and other defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement plans, the cost of providing
benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method,
with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance
sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses which exceed 10

per cent of the greater of the present value of the Group’s
retirement benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets
are amortised over the expected average remaining working

lives of the participating employees.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that
the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on
a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits

vest.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet represents the present value of
the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised
actuarial gains/losses and unrecognised past service cost, and
as reduced by the fair value of plan assets. Any asset resulting
from this calculation is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses
and past service cost, plus the present value of available
refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Share-based payment

Share options granted to directors of the Company and
employees of the Group

The fair value of services received determined by reference

to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period or
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding

increase in equity (share options reserve).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Share-based payment (Continued)

Share options granted to directors of the Company and
employees of the Group (Continued)

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates

of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to share options

reserve.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry dates, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.

Leasing

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

() The Group as lessee
The group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
long-term payables. The interest element of the finance
cost is charged to the consolidated income statement
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of

the liability for each period. The property, plant and
equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the

lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(u) Leasing (Continued)
(i) The Group as lessor
When assets are leased out under an operating lease,
the asset is included in the balance sheet based on the
nature of the asset.

Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease
on a straight-line basis.

(v) Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are

approved by the Company’s shareholders.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS

4.1. Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(a)  Provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables
The provisioning policy for trade and other receivables of
the Group is based on the evaluation of the collectability
of those receivables and on management’s judgement.
A considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer and the realisation
of any repayment pattern promised. If the financial
conditions of these customers were to deteriorate,
additional provision may be required.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
4.1. Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)
(b)  Valuation of investment properties, leasehold land

(©

and buildings

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for similar leases and other contracts. In
the absence of such information, the Group determines
the amount within a range of reasonable fair values
estimated. In making its estimates, the Group considers
the information from the valuations of investment
properties, leasehold land and buildings performed by
external professional valuers by using the open market
value approach. Had the Group used different valuation
techniques, the fair value of the investment properties,
leasehold land and buildings would be different and
thus may have a impact to the consolidated income
statement.

Revenue recognition

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 3(r),
the Group uses the percentage of completion method
(“POC Method”) to determine the appropriate revenues
to be recognised from rendering of services (other

than maintenance services). The stage of completion is
measured by reference to the actual costs incurred up to
the balance sheet date as a percentage of total estimated
costs of completion.

If the total costs of completion differs from the
management’s estimates, there maybe an impact to the
consolidated income statement.

4.2. Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies
Income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions in
which the Group operates. Significant judgement is required

in determining the provision for income taxes. There are

many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate

tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes

will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters

is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax

provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves
and retained earnings as disclosed in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
prepare the annual budget taking into account of the provision of
funding. Based on the proposed annual budget, the directors of
the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
management of the Group, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt, if necessary.

As of 31st March 2010, the Group did not have any external debts
(FY09: Same).

There are no changes on the Group’s approach to capital risk
management during the year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(@) Market risk
() Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in
US dollars and Hong Kong dollars. Foreign exchange
exposure of the Group will continue to be minimal as
long as the policy of the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region to peg the Hong Kong
dollars to the US dollars remains in effect. There was no
material exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates, and
therefore no related hedging financial instrument was
applied during the year ended 31st March 2010 (FY09:
Same).
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to variable interest rate risk

in respect of the bank balances and deposits of the
Group. The Group currently do not have any interest rate
hedging policy. The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Dollars
variable interest rate on bank deposits and balances.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments including bank balances, at the
balance sheet date and the stipulated change taking
place at the beginning of the financial year and held
constant throughout the reporting period in the case of
instruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31st March 2010 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$1,548,000
(FY09: increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,930,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
deposits and balances.

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk was managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises

from cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits as

well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding

receivables and committed transactions. The Group only

places deposits in reputable banks and financial institutions

and manages its credit risk associated with trade receivable

through the application of credit approvals, credit rating and

monitoring procedures.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination

of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue trade receivables. In addition, the Group reviews

the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at each
balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credlit risk

is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
relation to trade receivables, bank balances and deposits,
with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and

customers.

The credit risk for bank balances and deposits is considered
minimal as the counterparties are banks with a minimal credit-
ratings of A3 assigned by international credit rating agencies.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset (Note 22) in the
balance sheet after deducting any impairment provision.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests
with the Board of Directors, which has built a liquidity

risk management framework for the management of the
Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
financial liabilities. The Group relies on operating cash flow as
a significant source of liquidity.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within

12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. IBEREE s
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REBHRK )

On demand or

within 1 year

BRER Over 1 year Total
RR—FR BBR—F st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
2010 - Group —E-EE-XEH
Trade payables FERE SR8 189,850 - 189,850
Other payables E b BT BRI 14,422 - 14,422
204,272 - 204,272
On demand or
within 1 year
AR Bk Over 1 year
TR —FR B im—4F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT FAT FAT
2009 — Group ZZETNF-FEE
Trade payables FERE S30E 151,499 - 151,499
Other payables HE T ARIE 32,114 - 32,114
183,613 - 183,613
The Group relies its surplus cash as a significant source of AEEGRBERCEBATDESCCEER
liquidity. As at 31st March 2010, the Group maintains cash BeM-_BE—ZFF=A=+—8 AEEZR
and cash equivalents of approximately HK$279,988,000 (FY09: £ MRS EEWH E279,988,0008 T(—FE
HK$385,953,000), which are readily available to meet the cash N EEE + 385,953,000/ 7T ) » 5% EHKIEA]
requirements of the Group. AREMRSEX -
On demand or
within 1 year
BRER Over 1 year Total
BR—FER R “st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FEx FEx
2010 - Company —E-FE-XRNF
Other payables H b fE{FBRIA 4,805 - 4,805
Amount due to a subsidiary RHB A TFRIE 341 - 341

5,146 - 5,146
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. IBERERE s
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBMRK )

On demand or
within 1 year
AR Over 1 year

FR—FA B —F t
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TR THIT

2009 — Company —EFNF-AKRNA]

Other payables H At fEfS AR 1A 3,137 - 3,137

Amount due to a subsidiary KM B AT IE 271 _ 271
3,408 - 3,408

(d) Fair value estimation (d) AFEEMEE

The carrying value less impairment of trade receivables, other AR BEENE  MERESHIE - Eith

receivables and deposits, restricted bank deposits, cash and EUGRIE iz e ~ ARGISRITFER - Be

cash equivalents, amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries, trade RESSEY - B () ME AR

and bills payables and other payables approximate their fair 15 - BB SHIEREERARHALER K

values due to their short maturities. The fair value of non- By FERERBESERLXATEEE

current portion of trade receivables are disclosed in Note 26. o BIE SFEAFEEZIERE D

KT 26 57

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARDEER

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable for WA T EAREERIINAREAHEER(NKRR
goods sold by the Group to outside customers, less returns and BRI RRERBEOBA 2 EWRER 2
allowances, and revenue from service contracts, and is analysed as FEE BT o

follows:

2010

—E-BF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FEx
Sales of goods HEE M 814,011 855,334
Revenue from service contracts RERRISE K 2 HA 515,971 505,654
1,329,982 1,360,988
The chief operation decision maker has been identified as the Board EE2([EF)EHHERBETELERESE -
of Directors (the “Directors”). The directors review the Group’s EEEHNAEENNBPERAETEEELR D
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate BER - EERIBEASE 2 NEERETLE

resources. The Directors have determined the operating segments DED o

based on the Group’s internal reporting.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The Group is organised into three operating divisions — Information
Technology Products (“IT Products”), Information Technology
Services (“IT Services”) and Global Managed Services (“GMS”).
These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary
segment information to the chief operating decision maker. The

business nature of each segment is disclosed as follows:

IT Products
Being the business of information technology in supplying of
information technology and associated products save for the

business under GMS segment.

IT Services

Being the business of information technology in providing systems
integration, software and consulting services, engineering support
for products and solutions, managed services save for the business
under GMS segment.

GMS

Being the business undertaken by the Group in the provision of
global management services (which include information technology
infrastructure administrative services function, facilities management,
network operation maintenance and on-site support, hardware
maintenance and desktop computing services) to clients in Asia
including Hong Kong, Thailand and Taiwan. The Group disposed

of the GMS business in August 2009 and the results of the GMS is

presented as discontinued operations (note 44).

Automated Systems Holdings Limited HEIR K EBBR AT

WAR D EER )

REEH= 1?&7%65 PIEAR —BABIRE®R
(TEMMER]) ﬂﬂ&ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬂ&
BR7% 1) RIRIRE I IRTE ([ IRIREERIE )

m%ﬁ%$%lmﬁﬁigﬁ%ﬁﬂ%IﬁM
EREE 2L - BEH P EBHERBED
-

BAMEER

BIftEEMBER RBRER 2 BB RE
BORME RIS D B2 RN

AABBARTE

BMEH RGBS « WU RERRY  ER KR
RERZTRXE - ERRBZAMBHREY
CREERRB A2 EBRI) -

RIREERE
AEBMAREMNZEFRERS ZERA
%%%Eﬁ%Zi%fﬁ%.f@ﬁ&f%(@%ﬁﬂﬂ&%@nﬂz
RS - RRIEERE PR EESCEREMIIRE -
BEHE %&;ﬁ@ﬂ“ﬂ&i‘%)z%ﬁ% o REEMNZ
ZZNFNALERREERBER - HRK
EEMRB 2 EEC R RERISLEB (T
44) ©



Automated Systems Holdings Limited HEIRAEEHRAE 97 Annual Report 2009/10 3§

RA M mER MR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-_T-—THF=A=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARZEER®

(Continued)
Segment information about these businesses is presented below: REXB DEEARZNNNT
Year ended 31st March 2010 BE-_Z-ZF=A=1+—HLEE
Discontinued
operations
Continuing operations B4
Total
continuing
operations Total
st Group
IT Products IT Services BE GMS st
ERRRER B R REER RRERRE x|
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TExT TR TR TR
Revenue from external customers  RBIMFEF 7 A 814,011 515,971 1,329,982 30,070 1,360,052
Intersegment revenue D ESEA 10,237 29,798 40,035 - 40,035
Segment revenue AEBA 824,248 545,769 1,370,017 30,070 1,400,087
Reportable segment profit ASRE D AR 33,264 59,120 92,384 4,170 96,554
Reportable segment assets AREDDEE 230,641 141,387 372,028 - 372,028
Reportable segment liabiliies R34 S E & 253,021 117,879 370,900 - 370,900
Depreciation and amortisation TEREBHE 1,170 7,735 8,905 10,573 19,478
Additions to property, REWE  BEREE
plant and equipment 1,444 7,153 8,597 3,268 11,865
Year ended 31st March 2009 HE-_ZTNFZA=Z+—HLFE
Discontinued
operations
Continuing operations
¥ )
Total
continuing
operations
[T Products IT Services s GMS
BB ER BB R RINERRS AEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT BT THT
Revenue from external customers R EIMNFEF 7 A 855,334 505,654 1,360,988 80,975 1,441,963
Intersegment revenue D EBREURA 21,831 40,961 62,792 - 62,792
Segment revenue HERA 877,165 546,615 1,423,780 80975 1,504,755
Reportable segment profit ARES AR 22,644 65,682 88,326 10,553 98,879
Reportable segment assets AREHHEE 202,872 106,965 309,837 63,590 373,427
Reportable segment liabilities AREDHEE 175,603 97,769 273,372 11,332 284,704
Depreciation and amortisation WEREE 1,944 10,733 12,677 29,554 42,231
Additions to property, NEWE - BERZE

plant and equipment 87 8,692 8,779 9,379 18,158
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
(@) The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Performance is measured based on segment profit that is
used by the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

Income tax expense is not allocated to reportable segments.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the Group
are allocated based on the operations of the segments.

Reportable segments profit is profit before income tax,
excluding unallocated share-based payment expense, share of
results of associates, unallocated other income, finance costs,
gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment,

fair value gain on revaluation of investment properties and
other corporate expenses (mainly include depreciation and
amortisation of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets, staff costs and other general administrative expenses)
of the head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude interests in associates,
restricted bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents and
unallocated corporate assets (mainly include property, plant
and equipment, investment properties and intangible assets
that are used by all segments, prepayments and deposits).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude current income tax
liabilities, deferred income tax liabilities and unallocated
corporate liabilities (mainly include accrued charges of the
head office).
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARZEER®

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment (b) TREZDPERSER - EE
profit or loss, assets and liabilities REEMNYHER
Reportable segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities are AREZ DR KEE EERARER
reconciled to results and total assets and total liabilities of the AEBEENBEENEBEHERND
Group as follows: T
Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a percentage 5350 1 88 65 FE B AR DA A1 B o

profit mark-up.

Profit or loss 2010
AR EE — 25
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FHT
Reportable segment profit Al #5216 A 92,384 88,326
Unallocated amounts: RO BLKIE
Unallocated other income RO BLEAMUA 6,646 5,158
Fair value gain on revaluation of BHREMEL
investment properties NEEE N 3,590 -
Unallocated finance costs ROBLELE BCA - (234)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - HER
plant and equipment HE B - (30)
Reversal of share-based LARR D AR S A
payment expense 2 Az E (361) (854)
Share of results of associates FEIGHEE A RIZEE 1,714 880
Unallocated corporate expense KB ARIFAX (50,356) (49,984)
Profit before income tax from RERE BIEYIHRE
continuing operations per REFHESEETE 2
consolidated income statement R BTAS B AlT i A 53,617 43,262

2010
—E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx F&T
Reportable segment assets ARE D EEE 372,028 373,427
Unallocated assets: ROBLAE
Interests in associates BN RS 3,095 1,381
Unallocated restricted bank deposits FORFRHRITER 29,538 -
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents RO RIBEEEY 279,988 385,953
Unallocated corporate assets AOBEEERE 146,212 122,801
Total assets per consolidated RErEBERABRYIR
balance sheet VB ELEER 830,861 883,562
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARZEER@®

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment (b) AIMEZDBREABEE - EE
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) FEaENERE)
Liabilities 2010
8fE —E-2F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHET FHIT
Reportable segment liabilities AHREDHEE 370,900 284,704
Unallocated liabilities: e =N
Current income tax liabilities BNERFriEHi B (E 5,316 5,776
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFTSHAE 11,056 14,571
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROMEEBE 38,116 47,015
Total liabilities per consolidated RiraBEBERYIW
balance sheet KB B8R 425,388 352,066
The Group’s businesses and segment assets are all located in rE l%i‘%&"*ﬁﬁ% HAUREAEEE
the respective place of domicile of the relevant group entities BEgomth  EHRESE - EBEM R
which include Hong Kong, Guangzhou, Macau, Taiwan and Fi - BB REH -
Thailand.

Revenue from continuing

operations from

Place of domicile external customers Non-current assets
REFESEE
FRTE# INEREF 2 A FRBEE

2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —TTHEFE E-2F TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$ (0[0/0]
THET TET TET T
Hong Kong Bk 1,182,242 1,198,447 147,400 173,700
Guangzhou EIN 27,550 18,379 1,144 381
Macau R 51,846 62,280 4,216 2,816
Taiwan =) 26,135 49,793 484 616
Thailand Z=H 42,209 32,089 905 1,270

1,329,982 1,360,988 154,149 178,783
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8. Hfug A

2010

—E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Interest on bank deposits RITFEARFE 942 3,869
Equipment rental income REHESUWA 3,454 3,454
Rental income from investment properties REJREYZF 2 HSWA 932 -
Exchange gain P& 3 e 1,361 -
Others Hih 697 1,289
7,386 8,612

FINANCE COSTS 9. MERA

During the year ended 31st March 2009, the amount represented
interest on bank borrowings that were wholly repaid during the same

year.

EXPENSES BY NATURE

RBE-ZENF=A=+—BILFE AH
RIBEARFA—FERNEBEEZRITEEZ
S e

10. RMEE B ZRX

2010

S
HK$’000
TR

HK$’000
TR

Employee benefit expenses
(excluding directors’ remuneration)
(note 11)

Depreciation and amortisation
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets (included in costs of

services rendered)

Directors’ remuneration (note 12)

Auditor’s remuneration:

Current year
(Over)/underprovision in respect of
prior year

Exchange losses

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (note 38(a))

Operating lease rentals in respect of:
Office premises
Computer equipment

Impairment of intangible assets
(note 20)

Provision for impairment of trade
receivables (note 26)

Reversal of provision for impairment
of trade receivables (note 26)

BERMHEX

(TBEE=ZDS)

(FFsE11) 343,208 315,859
Y%

Y - B KRR 16,386 20,465

EREE(BERIEERS

AR 694 1,446

EEMWe (FFE12) 13,410 6,366
ZEEREN S -

KEE 1,471 1,563

BEETE (BEERE), e

TR 21) 684

& &R - 182
HEME  BEREEZ

(Yez) /51 (I 7538(a)) (62) 30
EEFHERS

WAEYZE 8,224 6,814

EN R 3,075 3,075
B EEZRE

(Ff5E20) 200 -
FEURE 5308 2 BB RE

(FfisE26) 1,511 2,787
JEUE 5308 R ERERD

(Fff3E26) (1,930) -
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11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 1. EEEAET (REEEEH
(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’ £)
REMUNERATION)
2010
—E2-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Salaries and other benefits e REMBET 312,313 282,691
Performance related incentive bonus RIRE 2 RN EAL 22,851 23,951
Special bonus EFRITEAL 3,500 -
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREF B 7,704 8,441
Share-based payment expense ARG D AER S M2 X 340 776
Total employee benefit expenses EERAFALEE 346,708 315,859
12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 12.EEM<
2010
—E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Fees we 932 868
Other emoluments: Hif 4 -
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 4,833 4,259
Performance related incentive bonus FIRBRE 2 BRENEAL 2,721 877
Special bonus RRITEAT 4,500 -
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IRIEFIFF B 403 284
Share-based payment expense ARGt BERR S 2 FK 21 78

13,410 6,366
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12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nineteen (FY09:

12.EEM £ o
AATBH RN~ EEASBEE
o EE MM

twelve) directors were as follows:

Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefit ~ Share-based
and other incentive scheme payment
benefits payments Special  contributions expense
Fees HeR EH LT bonus R URGAEE Total
Name of director He R ZRERL BRI AEMS  XfzEX ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TR TR TEn TER TR Thn
(Note d) (Note e)
(Hfztd) GED)
LAl Yam Ting, Ready Bt - 2488 1,804 2500 273 12 7017
LAU Ming Chi, Edlward Ll - 1,325 617 1,500 56 9 3,507
LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon (Note &) Py (fsta) - 840 300 500 68 - 1,708
HU Liankui (Note &) = (k) 35 - - - - - 35
WANG Wehhang (Note ) T (3ha) % - - - - - %
CHEN Zhaohui (Note a) TREAE (lf3ha) % - - - - - %
YOUNG Meng Ying (Note a) Ba%(Hita) 100 - - - - - 100
LU Jiacj (Note ¢ 2R (i) 67 - - - - - 67
XU Peng (Note a) & (k) 73 - - - - - £
Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH (Note b) Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH
(Bizo) 101 - - - - - 101
KUO Chi Yung, Peter (Note b) DHE(H3t0) 65 180 - - 6 - 251
MOO Kwee Chong, John (Note b) MOO Kwee Chong, John
(K1) n - - - - - 7
Michael SHOVE (Note b Michael SHOVE(fztb) 2 - - - - - 2
Darren John COLLINS (Note b) Darren John COLLINS
(Kiztb) 2 - - - - - 2
WANG Yung Chang, Kenneth (Note b) WANG Yung Chang, Kenneth
(Bizo) 2 - - - - - 29
Andrew John ANKER (Note b) Andrew John ANKER([ifzEb) 2 - - - - - 2
CHEUNG Man, Stephen (Note ¢) Fx (k) 4% - - - - - 4%
HON Sheung Tin, Peter (Note b) B (M) 101 - - - - - 101
LI King Hang, Richard (Note b 58 (MHo) 101 - - - - - 101
932 4,833 2,721 4,500 403 2 13410
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12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

12.EEME »

2009
“ZTNF
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefit  Share-based
and other incentive scheme payment
benefits payments  contributions expense
Fees 4R FREE RIGER ARG AER Total
Name of director Sty ik Hitfghl 2 &EEA AR ZRZEX EEkd
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TER TER TER
(Note d)
(f3Ed)
LAl Yam Ting, Ready e - 2,526 691 260 40 3517
LAU Ming Chi, Edward 2% - 1,373 186 12 38 1,609
Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH (Note b)  Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH
i) 118 - - - - 118
KUO Chi Yung, Peter (Note b) EE (M) 74 360 - 12 - 446
MOO Kwee Chong, John (Note b) MOO Kwee Chong, John
(fitzEb) 74 - - - - 74
Michael SHOVE (Note b Michael SHOVE (fztb) 50 - - - - 50
Darren John COLLINS (Note b) Darren John COLLINS
(Fitzb) 50 - - - - 50
WANG Yung Chang, Kenneth (Note b) WANG Yung Chang, Kenneth
(ftzb) 50 - - - - 50
Andrew John ANKER (Note b) Andrew John ANKER(Fi1b) 50 - - - - 50
CHEUNG Man, Stephen (Note ¢) KX (FifsEc) 152 - - - - 152
HON Sheung Tin, Peter (Note b) 18 (Mi7b) 122 - - - - 122
LI King Hang, Richard (Note b) F (ko) 128 - - - - 128
868 4,259 877 284 78 6,366

(@  The directors were appointed on 29th September 2009.

(b)  The directors resigned on 20th October 2009.

(c) The director retired effective from the conclusion of the annual general

meeting of the Company on 26th August 2009.

(d)  The performance related incentive payments are determined as a
percentage of profit for the year of the Group.

(e) The special bonus is made in relation to the completion of the disposal

of the GMS business.

During the year, no remuneration has been paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group and no

directors have waived any remuneration.

@ EEASSENFEAA-TAAESE
b) EER-ETAEFA-FREE -

© EBFEE-ZETNFNAAZTRBRITZARF
B F R ER BRI

) FREABZEBEADEAEEFZENZA

DHETE °

©  FRHEALTIRASER IR IRE B RIS E 5 M
W o

RERN » REBINERGHESINAREE X
Mzie  WEEEEHEREIMME -
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The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year included

two (FY09: one) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out

in note 12 above. The remuneration of the remaining three (FY09:

four) highest paid individuals for the year are as follows:

BE-_T-—THF=A=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

13.hE8BEHZER

hEB&EHZREREREMB(ZETAMKEF
B —R)EF  FEZHHBEER EXME
1285 - ER=Z(CZTAMRFE : IH)
ZREHEE ZMEFBEIT

2010 2009

—E-=F —EThF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Salaries and other benefits FHeNEMEF 5,507 6,717
Performance related incentive bonus FRIBHRE 2 HEITEA 5,170 4,197
Special bonus BERITEAT 1,500 -
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFFT IR 291 312
Share-based payment expense LA BEB SN 2 X 22 52
12,490 11,278

Their remunerations were within the following bands:

WE 2N FTIIHmE

Number of individuals

BAR

2010
—g-%F

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000
HK$6,000,000 to HK$6,500,000

2,000,001 7T —2,500,000/% 7T
2,500,001}8 7% — 3,000,000/ 7T
3,500,0018 7% — 4,000,000/ 7T
4,500,001/ 7T —5,000,000/ 7T
6,000,000/ 7T — 6,500,000/ 7T
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

14. FRSHBE X

2010
—E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Current taxation: BNEAFRIR :
Hong Kong profits tax FEEREH 10,092 13,989
Overseas taxation HNRIR 464 906
Underprovision in prior years: BAFEBHBTE
Hong Kong profits tax BENER 212 83
10,768 14,978
Deferred taxation (Note 35) EERTE (MI7E35)
Current year REEG (319) (4,232)
Effect of change in tax rate HEUEIFE - (1,323)
319) (5,555)
Income tax expense Frisfif 10,449 9,423

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (FY09:

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. In June

2008, the Hong Kong government enacted a change in the profits

tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% commencing from the fiscal year

2008/2009. There are no capital gain tax in Hong Kong. Taxation on

overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable

profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.

BEENEH D IRBAEE (A ERDE MR
E165%(ZEZ NI BFE : 16.5% ) fF i #
# - RNZTT\EFERA - BERAEME=Z
TNE/ ZTTNFUBFERBERH17.5%
M /16.5% o REBE I MERKEHFIE « Foh
S ) 2 T 78 ) e BB N 4 A P AR U kAR
SECEEBAIERR 2 BITREAE -
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. FREFHBFAX @)

The tax on the Group’s profits before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax
rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

AREMERAEHANG N OB RERAEARE
PFEREN Z MEFOREBEMNERTEL
ERNT

2010
—E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHT
Profit before income tax FRETS BRI S 53,617 43,262
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5%  1Z& B S E16.5%5HE
(FY09: 16.5%) ZRB(ZETNMBFE :
16.5%) 8,847 7,138
Tax effects of: MBTE
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose FERB A E AR 790 766
Income not taxable for tax purpose FER T E T E R 2 WA (101) (628)
Underprovision in prior years BATEBETRE 212 83
Effect of different tax rates of overseas REINEBITEHH T RBIE
operations -7 (21) 53
Tax losses not recognised KRR < TTE B 1R 586 2,683
Effect of change in tax rate HEyg oo - (1,323)
Others EAh 136 651
Income tax expense FriSBix 10,449 9,423

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 19.5% (FY09: 21.8%).
The decrease is mainly caused by a change in the profitability of the

Group’s subsidiaries in the respective countries.

MEFHEARER19.6% ( ZZZ NI BF
€ :21.8%) ° BT EEHRAEERHRE
RZME R B ENNGESREPTEL -
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For the year ended 31st March 2010

15. DIVIDENDS 15.[RE
2010
—E-FF :
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FAT
Dividends recognised as distribution RERNERFHDIRZIRE.
during the year:
Special dividend in respect of FY09 of ZEZNIBEFEEZFERIRE
92.0 HK cents per share (FY09: 11.0 HK BAR92.0F I (ZZZAEHK
cents in respect of FYO8 per share) FE T\ UBEE
FRZ11.08(L) 286,491 32,696
Interim dividend in respect of FYO9 of ZETNIBEFEZRBERE
4.0 HK cents per share FH4.051 - 11,889
Final dividend in respect of FY08 of T )\BBEE 2 REAR B
6.0 HK cents per share HFh%6.075 1 - 17,834
286,491 62,419
Dividends proposed: FORAR S,
Special dividend in respect of FY09 of —ETNIBREEZHRIRE
92.0 HK cents per share Fh%92.0711 - 273,633

The directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31st March 2010.

During the year ended 31st March 2010, a special dividend of 92.0
HK cents per share was paid to shareholders (note 44).

16. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$4,039,000 (FY09: HK$1,139,000).

EEYTRBRERE_F—TEZA=+—

BIEFEZ KBRS -

REE-Z-ZTHE=A=+—-HBILFR KX
ERIRE G2 08I R B (HiFE44) -

16. R R FIRAIFH ABILEE

ERARRFBHRREE ZARFRAFEE A
JE15 8518 /34,039,008 T ( — ST NMHFE -

1,139,000 7¢) °
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For the year ended 31st March 2010

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE 17. 5B B

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share EABRE G AEE GIREE R EEEF Y
attributable to equity holders of the Company is based on the s . ’
iy pany BT BB E ¢

following data:

2010
—z-25

HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHT

P e

Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings AU ESRER RS
per share and diluted earnings per share BR| 2 BF 115,766 42,651

Number of shares

RHEE
2010
—E-ZF
’000
T8
Weighted average number of ordinary AUGTESRERRTNZ
shares for the purpose of basic earnings LimR ke T
per share 307,476 297,075
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares TR B s 2
— Share options — BB AR 553 964
Weighted average number of ordinary RAESRESRERNZ
shares for the purpose of LA IR
diluted earnings per share 308,029 298,039
Earnings per share from continuing operations AATBRAEABEAEEREFELE
attributable to the equity holders of the Company (B2 EBRER

2010 2009
—g-%5 —TEhE

HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FBT

Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings PRI E R B RIS S %75

per share and diluted earnings per BREAR LB SR AT

share from continuing operations ZBH 43,168 33,839
Earnings per share from discontinued operations RATRAFEAEERECKRLER
attributable to the equity holders of the Company EEB2ERER

2010
—g-%&

HK$’000 HK$000
FEx T

Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings RUETERE BRI & T
per share and diluted earnings per BREARESE AT
share from discontinued operations vl 72,598 8,812
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For the year ended 31st March 2010

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 18.Y% - BERSDE - K&

GROUP AND COMPANY B AT
(a) Group (a) F&£H
Leasehold Computer
land and Furniture and office
buildings  and fixtures Motor  Data centre equipment
e AR vehicles  equipment ERR Total
TiREF £E RE OBBRORE  BAERE EHY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET TAT TAT I
Cost or valuation BASEE
At 1st April 2008 RZEENENA-A 118,600 36,251 3,819 13,517 301,950 474137
Additions NE - 3,561 64 2,141 20,997 26,763
Disposals e - (497) (30) - (10,430) (10,957)
Transfer B - 4,085 - 364 (4,419 -
Exchange realignment EHERE - 726 (28) - (1,836) (1,138)
Revaluation adjustment EEHR (21,300) - - - - (21,300)
At 31st March 2009 R-EEAF=A=+-H 97,300 44,096 3,825 16,022 306,262 467,505
Comprising: B
At cost D% - 44,096 3,825 16,022 306,262 370,205
At valuation fhiE 97,300 - - - - 97,300
97,300 44,096 3,825 16,022 306,262 467,505
At 1st April 2009 RZZEZNFNA-A 97,300 44,096 3,825 16,022 306,262 467,505
Additions NE - 1,249 - 182 15,235 16,666
Disposals e - (459) - (259) (5,031) (5,749)
Transfer to investment properties BREREME
(note 19) (Bf519) (15,478) - - - - (15,478)
Exchange realignment ERERE - %8 23 - 628 749
Revaluation adjustment AR 17,278 - - - - 17,278
Disposed as part of the discontinued ~ {EAR A IHEEETH
operations (note 44) 2 & (FFE44) - - - (15,945) (138,539) (154,484)
At 31st March 2010 R-E-ZF=F=1-H 99,100 44,984 3,848 - 178,555 326,487
Comprising: BIE
At cost %N - 44,984 3,848 - 178,555 207,387
At valuation (D 99,100 - - - - 99,100
99,100 44,984 3,848 - 178,555 326,487
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 18. W% - MERRE —XE
GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued) RARAT @)
(@) Group (Continued) (a) KB G®)

Leasehold Computer
land and Furniture and office
buildings  and fixtures Motor  Data centre equipment

HE BRR vehicles  equipment ERR Total
THRET ®E RE BERORE  BAERE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT TET TET TEr TiET

Depreciation and amortisation EREH

At 1st April 2008 RZTZNEFNA-A - 33,123 2,230 4,912 210,647 250,912
Charge for the year FRk 3,022 2,146 398 1,167 43,096 49,829
Disposals HeE - (492) (30) - (3,609) (4,131)
Transfer B - 3,660 - 364 (4,024) -
Exchange realignment [ 5 BAE - 614 28) - (1,568) (982)
Eliminated on revaluation REEEHEE (3,022) - - - - (3,022)

At 31st March 2009 RZZENF=A=+-H - 39,051 2,570 6,443 244,542 292,606
Charge for the year ERG 2,308 2,112 392 974 21,131 26,917
Disposals & - (445) - (259) (4,864) (5,568)
Transfer to investment properties ERERAME(NT9)

(note 19) (168) - - - - (168)
Exchange realignment EHERE - 85 23 - 463 571
Eliminated on revaluation REMEEHE (2,140) - - - - (2,140)
Disposed as part of the discontinued ~ {EAD K HESE

operations (note 44) 2 —BAHE(H) - - - (7,158) (109,400) (116,558)

At 31st March 2010 RZZ-BF=A=t-H - 40,803 2,985 - 151,872 195,660
Carrying values REE
At 31st March 2010 RZZ-ZF
=A=1+-H 99,100 4,181 863 - 26,683 130,827
At 31st March 2009 RZZTNE

=A=+-A 97,300 5,045 1,255 9,579 61,720 174,899
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BHE-_ZT-THF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 18. % - BRERRE —LA&EH

GROUP AND COMPANY (Coniinued) RADT )
(a) Group (Continued) (a) &&EBEHm)
() The leasehold land and buildings were last revalued )y HELMREFTHE EE ﬁji%ﬁ
by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent BEEE2ITERA —E—F

(i)

(i)

professional valuer, at 31st March 2010 and 31st March
2009 at market value basis which is determined by
reference to market evidence of recent transactions

for similar properties. The revaluation gave rise to

a revaluation surplus net of applicable deferred

income taxes of HK$16,214,000 (FY09: deficit of
HK$15,263,000) which has been credited /(charged) to
the property revaluation reserve.

If the leasehold land and buildings had not been
revalued, they would have been included in these
consolidated financial statements at historical cost,

less accumulated depreciation and amortisation, of
approximately HK$56,111,000 (FY09: HK$69,182,000).

During the year, land and buildings with a carrying
amount of HK$15,310,000 has been reclassified from
property, plant and equipment to investment properties
as a result of change in usage.

(i)

(i

F=ZA=+— E&f7771¢ A
=t+t—RA2EmE LREYELY
RGZERE  RHEREETE
iy - BEENBRBERRENSRIE
EXEER#16,214,0008 T (=%
TNHEREFE « F5415,263,0007%

B A GIERZ )R ES
B

WHE T REFRWER  £g
RIS RN BEHTE REEA
56,111,000/ Tt (ZZEZT WM &
£ : 69,182,000 7T) st A& S irE
B EREK o

RER - ARMERRBRSE - AT
R 515,310,000 7T 2 -1 &2 12
FHRWE BEREEEFHES
BEWE -

(iv)  The Group’s interest in leasehold land represents finance vy AEBRESELHZBIERES
lease payments held in Hong Kong between 10 to 50 BEENTF10ES0FE 2 A E R+
years. Ko

(v)  Depreciation and amortisation of the Group’s property, V) ANEBZYE - WMELRREZITE

plant and equipment have been charged to the
consolidated income statement as follows:

RHEC RS Bk MERanT -

2010

—E-2F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FAT
Cost of services rendered TR 2 AR 19,929 40,965
Sales expenses HEBR 1,692 3,070
Administrative expenses 1THE R 5,296 5,794

26,917 49,829
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - 18. Y% - MERRXRE —TKE
GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued) RART @)
(b) Company (b) AT
Computer
and office
Furniture Motor equipment
and fixtures vehicles BER Total
EREEE RE WAERE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FABxT FAT FAET FAET
Cost RS
At 1st April 2008 RZZEZENFHEA—H - 1,802 5,261 7,063
Additions piN= 1,437 - 2,996 4,433
At 31st March 2009 RZZTENF=A
=+—H 1,437 1,802 8,257 11,496
Additions NE 23 - 365 388
At 31st March 2010 R=-E—SF=A=+—H 1,460 1,802 8,622 11,884
Depreciation and EREH
amortisation
At 1st April 2008 RZZZENFEA—H - 280 683 963
Charge for the year FRH 36 360 1,559 1,955
At 31st March 2009 RZEZNF=A=+—H 36 640 2,242 2,918
Charge for the year FRHk 346 360 1,457 2,163
At 31st March 2010 R=-E—ZSF=A=+—H 382 1,000 3,699 5,081
Carrying values BREE
At 31st March 2010 R-ZE—-ZEF=H=+—H 1,078 802 4,923 6,803
At 31st March 2009 R-ZEZNF=A=1+—H 1,401 1,162 6,015 8,578
Depreciation expenses of HK$2,163,000 (FY09: FERE2,163,0008 L ( Z T N KTFE
HK$1,955,000) have been charged to “administrative & :1,955,000/87T) ER{TEE A |F

expenses”. & o
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For the year ended 31st March 2010

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP 19. REYE - NEH
2010
—E-ZF
HK$’000
FHET
At 1st April 2009 RZZZNFNA—H -
Transferred from property, plant and equipment EEAYE - BRE &R (FEE18()ii) 15,310
(note 18(a)(iii))

Fair value gain NHBEEN 3,590
At 31st March 2010 RZE—ZEF=A=+—H 18,900

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated U T &REE R EIBRRERER

income statement:

2010
—z-%5
HK$’000
FHET
Rental income (note 8) WA (FIFE8) 932
Direct operating expense arising from EERSWAZKREYEMEEZ
investment properties that generate rental income HELERE 276
(@  The investment properties of the Group were last revalued at @ AEBZEEMERERBBELEEM
31st March 2010 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an BEMEERTERARN-_ZE—ZTF=A
independent professional valuer, on the basis of open market =+ —HRARMEEEETER -
value.
(b)  The Group’s interests in investment properties are analysed as o) AEBREENEZEZDIWWT
follows:
2010
—E-ZF
HK$’000
FHT
In Hong Kong, held on: NEBRH
Leases of between 10 to 50 years NF10Z=50F 2 HE 18,900
The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under non- BB REEE AR R RRSER S
cancellable operating leases are set out in note 41. CEEImN R AN
Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included BEASEEREYE  HMERENEIS1E ©

on page 151.
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP AND 20. B EE —AREBRARQ T
COMPANY
(a) Group (a) ~KEHE

Deferred  Outsourcing Patents
development contract and
costs costs licences Club
BEBRE MHER EF/fEK memberships Total

BA A R Bes ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT BT BT

Cost B

At 1st April 2008 RZFENEFNA—H 18,445 3,812 7,800 900 30,957
Disposals/write off HE /s (2,030) (172) - - (2,202)

At 31st March 2009 RZZEZNE=A=1—H 16,415 3,640 7,800 900 28,755
Transfer B 206 (206) - - -
Disposed as part of the FREREREEK L

discontinued operations —HH & (Fiz44)

(note 44) - (2,266) - - (2,266)
Disposals/write-off HE /M (223) (12) - - (235)
Exchange realignment R 14 - - - 14

At 31st March 2010 RZB-B&=f=1+—-H 16,412 1,156 7,800 900 26,268

Amortisation and BHERAEE
impairment

At 1st April 2008 RZFENFHA—H 16,576 2,443 7,800 - 26,819
Charge for the year ERHRR 1,212 423 - - 1,635
Disposals/write-off HE (2,030) (172) - - (2,202)

At 31st March 2009 RZEENF=A=1—H 15,758 2,694 7,800 - 26,252
Charge for the year FRMB 694 4 - - 735
Transfer R 156 (156) - - -
Impairment (note 10) A1) - - - 200 200
Disposed as part of the ERELREEE XKL

discontinued operations —E A& (HiFE44)

(note 44) - (1,412 - - (1,412)
Disposals/write-off HE /s (208) (12) - - (220)
Exchange realignment [ 5 B 12 1 - - 13

At 31st March 2010 R-E-ZFFE=f=1+-H 16,412 1,156 7,800 200 25,568
Carrying values REE

At 31st March 2010 R-E-Z£=fA=+-H - - - 700 700
At 31st March 2009 RZZEZNF=A=1—H 657 946 - 900 2,508
Amortisation of HK$735,000 (FY09: HK$1,635,000) is included #E4735,0008 L ( ZEZ M HEE -
in “administrative expenses” in the consolidated income 1,635,000 70 ) Jhst Al A BTG sE N 2

statement. [{TIRERA] -
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP AND 20. B EE—AREERAAT
COMPANY (Continued) (&)
(b) Company (b) ARF

Club membership

SFTE%
HK$’'000
FAT
Cost 5%
At 1st April 2008, 31st March 2009 and RZZZNFHNA—HB  —TTNF=A
31st March 2010 =t+—AkZZE-ZTF=A=+—H 500
Amortisation and impairment B RREE
At 1st April 2008 and 31st March 2009 RZZEZENFHA—BEZZETNF=A=1T—H -
Impairment (note 10) A (MEE10) 200
At 31st March 2010 R-E-—ZEFE=HA=+-—H 200
Carrying values IREE
At 31st March 2010 R-—ZE—ZTF=A=+—H 300
At 31st March 2009 RZZBEZNF=A=1+—8 500
Yo _— 22 ==
21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES - GROUP 21. BE N TR —ANEEH
2010
—EB-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
At 1st April 2009 and 2008 RZZETNEFERZZTTNF
MmA—H 1,381 501
Share of results of associate Ak o) A= NCIE 1,714 880
At 31st March 2010 and 2009 IS —TER _TTHE

-z
=A=+—H 3,095 1,381
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES - GROUP 21.BERTER - AEB W
(Continued)
Particulars of the Group’s unlisted associates at 31st March 2010 RZZE—ZEF=A=+—HERZZETNF=A
and 31st March 2009 are as follows: =t+—RB - RNEFEZIF EHBE QRGBT

Percentage

of nominal value
of issued ordinary
share capital

held indirectly

Country/place by the Company

of incorporation AATEERE
Name of associate AR 2 EBRITEERE Principal activities
BENREH Bx 2 EREGL FEXK
ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited Thailand 49% Provision of engineering
ZE and software services

heft TR R RTS

IN Systems (Macao) Limited Macau 33.3% Provision of engineering
SBPY and software services
R TE KRS

The Group’s share of results of IN Systems (Macao) Limited, and its AEEEE(5IN Systems (Macao) Limited Z 245
assets and liabilities, are as below: ARHEEERABENT :

2010 2009

—E-BF ThF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FAT

Total assets wmEE 10,454 9,088

Total liabilities FGY=N (1,169) (4,945)

Net assets FEE 9,285 4,143

Group’s share of net assets of associate REEEREE RARFEE 3,095 1,381

Total revenue FEL g 12,070 11,380

Total profit for the year REE 1 m T 5,142 2,640

Group’s share of results of associate for REBARFE RIGEE N A)

the year ZEE 1,714 880
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES - GROUP 21.BERRER - AEB W
(Continued)
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses AEEE K IEEREIHASL Automated Services
of ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited. The amounts of (Thailand) Limited&518  FE(LFZHS & A 8] 2 AN 4F
unrecognised share of results of this associate, extracted from the ERZFZARERE R E(HEEHERRZ
relevant management accounts of the associate, both for the year HEABTERB)WT :

and cumulatively, are as follows:

2010
—g-%f

HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TR

Unrecognised share of profit of an associate NFERMERIEN

for the year kNl 29 13
Accumulated unrecognised share of losses BErRMEREN
of an associate Bt N RIEE 591 620
22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 22. @R E D e TR T A -
CATEGORY - GROUP AND COMPANY REBRARTF
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied CRTEZSFBOREEAR TSSE :

to the line items below:

2010 2009
—EB-%F —ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
Group EE
Loans and receivables ER R ERRIE
Trade receivables FEWE 5508 148,551 126,314
Other receivables E b EYGRIR 9,021 11,939
Restricted bank deposits ZRREIRITIER 29,538 -
Cash and cash equivalents B4 MBSEEYD 279,988 385,953
467,098 524,206
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IR IER A BR 2 2R B &
Trade payables FEHE B R0E 189,850 151,499
Other payables E At BT RIE 14,422 32,114

204,272 183,613
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 22 RERIE S 2RI A -
CATEGORY - GROUP AND COMPANY NEBRANAD T (=)
(Continued)

2010
—E-2F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FAT
Company P NN |
Loans and receivables Bk ERE
Other receivables and deposits HipfEW B K iE S 50 149
Amounts due from subsidiaries LS)EENCIDNEN 82,887 54,220
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 5,793 3,430
88,730 57,799
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IR ASER 2 SR B 1S
Other payables E At T RIE 4,805 3,187
Amount due to a subsidiary N NGRSO 341 271
5,146 3,408
23. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES - 23. R B AR ZIRE — &1 F
COMPANY
Company
AR
2010 2009
—E-BF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMRRG « R 134,623 134,623
Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the FEMBR A BEERRRE M HRENEL6

consolidated financial statements.
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24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO 24.FEW / FEAS B X B 2RIE —
SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY XA FE]
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are denominated in Hong FEULFER B A TIRUE AEIEH - 28 RE
Kong dollars and are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on REKER  WEFRLUBTTEE - AREEH
demand. The carrying amounts approximate their fair values due to HE BEEEEEENTEEMEE -

their short maturities.

25. INVENTORIES - GROUP 25. 7 E—AEH
2010
—E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET F&T
Goods held for resale FHEEEZED 21,124 27,618
Goods pending customers’ acceptance BEBFPEMNZED 80,696 76,849
101,820 104,467
Goods held for resale and goods pending customers’ acceptance REBEZENMREREPEMNZENMEER
mainly represent computer equipment and software products. BB R ER ©
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included ERRMAI WA AIHEERAN | 2 FEKAE
in “cost of goods sold” amounted to HK$738,832,000 (FY09: £738,832,000 8 L (ZEZENMERFE -
HK$761,890,000). 761,890,000/ 7T ) °
=, ==
26. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP 26. ENE B RIE - KREH
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEThF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FH&T
Trade receivables e E 5 FIB 151,402 130,849
Less: provision for impairment of receivables A EGRIE 2 RE R (2,851) (4,535)
Trade receivables — net FEWE 5308 —F 88 148,551 126,314
Less: non-current portion of trade receivables & : JEWE 5718 2 IER BN H (627) -
147,924 126,314
All non-current receivables are due within five years from the balance FraIEmBIEN IR EE B A FANEE] -

sheet date.
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP (continued)

The Group has granted credit to substantially all of its customers for
30 days and has credit control procedures to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables at 31st March 2010 and
2009, based on ageing from payment due is as follows:

N B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-_T-—THF=A=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

26. FEWE Z I8 — KNEB (o)

FEBZABRPERLIGZHEIAEEH -
AEERNEREERSRASEERBRRER
1K - SAEIEEE B2 FORREE T EH M
=E -

RUEZHER _E—ZEFR_TTNF=A
=T RZREDITIRBENREMAMNT

2010
—E—=F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Current BNHEA 119,171 77,559
Within 30 days 30KLAA 9,583 24,893
31 - 60 days 31E60XK 11,488 9,786
61 —90 days 61£290K 3,730 4,428
Over 90 days HBIBIOK 7,430 14,183
151,402 130,849

As of 31st March 2010, trade receivables of HK$29,380,000 (FY09:
HK$48,755,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to
a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent

history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as

R-ZE-ZF=A=+—-0 BEREFX
18 29,380,000 T (ZETNH B F E ¢
48,755,000/ 70 ) AE B EER TIR(E ° ZE/E
WE 5 RIS E W R B R Lk s BU &

follows: FEA - ZERKESFAZERERITHOT
2010
—E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#&x FAT
Past due less than 90 days AHITE90H 24,801 39,107
Past due over 90 days AHIEBI0H 4,579 9,648
29,380 48,755

As of 31st March 2010, trade receivables of HK$2,851,000 (FY09:
HK$4,535,000) of the Group were past due and impaired. The
ageing of these receivables are over 90 days, and full provision
has been made on these receivables. The individually impaired
receivables mainly relate to several customers, which are

experiencing financial difficulties.

RZZ—ZTF=A=+—0 A&£EZEK
B 55 I82,851,0008 T(ZETNHBFE :
4,535,000/ 7C) R ERE TEE - BEEW
M2 BRERBE90A - WE I EEMGRIAIEL
2HEE - ERIRERKFIEEZEEZER
KER#S s EPAR -
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP (continued)

The trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Automated Systems Holdings Limited HEIR K EBBR AT

26. FEWE ZFRIE —

AEEH @

FEUE SR T oI EHEHE -

2010 2009

—s-%F THE

HK$’000 HK$ 000

T Tt

Hong Kong dollar BT 69,695 101,822
United States dollar ETT 33,571 2,626
Renminbi AEE 13,867 5,124
Thailand Baht Zeék 25,130 6,220
Others Hit 9,139 15,057
151,402 130,849

As at 31st March 2010 and 2009, the carrying amounts of trade

receivables approximate their fair values. The fair value of the

non-current portion of trade receivables are based on cash flows

discounted using a rate based on the borrowing rate of 7%.

Movements of the Group’s provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

RZZE—ZEFR-_ZTENF=A=+—0 " &
WE SFIEZ RAEEEQNFEERE - B
B 58 2 FERB I N FEEIRIEFAE
BER7%MB 2B ERAE -

REEZ EWE ZHIAZRMERBESNT

2010 2009

—E-BF ZETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx FHT

Balance at the beginning of the year FHEEH 4,535 4,183

Provision for impairment of receivables U RIE 7 (B 1,511 2,787

Reversal of provision for impairment of 5] FE UGB A

receivables 2B E (1,930) -
Receivables written off during the year FEE A A E 2

as uncollectible FEM IR (1,265) (2,435)

Balance at the end of the year FIREER 2,851 4,535

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have FEUWGRIE 2 BB 2 RS R ERBRE G ALRE

been included as part of administrative expenses in the consolidated

income statement (note 10).

BERIERTHA —afn (EE10) »
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP (continued)

27

Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off
when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS - GROUP AND
COMPANY

N B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26.

27.

BE-_T-—THF=A=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

FEWESFHE—-ER
BB BRI 2 S H — RN BT W E A
5B S B -

AEEY BB E AR RERER -

A BRE - RS REM
#0E — AEERAAT

Group Company
rEH AT
2010 2009 2010
—B-=F —TTNEF —B-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FTET FHET
Other receivables H b U FOR 595 101 3 2
Deposits biera 6,091 6,351 - 6
Prepayments TER IR 17,998 12,922 559 442
Amount due from an associate = UNSIVE - - 47 47
Amounts due from former fellow EIEEIGIEINGIVAG
subsidiaries 2,335 5,487 - 94
27,019 24,861 609 591

Other receivables and amounts due from an associate and former
fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

The credit terms for the amounts due from former fellow subsidiaries
are usually 30 to 90 days. As at 31st March 2010 and 2009, the
amounts due from an associate and the former fellow subsidiaries

were not yet due.

H o FEUCRIR KB N R R AT R R B A BIR
PR RN - 28 NARERER -

FEEE

AIRRMBARRRZ CHRA—RA/OAE
9Q0RH - RZE—ZTFR_TENF=R=+—
B BE R RAR FEME AR R AR -



Annual Report 2009/10 %3 124  Automated Systems Holdings Limited EEI &S EMERA S

RE BRI T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-THF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

27. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 27. B ENEIE « RS R TEM
AND PREPAYMENTS - GROUP AND I — AEERAD T )
COMPANY (Continued)

The balances are denominated in the following currencies: R THIA T H S EHE

Group Company
AEH A F]
2010 2009 2010 2009
—g-BF "TTAF =B-BF _TIAF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FHIT FTHET FHIT
Hong Kong dollar BT 17,435 13,138 609 591
Renminbi AR 1,821 2,554 - -
New Taiwan dollar HE 3,558 6,619 - -
Others EHAh, 4,205 2,550 - -
27,019 24,861 609 591
As at 31st March 2010 and 2009, the carrying amounts of other RZE—ZTFR-ZFTNF=A=+—AH H
receivables, deposits and prepayments approximated their fair HEUGIE - e RIEMNRBEZREEELR
values. FEERS °
28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS 2. 5N IREREFRE-—X
FOR CONTRACT WORK - GROUP £H
As at 31st March 2010 and 2009, the balance represents contract RZE—ZTFR_ZFTNF=A=+—H0 " #&
costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses and BRIE P 4 2 & KB AN N E e 380% FRL 2 iR

progress billings. BRI E AR -
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29. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS, CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - GROUP
AND COMPANY

N B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29.

BE-_T-—THF=A=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

SZREBTER > BERR
TEBY - FKEERARRQT

Group Company
AEE PO /NE ]
2010 2009 2010
—E-FF ZZETNF —ZT-EfF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT FER FAT
Cash at bank and on hand RITNFHEIRE 264,079 377,499 5,793 3,430
Short-term bank deposits REHRERITIF IR 15,909 8,454 - -
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBESZEY 279,988 385,953 5,793 3,430
Restricted bank deposits PR &SR TIF K 29,538 - - -

Restricted bank deposits as at 31st March 2010 represented

fixed term deposit placed in commercial banks in Hong Kong and
Thailand that were pledged against certain banking facilities granted
to the Group.

Bank balances and short term bank deposits carry interest at market
rates with average interest rate of 0.12% and 0.13% (FY09: 0.3%

and 1.89%) per annum, respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following

RZZE—ZF=A=+—RAUZRHIRITHFK
BERNEB LB ZBERTZERFR
EHEERRNEEE TERIRITRVE ZHER

IBITEHR LSRRI ERIEMS AR E - F
HEFRRD R E0.1280.13%( Z BT NI HE
€ :0.3%%1.89%) °

Re kR FEMATIIERHE

currencies:
Group Company
rEHE AT
2010 2009 2010
—E-ZF —TTNE —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHT FET FAT
Hong Kong dollar BT 235,530 286,348 5,786 3,426
Renminbi AR 1,824 1,707 4 1
New Taiwan dollar HEe 17,751 15,606 - -
United States dollar ESiv 12,252 64,675 3 3
Other EHih 12,631 17,617 - -
279,988 385,953 5,793 3,430
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BHE-_ZT-THF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

29. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS, CASH 2. TREILITEFT  BHERHE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - GROUP TEEY - XXEBRAD T
AND COMPANY (Continued) (4)

Restricted bank deposits were denominated in the following SREIRITERTIA T EEE -
currencies:

Group Company
AEH ¥ /NG|
2010 2010 2009
—E-BF 2 —E-ZF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHT FET FAT
Hong Kong dollar BT 26,154 - - -
Thailand Baht ZRER 3,384 - - _
29,538 - - -
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. iR 4

Number of shares Amount
REE x|
2010 2009 2010

—g-8F -3 —g-2%
’000 ' HK$’000 HK$’000
I FHT BT

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREEA0E LR

Authorised: EERA
At 1st April and 31st March REA—BRER=A=+—H 600,000 600,000 60,000 60,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER -
At 1st April RIUA—H 297,427 296,657 29,743 29,666
Exercise of share options 1I{RiE IR 13,976 770 1,397 77

At 31st March R=A=+—H 311,403 297,427 31,140 29,743




Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB Z##EARAE 127  Annual Report 2009/10 &3

N B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-_T-—THF=A=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 30. R ()

During the year, the Company issued 13,976,000 ordinary shares RER  BEAQA ZERESZ

of HK$0.10 each at the subscription prices ranging from HK$1.28 13,976,00078 & @ i% & AR E(E0.1078 7T M AR
to HK$2.40 per share (FY09: 770,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 BESKNT1.28BTE2408TTHE (=TT
each at the subscription prices ranging from HK$0.90 to HK$1.95 FLET A FE 5770,00078 X 38 A% T A E{E0.10
per share) under the share options scheme of the Company (Note ST AR B B E I F0.0058 TTE1.9587T)
36). (B3E36) ©

The new shares rank pari passu with the then existing shares in issue IS IR A RN E R B A R o

in all respects.

31. RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 3. B — AEEEAAT
(a) Group (a) =%£H
2010
—E-FF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Special reserve RIS 34,350 34,350
Property revaluation reserves YIS E GG 36,801 20,587
Translation reserve B 1,632 905
Share options reserve B AR - 6,639
Retained earmnings 1REB & F 196,603 360,328
269,386 422,809
()  Movements of each component of the reserves are set ) RESHEIZEHHRNGEERD

out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. B o
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For the year ended 31st March 2010

31. RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 31. 4% — AEER AL T @)
(Continued)
(b) Company (b) AT
Share-
Special option Accumulated
reserve reserve losses Total
SRlfEE  ERERE E=y wst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FAxT T FAT FAT
At 1st April 2008 RZZEZNFHA—H 95,513 858 (5,920) 90,451
Loss for the year FEEIE - - (1,139) (1,139
At 31st March 2009 R-ZEZAF=A=+—H 95,513 858 (7,059) 89,312
At 1st April 2009 RZBEZNFNA—H 95,513 858 (7,059) 89,312
Loss for the year FEEE - - (4,039 (4,039)
Transfer to retained earnings ~ #&# &= {RE 2 F
(Note 3(t) (FFFE3(H) - (858) 858 -
At 31st March 2010 R-—E-ZFF=H=+—H 95,513 - (10,240) 85,273
()  The special reserve of the Company represents the i) ARFZFERFEREARR BRI
difference between the par value of the Company’s M@ ARBBITRAMBEITZRG
shares issued in exchange for the issued share HEHEMKENBAREEFEZ
capital of the subsidiaries and the net asset value of EFNMEREE—NANAF=A
the subsidiaries acquired, and the credit arising from =T —HUIEFEHBRAMELEZ
the reduction of share capital during the year ended ER - BREBRE-NAN—F2A7
31st March 1999. Under the Companies Act 1981 of EARIER]) - MBS BBIEA ARG
Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus shall THIEIE - ABARBRTAIHIK :

not be distributable if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the payment be, (1) AREIREFSFMEH A RE &
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or ERESE Ex'JE@HqS'ZH%%’i ;
o,
(2)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would (2 AREEBEEZAIZREEHFRA
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities mAPREAEREDEITRA
and its issued share capital and share premium LA R B 5 42 (B BR 2 4870 o

account.
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BE-_T-—THF=A=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

32. TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP 3. ENEZRE-KEH
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the balance sheet ENESHRERGEE BRSNS A ZER
date, based on payment due date, is as follows: SR ¢

2010

—E-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current BNER 129,757 96,245
Within 30 days 30K AR 34,454 46,312
31 - 60 days 31ZE60XK 12,205 5,751
61 — 90 days 61ZE90K 4,289 1,283
Over 90 days [EHEIS0FN 9,145 1,908
189,850 151,499

The balances are denominated in the following currencies: ERRTIA TS B ETHE -

2010

—E-BF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Hong Kong dollar BT 140,764 121,500
Renminbi AREE 2,900 1,927
United States dollar E 27,052 20,920
Thailand Baht ES7 15,742 2,699
Others Hih 3,392 4,453
189,850 151,499
At 31st March 2010 and 2009, the carrying values of trade payables RZZE—ZEFR_ZTTNF=A=+—H &

approximated their fair values. NESFEZRAEAEAFEEES -
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BHE-_ZT-THF=A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

33. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS - 3. HMENSERESS A -
GROUP AND COMPANY AEBR KA T
Group Company
rEE AT
2010 2010
—E-2F =T —E-2F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH T FAT FEx FAT
Other payables E b R 13,759 5,370 4,805 3,137
Accruals [t EA 37,234 26,735 4,509 535
Deferred income IRIEWA 631 - - -
Amount due to the ultimate R B AR A A)
holding company WIE 597 - - -
Amount due to the former RATERASPERR A A
ultimate holding company Eer] - 16,874 - -
Amounts due to former fellow PNGTIGE NG
subsidiaries IR - 9,160 - -
Amount due to an associate KRB N T FNIE 66 710 - -
52,287 58,849 9,314 3,672
The balances are denominated in the following currencies: EER YA TS EHEEHE

Group Company
REHE VNN
2010 2009 2010
—E-EF TENF ZB—BF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT FHxT FHT
Hong Kong dollar BT 41,506 47,728 9,314 3,672
Renminbi AR 2,380 2,851 - -
Others Hih 8,401 8,270 - -
52,287 58,849 9,314 3,672
At 31st March 2010 and 2009, the carrying values of other payables RZE—ZTERZZTTNF=-A=+—H H
and accruals approximate their fair values. fERTRIERES BA 2 REERA N TEE
E -
The amounts due to the ultimate holding company, former ultimate REEIZR AT - FIEEIZERAR ~ BIR R
holding company, former fellow subsidiaries and an associate are BRARKBE A 2 FIAREER 22 RA
unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand. REREE -
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34. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE - GROUP

34. FAWFIE — A EE

Receipts in advance represent advance payments received prior to: TEUGRIEBIRA T 4l 15 50 BT URCER 2 3K

()  delivery of goods which is recognised in the consolidated () REERERERRINELEEERE
income statement upon the delivery of goods; and #R)

(i)  delivery of service which is recognised in the consolidated (i) RHERB(EREEEF,EOTANRE

HHF'EJEZM\}E&EEE’EE ) e

income statement over the service period stipulated in the

35.

respective customer contract.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES -

GROUP

The movement in the deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

5. ELEFIEHARE - AKE
BIEFTSHBEZEFHMT ¢

2010
e

HK$’000
FTET

HK$’000
T

At 1st April 2009 and 2008

REIZZNAFR

—EEN\FHEA—H 14,571 23,142

Tax charged/(credited) directly to equity g g AR EENR S (GEA) 3,204 (3,016)
Realised as part of the discontinued FRRERIEEB

operations (note 44) —&o (H3E44) (6,400) -
Tax credited to the consolidated income AR EBEECHIE

statement (note 14) (BF3E14) (319) (5,555)
At 31st March 2010 and 2009 RIZE—ZFR

—ZTTENF=RA=+—H 11,056 14,571

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried

forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit

through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31st March
2010, the Group had unused tax losses of HK$19,288,000 (FY09:
HK$15,736,000) available for offset against future profits. A deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of HK$1,393,000 (FY09:
HK$1,863,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining HK$17,895,000 (FY09:
HK$13,873,000) due to unpredictability of future profit streams, of
which HK$8,713,000 (FY09: HK$6,619,000) will expire within 2 to 5
years and HK$3,570,000 (FY09: HK$1,460,000) will expire within 5

to 10 years.

ARBIEBE IR EATENREB ISR
RIRFERT BT T LA IR & AR ERAIETRH
BHEAE RZZE—ZF=A=+—R0 %%
B 5 K B FA 72 18 &518.19,288,000/8 0 (Z 2 &
NETEREE © 15,736,0007% 7T ) A A B 85 R
Hom A o IRFERIE A B B 3L B g 181,393,000
BT(ZZEZ NP BFE © 1,863,000 7T ) #
R o E AR AL TE IR AR R AOR - 8 4 Bt
B2~ 217,895,000 T (=TT WM ERFE ¢
13,873,000/ 7T ) HERIRLEHIE A ZE - Hp
8,713,000/ L ( ZEZ NI HEFE : 6,619,000
PEoT) B2 5F M EIH - 13,570,000 7T
(ZZTNEHREFE ¢ 1,460,000 7T) 52
10FREIH -
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SE-TFZASt-ALEFE

For the year ended 31st March 2010

35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES -

GROUP (Continued)

Automated Systems Holdings Limited HEIR K EBBR LT

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally

enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax

liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same

fiscal authority. The movement in deferred income tax assets and

liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation

jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

35. IRt

EFiEHERE-—AEBw

EEAAAKANRAEERENMNEREN

AECEBITHER) -

BZEEERAGER

BERABUPAETHRER @ RIEHIEEE R H
BIEFIRREEEERE - £ BEMEHE
ERBREMNEHER—BHIREERE 2 &85 0W
T

Accelerated REVEITEL)
tax of
depreciation properties Tax loss Total
MERBIETE YIS Big @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT BT THET FET
At 1st April 2008 RZZZNFHA—H 15,538 7,604 - 23,142
Credited to consolidated income PR BEENTA
statement (3,925) - (307) (4,232)
Credited to equity E RRARFEA - (3,016) - (3,016)
Effect of change in tax rate (note 14) il R E) 7 22 (Mi5E14) (888) (435) - (1,323)
At 31st March 2009 R-Z Jﬁ A=+—H 10,725 4,153 (307) 14,571
Charged/(credited) to consolidated RERE B
income statement (B / aJr)\ (989) 592 78 (319
Realised as part of the discontinued BHADKRILER —HD
operations (note 44) (Bdzx44) (6,400) - - (6,400)
Charged to equity BRAF R - 3,204 - 3,204
At 31st March 2010 R-E-ZF=A=+—H 3,336 7,949 (229) 11,056

The analysis of deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

ERERIAEEZ

—=—

Baxintl

2010
25

HK$°000
TR

Deferred tax liabilities — to be recovered

after more than 12 months

EIERIARE R
881218 A &g E

11,056

=

HK$°000
TR

14,571
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
16th October 1997 for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to any employee and/or director of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual under the Scheme shall not
exceed 25% of the aggregate number of shares for the time being
issued and issuable under the Scheme. Options granted must be
taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon payment of HK$1
as consideration per grant. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company, and will not be less than the higher of
80% of the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant of the options, and the nominal value of the shares.

Pursuant to the amendments to Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange which became
effective from 1st September 2001, any options granted after 1st
September 2001 must comply with the provisions of the revised
Chapter 17. In order for the Company to be able to grant options
to its director and/or other eligible participants after 1st September
2001, the Scheme was terminated and a new share option scheme
(the “New Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed
in the general meeting held on 8th August 2002. As a result, the
Company can no longer grant any further share option under the
Scheme. However, all share options granted prior to 1st September
2001 will remain in full force and effect.

N B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-FT-FF=A=+BLEE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

36. B I RE ST &

RAARQARSEEAMEARZEMEE R
FERREEFH RO - AR —ANEF
TA+ ARG —IABEER S ([ZAE)) -
BREZA AR TENALZBRETREZ
BHEB - &RZTEBBRZ BT RTRS
Bt 8 8225% - ERBBERELANRHA
HIEE A28 RN - A ER R A
BTERRE - (TRENHEAARESETE -
g DRI O R B R B8R R ER
5 AR Pz IR B 2 80% & A /) E {E
mEPzREE -

RBRPAESR LRSS+ EEZERI (R
EZ-FAA-BER)  RZTBE—FhA—
BBRE 2 EMBRECRTEEEITET£
B2 - BRABARRAR-_FE—FNA
—HERAEERR SHMEER2EERE
B - ARFERIEZEE - WIRENR-F
ZoFNANBRTZRERAE BB ZRE
IR IR ORI ([#at 8 ) - Bt
RRB NS ERIFZTEE — SR BEABK
oA R-ZEZ—FAA-RRIEREZ
PR IDARE T RBARBA -
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (ontinued) 36. BE R RESH & )

Under the New Scheme, the directors of the Company may grant
options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time. The total
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time. Options granted
must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon payment
of HK$1 as consideration per grant. There is no general requirement
that an option must be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the directors of the Company is empowered to impose
at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant of

any particular option. The period during which an option may be
exercised will be determined by the directors of the Company at its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than
10 years after it has been granted. The exercise price is determined
by the directors of the Company, and will not be less than the higher
of (a) the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant; (b) the average of the closing prices of the shares on
the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the options; and (c) the nominal value of the
shares. The New Scheme will expire on 7th August 2012.

The outstanding options under the Scheme and New Scheme that
were not exercised were lapsed and determined on 20th October
2009 and 13th October 2009 respectively. (Note 44)

At 31st March 2009, the aggregate number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted under the Scheme and the New
Scheme was 16,000,000, representing 5.4% of the shares of the
Company in issue at that date.

RIEHE ARREEURAERER(BIF
ARFBREMBAR 2ER)REBREAR
BARBRA - REFH BT R H 2 B
RB 2D EE - NMIEBAR B RMEME
ZEBETRD 210% © REAFERTERA
TeBRENRE MDA TEEAAR
AIREMERZ D BTN Z21% - EREER
REMARR L BB R 28 R A4 - N EIA
EHRAZNIBTHERRE - BRHLE—K
HE BB A ATTRERERMSARA
B 2 EMREHR - EARTESERE
RE AR E B RER - BEEERRE
HiR o AITTEBREZ SREBARRESS
REIBEE  EEAERE -2 TEREHA
HIEEH10FBRITHR - (TRENHARTES
BT R IEIRUT=Eh28E%E (@)
PP BB R AR P 2 T (B (D)AR
RS B HIAT B E5 5 AR 3P 2
FHYHE - ROKMHEE - FEtEER_F
——FN\AtHE®m -

Rizat B LT EA T 2 HARITRERED D
AMR—TETAF+AZ+HAR=-ZTNAF+A
T=ARBREL o (FfEE44)

RZZEZNF=A=+—8  BEZTERT
AT &M 2 AR #E £7516,000,000% + A%
RAREIAE BE1TaMH 25.4% °



Automated Systems Holdings Limited BB Z##EERAE 135  Annual Report 2009/10 i

N B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-_T-—THF=A=1+—HLEE
For the year ended 31st March 2010

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 36. BE IR REST & )
The following table discloses details of the share options held by TEREERE (BREES)THAENEREEAR
employees (including directors) under the Scheme and the New FEM FFEANBEZE RIS 2 a5
Scheme and movements in such holdings during the current and 15 :

preceding years:

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options
RITEBRERBTZRE
Balance at Balance at
1.4.2009 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 31.3.2010 Exercise
RZEENE during during during during R=E-—B& price per

Date of grant B—AH the year the year the year theyear =A=1+—H Exercise period share
REAH ZHE  REARE REATE RERAR RERGH A | TEAR SROTEE
HK$
BT

2010
—g-%%
Scheme
Zitdl
20.10.2001 to &
19.10.1999 1,835,000 - (1,780,000) (55,000) - - 19.10.2009 2.30
12.2.2002 to &
11.2.2000 55,000 - - (55,000) - - 11.2.2010 3.35
1.7.2002t0 &
30.6.2000 40,000 - - (40,000) - - 30.6.2010 3.40
27.7.2003t0 &
27.7.2001 2,008,000 - (1,912,000 (96,000) - - 26.7.2011 2.40
3,938,000 - (3,692,000 (246,000) - -
Weighted average
exercise price
IHETFIa{TEE 2.38 - 235 275 - -
New Scheme
#atd
20.11.2003t0 &
20.11.2002 1,430,000 - (1,430,000 - - - 19.11.2012 1.34
6.8.2005t0 &
6.8.2004 1,296,000 - (1,280,000 (16,000) - - 5.8.2014 1.28
9.6.2006 to &
9.6.2005 2,364,000 - (2,364,000) - - - 8.6.2015 1.98
19.6.2007 to &
19.6.2006 2,768,000 - (2,768,000) - - - 18.6.2016 1.95
30.6.2006 to &
30.6.2006 1,050,000 - (1,034,000 (16,000) - - 29.6.2016 1.95
30.6.2007 to &
30.6.2006 536,000 - (536,000) - - - 29.6.2016 1.95
4.10.2008 to &
4,10.2007 2,618,000 - (872,000) (1,746,000 - - 3.10.2017 2.32
12,062,000 - (10,284,000)  (1,778,000) - -
Weighted average

exercise price
IEFITEE 1.89 - 1.82 231 - -
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (ontinued) 36. BE R RESH & )

Balance at
1.4.2008 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled Exercise
N

\ during during during during price per
Date of grant ) the year the year the year the year =) Exercise period

RHAH BB RE RERTE  RERKR  RENZH TR

2009
—ZTNE
Scheme
Zit8
3320010 &
2.3.1999 660,000 - (600,000) (60,000) - - 2.3.2009 0.90
20.10.2001 to &
19.10.1999 1,855,000 - - (20,000) - 1,835,000 19.10.2009 2.30
122200210 &
11.2.2000 55,000 - - - - 55,000 11.2.2010 3.35
1.7.2002t0 &
30.6.2000 40,000 - - - - 40,000 30.6.2010 3.40
27.7.2003t0 &
27.7.2001 2,076,000 - - (68,000) - 2,008,000 26.7.2011 2.40
4,686,000 - (600,000) (148,000) - 3,938,000
Exercisable at the end
of the year
ATREFRITHE 3,938,000
Weighted average
exercise price
MEEHTEE 217 - 0.90 1.78 - 2.38
New Scheme
#itél
20.11.2003 to &
20.11.2002 1,598,000 - (48,000) (120,000) - 1,430,000 19.11.2012 1.34
6.8.2005t0 &
6.8.2004 1,436,000 - (100,000) (40,000) - 1,296,000 5.8.2014 1.28
9.6.2006 to &
9.6.2005 2,444,000 - - (80,000) - 2,364,000 8.6.2015 1.98
19.6.2007 to &
19.6.2006 2,768,000 - - - - 2,768,000 18.6.2016 1.95
30.6.2006 to &
30.6.2006 1,072,000 - - (22,000) - 1,050,000 29.6.2016 1.95
30.6.2007 to &
30.6.2006 844,000 - (22,000) (286,000) - 536,000 29.6.2016 1.95
4.10.2008 to &
4,10.2007 2,888,000 - - (270,000) - 2,618,000 3.10.2017 2.32
13,050,000 - (170,000) (818,000) - 12,062,000
Exercisable at the end
of the year
ARERITHE 9,086,000
Weighted average

exercise price
METETEE 1.89 - 1.38 1.95 - 1.89
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

37

For options granted under the New Scheme, other than the
1,050,000 options granted on 30th June 2006 which are vested
immediately, the rests are vested equally over 3 years from the date
of grant.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the date of exercise is HK$1.96
(FY09: HK$1.81 per share). The weighted average closing price
immediately before the date of exercise is HK$2.59 (FY09: HK$1.81
per share).

The outstanding options under the Scheme and the New Scheme
that were not exercised were lapsed and determined on 20th
October 2009 and 13th October 2009 respectively.

During the year, the Group recognised total expense of HK$361,000
(FY09: HK$854,000) in relation to equity-settled share-based
payment transactions.

No consideration is received during the year from employees for
taking up the shares under the options (FY09: nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Defined contribution plans:

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees.
The MPF Scheme is established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance in December 2000. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to consolidated income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group’s contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Defined benefit plan:

The Group also operates a defined benefit plan for a qualifying
director of the Company. Under the plan, the director is entitled to
retirement benefits based on 120% or 175.25% of final average
salary multiplied by completed months of service on attainment

of a retirement age of 60, or of age at least 50 with 25 years of
services. The assets of the fund are held separately from those of
the Company, in funds under the control of trustees. The scheme
is non—contributory on the part of the director and the Company is
obliged to meet the full cost of all benefits due to the director under
the plan.
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36. AR AESTE (o)

37

HRBEIFERL CERENS BR_TT
ANEANA=ZTHENREREEE 21,050,000
HEERRRESN - AT HEREE N L B BT
B=FREOES -

HRFRITE2EREMS - ATEREZM
ETHRER1BET(ZEZNMHFE :
1.81870) » REBEITH A a2 g FHUm
BR259BT(ZEZNIHBFE 1.8187T) ©

RZaTBIRAEBIR N Z M RIT B ED D
AR=—TZAFTA-+ER=-ZTAF+A
TEARBREEL

FR - AEERBALEEUARND TN 2R 5
RBFHAZ361,000BT(ZEZNTEHFE :

854,000/ 7T) °

FA - WARTLEERBERER T 2 RH R
FWBEARE(ZTTAMBEE « &)

RIKERFTE
REMKEE
rEERFMAECERER
g - RESHE IR _ZTZE - ARER
HIMEREEEROIRY - HRTDREEEAH S
ZHRANLEFE  IRBRIBERESEI 2R
AVAXNERGABERET MG - wiEeatdl
ZEEMERAEGSZERTE  BAKEE
ENRFR - ARERBES A BIHRE - H#
R =BERESMAA -

W—IEmE A

REBRIGE :
RARNAEERZESEN —HATREMT
gl BIEZHE EFEREZARETHET
2120%8175.25% T LAZ B RIRFE B 7N T3k
BOATHRME RS =+ AFRE KRS A
MZRWREN - ZESZEERETAEZSZ
EeRE BEARRBESRTN EBHA
AT EIER R - MAR RAZ NIRRT
EENTESZARMNZ2BAA -
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
(Continued)
Defined benefit plan: (Continued)
The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at 31st March 2010 and 31st
March 2009 were carried by Watson Wyatt Hong Kong Limited,
independent actuary. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation, the related current service cost and past service cost
were measured using the projected unit credit method. The main
actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

37. R ABRIFHE )

RERFE : 4

B BEERMEFENEEARI A AN EZ
BEARR-_Z—ZEF=ZA=+—H RS
NEF=ZR=+—RAZAERMNEEZREET
B —H2ME AERAET - BRARKER
%WK&@&%%%$ZEEEE%%?$§
EEETE - MERAZEEREREBNT ¢

Discount rate =
Expected return on plan assets TEERETEI & E B R
Expected rate of salary increases TERIE S IgR

Expected return rate on plan assets is determined by reference to
historical data of Hang Seng Index.

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan assets
was HK$8,267,000 (FY09: HK$5,775,000) and the present value of
the funded obligations was HK$7,845,000 (FY09: HK$8,226,000).
The actuarial value of these assets represented 105.4% (FY09:
70.2%) of the benefits that had accrued to members. The surplus of
HK$1,760,000 (FY09: deficit of HK$2,451,000) is to be cleared over
the estimated remaining service period of the current membership of
four years.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement during
the year in respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows:

3.6% 2.2%
6.0% 6.3%
2.0% 3.0%

B EEEZRBER K2 EBEEAZE
SEBEMEE

BEMERT 588 E 2 TEA8,267,000%5
T(ZZETNMEEFE : 5,775,00087T) » i
S EE 2 RER7,8450008 (=T N
FZ 8,226,000 7L) - WEEE ZIEEERA
AEMNK B REFZE2105.4%(Z TN
FE 1 70.2%) © 1,760,000 L2 B#H(ZTE
NEFEREE : 2,451,000 7075 F) iR IRA K
8 7 (EET T R AR TS BARS U 4F R g o

RAFEERAEENFTEIERN G EREZ
SEOT

Current service costs IR PR R AR

Interest cost FER AR

Expected return on plan assets TE #5214 E B R

Net actuarial loss/(gain) recognised NEHRZFEEEER, (s
in the year

2010 2009
—z-=F —TENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAET

195 284

136 314

(271) (820)

81 (86)

141 (308)
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 37. BREFEE )
(Continued)
Defined benefit plan: (Continued) BREBBAEE
The charge for the year of HK$141,000 (FY09: credit of REE 7B HIBAE141,00088 T ( ZZZ A5
HK$308,000) has been included in administrative expenses. BETE A ZKIA A308,0005 7T ) I B 5 AST
HEMR -
The actuarial gain on plan assets was HK$2,492,000 (FY09: HEBEZBEWZE A2,492,0008 T (2
actuarial loss on plan assets was HK$5,985,000). NPBEE : st21EE 2B EE1E 55,985,000
AT o
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Group’s AN BEAERNGTEI ZEEFELAMYIA
obligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows: BEABEERZSENT :
2010
—s-2%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHRT FAT
Present value of funded obligations HeHEAZRE 7,845 8,226
Fair value of plan assets FrEIEEZATEE (8,267) (5,775)
(Surplus)/deficit (B8R, ¥ (422) 2,451
Net actuarial gain/(loss) not recognised AR S F R E IR (B518) 1,760 (1,254)
Net liability arising from defined benefit ATERANEEMEELE BEFHE
obligation 1,338 1,197
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations in REFRERNEE2REZSHNAT ¢

the current year were as follows:

2010
—E-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
At 1st April 2009 and 2008 RZZThER
—TEN\FMA—H 8,226 11,659
Current service costs IR R AR Ak A 195 284
Interest cost F B 136 314
Actuarial loss EEBE (712) (4,031)
At 31st March 2010 and 2009 RIZE—ZTFR
—EENF=A=+—H 7,845 8,226
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 37. BB RIS B »)
(Continued)
Defined benefit plan: (Continued) RERIFE  ®
Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year KREFHEEE AL EEEHNT -

were as follows:

2010
e

HK$’000 HK$'000
AT THT

At 1st April 2009 and 2008

—EENFNA—H 5,775 11,760
Expected return on plan assets TEERRTEIE E 3R 271 820
Actuarial gain/(loss) BE = (F5E) 2,221 (6,805)
Contributions from the employer BEHER - -
At 31st March 2010 and 2009 RZE—ZTFR

ZEENF=A=+—H 8,267 5,775
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan EEETEREIMEBREHEEE B LN
assets are as follows: T

Equity instruments AT E 78 70
Debt instruments [=¢ =, 18 25
Cash e 4 5

100 100
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38. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 38, /& &3k Fr8iH 4

2010
—E-ZF 3
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Profit before income tax bR ET1S B s )
From continuing operations REFELEES 53,617 43,262
From discontinued operations REDRIEEEETS 73,286 10,553
Adjustments for: FCEEL
- Share of results of associates (note 21) oS NG TE
(MisE21) (1,714) (880)
— Share-based payment expense — AR D AERSI A2 FX 361 854
- Amortisation of intangible assets (note 20) — A S (PRE20) 735 1,635
— Depreciation and amortisation of property, —W% - BEREETER
plant and equipment (note 18) #iE(PMIEE18) 26,917 49,829
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plantand —HEWE¥ - MENEE 2
equipment (see (note (a) below) (Yezs) B4R
(R T 37E@) (62) 30
— Gain on disposal of the GMS business — REIRKE R RIS
(note 44) (Pff5E44) (69,116) -
— Fair value gain on revaluation of investment —EHREME L ATFEE
properties (note 19) #Ehn(PEE19) (3,590) -
— Net (reversal)/provision for impairment of —JEWE 5 FOERE (BE)
trade receivables (note 26) B F R (M 5E26) (419) 2,787
— Impairment loss of intangible assets —BEEEREBRE
(note 20) (FfF5E20) 200 -
— Interest income (note 8) —F B A (F5E8) (942) (3,869)
— Interest expenses (note 9) — AR (FF:E9) - 234
Changes in working capital: EEEH
— Inventories -FE 2,647 7,089
— Trade receivables —EIE 53R (21,817) 16,979
— Other receivables, deposits and prepayments  — H i EURIE « 24 &
B IR (2,158) 40,341
— Amounts due from customers for contract — G TRENEPRIE
work (27,239) (17,776)
— Restricted bank deposits — 2R HIRITFR (29,538) -
— Trade payables — B 5308 38,351 (30,559
— Other payables and accruals —HithENMPIENEER 9,212) (17,071)
— Receipts in advance —TEu 45,484 (18,021)
— Deferred income —EFEWA 24 -

Cash generated from operations REEBASRE 75,815 85,417
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For the year ended 31st March 2010

38. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

38. REHEKFBRE &)

(Continued)
Note: Mz -
(@  Inthe cash flow statement, proceeds from the disposal of property, @ RBERERA HEWE BERREZR

plant and equipment comprise:

BHABE -

2010 2009
—%-%%

—ZTNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHT

Net book amount of property, plant and
equipment (note 18)

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (note 10)

W - BB N BREDFE

(Fff5E18) 181 6,826
HEME - BER&H2 K
(&#) (FFE10) 62 (30)

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

HEME - BB R EZ SR
243 6,796

39. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

in respect of certain of its office premises and computer equipment

which fall due as follows:

9. & EMAENRE
REER - REBRRB TR EEBOER
THEARETHAETREREMBHZ KK
RIEBYOSRAEWT

2010

—E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Within one year —FR 6,216 8,959
In the second to fifth year inclusive —EZFERF(BREERMF) 3,238 1,602
9,454 10,561
Leases for office premises are negotiated for an average term of two PWRAERBEZANOTFH _FER—X - e

years and rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases. ERBHZE -

Leases for computer equipment are negotiated for an average term
of three years and rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases.

BRE MO T =FER KX HeETE
R#z k-
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40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

41

42

43
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40. EAEIE

2010
e

HK$’000
FTET

HK$’000
TATT

Capital expenditure in respect of property, plant £ 5] 4B RA4R & B TS iRx B8

and equipment contracted for but not provided 7 ¥1% - E & RE 2

in the consolidated financial statements N 1,378 322
FUTURE OPERATING LEASE 4. RREFEE W=
ARRANGEMENTS
At 31st March 2010, the Group had contracted with a customer RZE—TFE=RA=+T—H0 AKEEHET
in respect of certain computer equipment and land and buildings BIREITHR T REF L EHOERRFE]
under operating leases as follows: FOpUNS

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT T

Not later than one year TER—F 1,855 3,454
Later than one year and not later than —FRBIZRAF

five years 2,474 -

4,329 3,454

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March 2010, bank deposits held as security for banking
facilities amounted to approximately HK$29,538,000. At 31st
March 2010, performance bond of HK$29,538,000 has been
issued by the Group to customers as security of contracts (31st
March 2009: 25,500,000). As at 31st March 2010, the Group had
HK$29,538,000 banking facilities from banks (31st March 2009:
HK$25,538,000).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31st March 2010, the Group’s restricted bank balances were
pledged to secure the banking facility of the Group (Note 29) (31st
March 2009: Nil). At 31st March 2009, the Group’s bank deposits
of approximately HK$100,000 had been pledged to secure the
banking facilities of the Group.

42

43

XREE

RZZ—EF=A=+—08  AENERTRE
i 5 YE R 2 $R1T 17 50 4 429,538,000/ 7T ©
RZZ—ZTF=A=+—B AEERTFEH
TIERE NI 2 B AR F /529,538,000
T(ZTETNFE=A=+—H : 25,500,000/
JT) o AN E B IRTTEEIRTT A & 29,538,000/
ZZETNF=A=+—H : 25538000/
JT) °

BEEEKH

RZZ—ZF=A=+—8  ~EEZZRH
RITAEERE FIVEASE 2 R1TRVE 2 IR (M5
) —ETAF=A=+—H : #) —TZT
NE=A=+—H ' £100,0007% T,z RITFF
HEREARLERITRIE 2 H -

7e(
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44, PROFIT FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS
On 24th April 2009, Computer Sciences Corporation (“CSC”), the
former ultimate holding company of the Company, has entered
into a conditional agreement with an independent third party to
transfer its controlling interest in the Company to a third party (the
“Share Purchase Agreement”). The conditions precedent to the
Share Purchase Agreement include, inter alia, the completion of
a conditional agreement entered into between the Company and
CSC Computer Sciences HK Limited (“CSC HK”, the former fellow
subsidiary of the Company) on 24th April 2009 (hereinafter referred
to as the “Global Account Transfer Agreement”) and the payment
of a special dividend of 92.0 HK cents per share to the then
shareholders of the Company (the “Special Dividend”). The Global
Account Transfer Agreement and the Special Dividend have been
approved in the special general meeting of the Company held on
17th July 2009.

The closing of the Global Account Transfer Agreement took place
on 28th August 2009. Pursuant to the terms of the Global Account
Transfer Agreement, the Group has transferred its GMS business

to CSC HK (the “Disposal”, which is effected through transfer of
service contracts, customer orders, hardware, software and licensed
intellectual property) for a cash consideration of HK$125 million. The
completion of the Share Purchase Agreement took place on 23rd
September 2009. Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
joint announcements dated 6th May 2009, 28th August 2009, 22nd
September 2009 and 23rd September 2009 made by Teamsun
Technology (HK) Limited (“Hong Kong Teamsun”) and the Company
(“Joint Announcements’) and the Company’s circular dated 30th
June 2009 (the “Circular”) and announcement dated 17th July 2009.

44. RE O R IIREER 2w R

RZZBZNEFENAZ+TMAE - RRFHATR
?.?5 £ {% /A &) Computer Sciences Corporation
(ICSCl) BB E=HEIL T —HEIKER
FoOUBEREARRREZERES E%a%é?

BE=F([RERGZE]) - ZERMDELEE
B R IGHBE - AR FIECSC Computer
Sciences HK Limited ([ CSC HK] + A~ AI#Y AT
BRERMBARR_ETNFENAZTWMH L
BB G (T OB RIRIKARIEEE =)
e ARMARAEFRENEFIRES
1892.078 M (MEFRIMRE D) o IRIRARTAE R 5%
EEFIREERARFTRZZZNFLAT+
BT Z IR EFRIR GBI

REKRBEEZRBHEN_ZSTNAFNAZTNH
At o MBRBRREEZNAOGK - AEE
£ 2A125,000,000/8 st VIR £ (8 + MCSC HK
EERHERNEEREEZ(HE]  ABEER
BEH - BPETE 3 - SFREEREN
BERNEBLE) - BRBER-_ZZNFN
AZ+=B%K - Bl EEZ HEHARERX
B RS (B ) B AR (E/%%t?%%au)éﬁ%
AHATIEARA-_TTAFRANA
ZENFNAZ+NR - ZEZEAFHA *Jr:
BRZZZNFNAZ + B2 AQREER
H([ZEMaerE]) - NEIREA=TT
NERA —JFEZ;@MUEALI&U)W\&E,HHZ%
“ETNEFLATHBEZAER
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44. PROFIT FROM DISCONTINUED 44. K B D4R I R 78> 2%
OPERATIONS (Continued) (&)

REEERGEB 2 RENRA M ERRET

REBIEEETR - ODRIEREEB 2 EER

results and cash flows of the discontinued operations is as follows: BERe8OTNT :

The results of the GMS business are presented in the consolidated

financial statements as discontinued operations. An analysis of the

2010
—E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET
Revenue WA 30,070 80,975
Expenses A (25,900) (70,422
Profit before income tax from discontinued RADKRIELEEL 2
operations R PSS A 4 A 4,170 10,553
Income tax expense FTiS®iFx (688) (1,741)
Profit after income tax from discontinued RECRIELEESR 2
operations bR ET1S B 1% i A 3,482 8,812
Pre-tax gain on the Disposal (note a) HEZRETSRAIFTE
(Fft5Ea) 69,116 -
Income tax expense FiSBi % - -
Post-tax gain on the Disposal HE 2 BRPTS T PTIS 69,116 -
Profit from discontinued operations REBERIEEEEBS 2B 72,598 8,812
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating EEERETSRS(CRE),
activities MAFEE (11,767) 18,049
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing WEFRESABERESRA Crdl)
activities SFRE 119,091 (9,379)
Net cash flow from financing activities BB EHEHEESRAFE - -
Total net cash inflow from discontinued DRI EEBRERSE
operations MALBFER 107,324 8,670
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44. PROFIT FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS (Continued)

4. RECKRIEEBEER Z2EF

()
Note a: Mizta :
The composition of the gain on the Disposal is as follows: HEREZ AT ¢
2010
—E-ZF
HK$’000
FERT
Sales proceed from the Disposal I ESIHERE 125,007
Less: o
Property, plant and equipment (note 18) M - BB R (HIFE18) (37,926)
Intangible assets (note 20) mEE (Ms20) (854)
Other directly attributable costs EthEEREAKA (17,111)
Pre-tax gain on the Disposal HE ZBRETS R RIFTS 69,116

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group was controlled by CSC who ceased to be a related

party of the Company on 23rd September 2009 (i.e. the date of the
completion of the Share Purchase Agreement (Note 44)). Upon the
completion of the Share Purchase Agreement, Hong Kong Teamsun
has become a related party of the Company. As at 31st March
2010, Hong Kong Teamsun owns 65.4% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining 34.6% of the shares are widely held at 31st March
2010. The ultimate parent company of the Company is Teamsun.

45.FEA LIRS

AEBEAHCSCHIES  ER=TZTNFNA
—+=R(BERIBHTTAK B BB (I :E44)) B
BARNTIEEAL - RERBZETKE &5
EBRKKAARFIBEAL RZZT—FF
—A=1+—8  BEEBRKEESEARRRN
2654%  c RZE—ZTF=A=+—H " HT
34.6% MM BEEMALTEFE - AABRKE
NE)REBRK
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45.FE A TR F @)
(Continued)

(@ Transactions with related parties:

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Nature of transaction REME
Ultimate holding company: S UNCTIE
Purchase by the Group AEBRE 597 -
Expenses charged to the Group AEES M ZHAX 110 -
Former fellow subsidiaries: ENEE NG
Sales by the Group AEEEE 284 2,112
Staff costs recharged by the Group AEFESHHKZETRY 1,374 8,625
Rentals and administrative expenses AEEZFzHE R
charged to the Group TERX 7,263 13,888
The former ultimate holding company: REERR AT
Sub-contracting costs charged K%@H&HXZE BEA
by the Group - 260
Rentals and administrative REBEXZN S
expenses charged to the Group MATH X 3,572 5,443
The associates: i dNSIIE
Sales by the Group AEEHEE 7 -
Purchases by the Group AEEREE 4,131 -
Staff costs charged by the Group AEBEBK B IRY 282 -
Rentals and administrative expenses rEEZNzEE
charged to the Group RATHRF X 99 -
Sale and purchase of goods and services are transacted EREBREEBERMBERFRER
at normal economical terms that are consistently applied —BUERZ ERKERRETRS °
to all customers and vendors.

(o) At 31st March 2010, no contribution was required in ) RZZE—ZTF=A=+—H"
respect of a defined benefit plan for a director of the AERAGEHRBERAR
Company (FY09: Nil) (note 37). EEFMELH(ZZZAN ﬁﬂﬂli&l :

) (M5E37) -

(©) The Group’s balances with related parties are set out in € AEESHEEEEATZENEHER
notes 27 and 33. PE27 %33 °

(d)  Key management compensations are disclosed in notes ) EFEEBABHERHTI2K13A

12 and 13. HWEE o
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46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Automated Systems Holdings Limited HEIR K EBBR AT

46. B AR 2 F1E

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31st March 2010 and R-E—ZEFE=ZA=+—"BRER_ZZNF=A

31st March 2009 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

bl NG

Automated Systems
(H.K.) Limited
BBRR(BE)ERRE

ELM Computer
Technologies Limited

BB AR AT

CSA Automated (Macau)
Limited
BERZORP)ER AT

Country/place of
incorporation/

establishment
and operation

Hong Kong
EE

Hong Kong
EE

Macau
Py

=t+—H  ARFZMBRRFHEWT

Nominal
value of issued Percentage of
and fully paid nominal value of
share capital/  issued share capital
registered capital held by
ERTR the Company
BRRAR RAREERT Principal activities
EfER BRAEER DL TEXK
HK$2 100% Investment holding, sale of
Ordinary shares computer products and
2T E AR solutions and provision of
HK$55,350,000 hardware services (including
A Non-voting installation and maintenance
deferred shares services) and software
55,350,000/ 70 services (including software
NEIZRERIER development, consulting and

professional services)

REER  HEBRERR
SRR B R R R 1 PR A
(BERERRERS) R RE
(BRESHRE  ERREERE)

HK$12,000,000 100% Investment holding, sale of
Ordinary shares computer products and
12,000,000/ 70 solutions and provision of

AR hardware services (including

installation and maintenance

services) and software

services (including software

development, consulting and

professional services)

RERR - S EMER R
FRRBHEHRE(BELE

RERS) R RS (2EE

R B REERE)

MOP10,000 100% Investment holding, sale of
Ordinary shares computer products and
#%10,0007T solutions and provision of
3l hardware services (including

installation and maintenance
services) and software services
(including software development,
consulting and professional
services)

REER - HEEMERR
BRSNS R 1 PR
(BERERRERS) R RS
(BERHRE  BRREERE)
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46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES contved) 46, [ B2 5] 2 245 )

Nominal

value of issued Percentage of

Country/place of and fully paid nominal value of

incorporation/ share capital/ issued share capital

establishment registered capital held by

and operation ERTR the Company
Name of subsidiary MR ALK BERE KATEERAT Principal activities
i) NGRS REAR M2 EfEZR BRAER B 7L TEXK
ASL Automated Thailand THB50,000,000 100% Investment holding, sale of
(Thailand) Limited e Ordinary shares computer products and solutions
Z2$£50,000,0007T and provision of hardware
Eimik services (including installation

and maintenance services) and
software services (including
software development,
consulting and professional
services)
&ﬁ&ﬂx fﬁ “Euu&
(’a%?i%&ﬁ%ﬁlﬁf%)

BB RS (DEE R -
BR R EER)

Guangzhou Automated People’s Republic of China HK$18,000,000 100% Sale of computer products
Systems Limited hEARKERE (Note 1) and solutions and provision
BNBREEEES 18,000,000 7T of hardware services (including
BB R AR (PF3E1) installation and maintenance
services) and software services
(including software development,
consulting and professional
services)
«EDD&%LF/?%EK&

%E MRS (AERE
RE RS ) RN RS (B AEE A
% - B REERY)

Taiwan Automated Republic of China NTD42,000,000 100% Sale of computer products
Systems Limited FERE (Note 2) and solutions and provision
AEREXEEM 1 &1%42,000,0007C of hardware services (including
BB R AT (PBf3E2) installation and maintenance

services) and software services
(including software development,
consulting and professional
services)
HEBMERRBRTRR
REETRG(BRELERRE
PRAS) Bk RS (R FE B R 3 -
BRI R EER)
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46. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

) NG R

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation

MR RLK

REAR M2

Express Success Limited British Virgin Islands *

ERELES

Express Returns Limited British Virgin Islands #

ERELES

Express Profits British Virgin Islands #

ERELES

Development Limited

Nominal

value of issued
and fully paid
share capital/

registered capital

BEBTR
BRBRE
&R

Us$2
Ordinary shares
ZeomEAR

Us$2
Ordinary shares
ZeomEAR

Us$2
Ordinary shares
ZeomEAR

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Company,

carry practically no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to

attend or vote at any general meeting of the company nor to participate

in any distribution on winding up.

# These companies operate in Hong Kong.

! Subsidiaries held directly by the Company.

Note:

1. Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited was registered in the People’s

Republic of China as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise. During the

year, its registered capital has increased from HK$10,000,000 to
HK$50,000,000. The registered capital paid up to 31st March 2010

was HK$18,000,000 (FY09: HK$10,000,000).

2. Taiwan Automated Systems Limited was registered in the Republic of
China and has a registered capital of NTD42,000,000 which was fully

paid as of 31st March 2010 and 2009.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of

the year.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited HEIR K EBBR AT

46. B AR 2 &F 1B

Percentage of
nominal value of
issued share capital

held by

the Company
KT EERT Principal activities
RAEEZEFDLL TEER
100% Property holding
MERE
100% Property holding
MERE
100% Property holding
MERE

GEX

BEFEELR (LIFRAARRGEE) L EN
BREF YR B SREA A RMER R K& 2
BERLEBRRAGINE LRFH2EER
s Z (D IK ©

HZERBREBLE -

ARAREEFAZMBEAR °

BINEBEEXEEEMBEAERAGNRPEAR
HMEFMAIINEBERE - R - AT
& 7K 310,000,000 7% 7T 1 0 Z= 50,000,000 7
T BE_T-TEF-A=+—B2EBEHEM
&7 /18,000,000 T ( ZTZNHBFE ¢
10,000,000/ 7T) °

AEREEEENARBAERARNPERET
i HeEfE A A% & %42,000,0007T © 1
BAER - Z—ZTER-_TTAF=ZA=1+—
HER -

RAFEAER - BLENBRREITEMER

e

o
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HREWMEFR
Particulars of Investment Properties

—ZT—TF=A=t+—H

31 March 2010
Location Gross floor area (sq.ft) Use Tenure
1t 2 EEEHR(FAR) R 1
Units 1 to 7 and 15 to 21 on 12th Floor, 11,744 sq.ft Commercial Medium Lease
Topsail Plaza, 11,744F 5 R [GES R HAFR A

11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories
R

WH

ZOE1155E

R E5 1218
1ET75; 1622158 B
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited -
Major Subsidiaries and Associates

HONG KONG

Automated Systems (HK) Ltd.

15/F, Topsail Plaza

No. 11 On Sum Street

Shatin, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998 Fax: (852) 2601 6936

ELM Computer Technologies Ltd.

11/F, Topsail Plaza

No. 11 On Sum Street

Shatin, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 25641 9900 Fax: (852) 2541 1338

MACAU

CSA Automated (Macau) Ltd.

Alameda Dr. Carlos D’ Assumpcao No.180
Edf. Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo

14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392 Fax: (853) 2878 6390

In Systems (Macao) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D’ Assumpcao No.180
Edf. Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo

14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392 Fax: (853) 2878 6390

MAINLAND CHINA

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited

Room 2001-2008, 20/F, Block 4, Dong Jun Plaza
836 Dong Feng Road East, Guangzhou, China
(Postal Code: 510080)

Tel: (86) 20 8760 5518 Fax: (86) 20 8767 5383

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited — Shenzhen
601, Block 12, Software Park Phase 2

Nanshan District, Shenzhen, China

(Postal Code: 518057)

Tel: (86) 755 8633 6933  Fax: (86) 755 8633 6931

Customer Service Centers
Beijing ® Hangzhou ® Shanghai ® Shenyang

Offshore Development Excellence Center — Zhuhai

TAIWAN

Taiwan Automated Systems Ltd.

3/F, No. 18, Sec. 6, Ming-Chuen East Road
Nei-Hu Dist. 114, Taipei, Taiwan, R.O.C.

Tel: (886) 2 8792 8598 Fax: (886) 2 8792 8569

Taiwan Automated Systems Ltd. — Taichung Branch
10/F-1, No.160, Sec. 3, Dong Sing Rd., West District,
Taichung City 403, Taiwan, R.O.C.

Tel: (886) 4 2319 6598 Fax: (886) 4 2319 6599

THAILAND

ASL Automated (Thailand) Ltd.

283/42 Home Place Office Building, Unit 0901, 9th FI.
Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206 Fax: (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Ltd.

283/42 Home Place Office Building, Unit 0901, 9th FI.
Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206 Fax: (662) 185 3207

BB RFA(EB)ERAR

EELH

M 1155

E|BES15E

B (852) 2601 6998 {HE : (852) 2601 6936

BMEEEHER QA

EEDH

TIN5

E|EES 1112

EaE 1 (852) 2541 9900 {EHE : (852) 2541 1338

ol

BERFCR)BRAT

SRPIR T A EH 18058

REEEEFRD

14120-RE

WiE ¢ (853) 28786392 {HHE : (853) 2878 6390

In Systems (Macao) Limited
SRPIR T A4 EH5180%%

REEEEPS

1420-R=E

B 3E 0 (853) 2878 6392 {HH : (853) 2878 6390

thE X pE

BENREXEEERRARAT

P [ & 3 R SR P4 8365k

H g E15 5 MU EE20122001-3F

(T4 : 510080)

Bk ¢ (86) 20 8760 5518 {EH : (86) 20 8767 5383

B REEERE B AR AR — Y

A EBLRYIT R L E

T [ B — 124601

(B4R : 518057)

Z3iF  (86) 755 8633 6933 {HK : (86) 755 8633 6931

BERGH O
L e Fl o L © &S

UL

88
AEREXEAMBHARAR
AEAILT1147HE

AR /B 1857318

5% (886) 287928598 {HH : (886) 2 8792 8569

AEREEEEARHIER AR - B8RSR

BB AR m403FE

R = B 16057101 2 —

A% (886) 4 23196598 {HH : (886) 4 2319 6599

RE

ASL Automated (Thailand) Ltd.

283/42 Home Place Office Building, Unit 0901, 9th FI.
Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

BE : (662) 1853206 fHE : (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Ltd.

283/42 Home Place Office Building, Unit 0901, 9th FI.
Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

&% ¢ (662) 1853206 {HE : (662) 185 3207



A Member of the Teamsun Group

Automated Systems Holdings Limited
EBZRGZEBEERAA

15/F., Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, H.K.
Tel: (852) 2601 6998  Fax: (852) 2601 6936
Home Page: http://www.asl.com.hk
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